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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa - Chairman
Ms. Ekta Bahl - Member
Mr. Mahadevan Narayanamoni - Member
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Mr. Arunprakash Srinivasarao Korati - Chairman
Ms. Ekta Bahl - Member
Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa - Member
Mr. Vishal Bali - Member
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
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REGISTERED OFFICE
6-3-248/2, Road No.1
Banjara Hills
Hyderabad - 500 034

CORPORATE OFFICE
CARE Corporate Office
1st Floor, Kohincor building, Road No 2, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad -500034 Telangana

STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Unit -2B, 8" Floor, Octave Block, Block E1, Parcel-4,
Salarpuria Sattva Knowledge City,
Raidurg, Hyderabad — 500 081 Telangana

INTERNAL AUDITORS
Ermst & Young LLP
18, iLabs Centre, Madhapur,
Hyderabad — 500 081 Telangana

COST AUDITORS
M/s.Nageswara Rao & Co
Cost Accountants
H.N0.30-1569/2, Plot No.35, Anantanagar Colony
Neredmet, Secunderabad.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
RVR & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
D.No #1-10-18/G1, Lakshmi Sree Park View Apartments,
Opp. Municipal Park, Ashok Nagar,
Hyderabad- 500020, Telangana

BANKERS
Union Bank of India, Banjara Hills Branch, Hyderabad
NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited
Axis Bank Limited, Corporate Banking branch, Hyderabad
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Hyderabad
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QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED

Regd. Office: 6-3-248/2, Road No.1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad-500 034;

CIN: U85110TG1992PLC014728; Email:Info@carehospitals.com,

Website: www.carehospitals.com; contact no.: 040-30418888, 040-68306565, 040-68106565

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on
Wednesday, the 28" day of September, 2022 at 01.00 P.M through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other
Audio Visual means (OAVM) facility at the Board Room, Corporate Office, 1st Floor, Kobinoor

building, Road No 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034 Telangana to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements L.e. Balance Sheet and the
statement of Profit & Loss (including the Consolidated Financial Statements) and the Cash

Flow Statement of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31* March 2022 and the reports
of the Auditors and Board of Directors thereon.

2. To reappoint Mr. Vishal Bali (DIN: 01457380} as a director, who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To reappoint Mr. Massimiliano Colella (DIN: 08729468) as a director, who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himseif for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To Ratify the Ramuneration Payable to Cost Auditors:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without madification(s} the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicabie
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force),
Cost Auditors, M/s. Nageswara Rao & Co, Cost Accountants having Firm Registration No:
000332 appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as Cost Auditors, to conduct the
audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial year ending 31 March 2023, who
shall be paid a remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand
Only) Per Annum plus applicable 1axes and out of pocket expenses at actual.

Page 4 of 54



r
A
S

;VW ’:'”\

™
Ut

\\]I

-=  QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED
Annual Report - 2021 - 2022

ja
Q
w
W

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors, be and are hereby severally authorized to

.do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient, required
or incidental thereto, in this regard including but not limited to filing of requisite
application/forms/ reports, etc. with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or with such other
authorities as may be required for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

For and on behalf of the Board
QUALITY CARE INDIA y/M[Ea %

(F] \3))
Place: Hyderabad, India Mr. Jaédeep Singﬁl\_&; % 3
Date: 25.08.2022 Director & Gro hief Executive Officer

DIN: 02705303
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Notes:

1. The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to
Special Business to be transacted at Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

2. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has
vide General circular No. 14/2020 dated 08.04.2020, 17/2020 dated 13.04.2020, 22/2020
dated 15.06.2020, 33/2020 dated 28.09.2020 and 39/2020 dated 31.12.2020 and 10/2021
dated 23.06.2021, read with circulars No. 21/2021 dated 8.12.2021 and General circular no.
2/2022 dated 05.05.2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars™) permitted the holding
of the Annual General Mesting (*AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presencs
of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) and MCA Circulars and relevant circulars and other applicable provisions,
the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM.

3. The VC/OAVM facility for members to join the meeting, shall be kept open 30 minutes before
the start of the AGM and shall be closed on expiry of 30 minutes after the conclusion of the
AGM. Members can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM by following the instructions
mentioned in this notics.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013,

5. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars
through VC / QAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly,
the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

8. Members desiring to seek any information/clarifications on the annual accounts are
requested to write to the Company at least seven (7) days before the Annual General
Meeting to enable the management to keep the information ready.

7. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are
required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its certified true copy of Board or
governing body Resolution/Authorization/Power of Aftorney etc., alongwith the specimen
signature of the authorized representative who is authorized to attend the AGM on its behalf
and to vote. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company by email
through its registered email addrass to cs.office@carehospitals.com

8. Members holding shares in physical/dematerialized mode, who have not registered/updated
their email addresses with the Company are requested to register/update their email
addresses by writing to the Company along with their details and folio number at
cs.office@carehospitals.com

9. Members whose email ids are already registered with the Company or with Registrar and
Share transfer agent will receive the Zoom Link (for video conferencing) for attending the
Annual General Meeting which is also given below; Members are requested to attend the
meeting through the given link and In case any member has not received the link via email
then they are requested to send a mail from their E-mail account and write to
¢s.office@carehospitals.com.
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10.

11.

Zoom Link :

Topic: QCIL Annual General Meeting 2022
Time: Sep 28, 2022 01:00 PM india

Join Zoom Meeting
hitps./fus02web. zoom. us/i/85229940509 ?owd= VEJGZkgzcihDMG YyekphMnl4W Tdxdz09

Meeting ID: 852 2994 0599

Passcode: 025061

Find your local number: hitps./fus02web. zoom.us/u/kpvxso1EFf

Instructions:
a) Type the exact fink given above in the web address bar and enter

Or

b) i) open Google Chrome/Mozilla Firefox/Internet Explorer
il) Go to join.zoom.us and type
Meseting |D: 852 2994 0599
Passcode: 025061
iii) Click Join
In case of any technical difficulties write to - udavkumar.bellapu@carehospitals.com; or

cs.office@carehospitals.com:;

In keeping with Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ Green initiative measures, the Company hereby
requests members who have not registered their email addresses so far, to register their
email addresses for receiving all communication including annual report, notices, circulars,
etc. from the Company electronically by writing to cs.office@carehospitals.com.

The statutory registers including register of directors and key managerial personnel and their
shareholding, the register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested
maintained under the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the notice
will be available for inspection in electronic mode. Members who wish to inspect the register
are requested to write to the company by sending e-mail to ¢s.office@carehospitals.com

12. All sharehoiders attending the AGM will have the option to post their comments/queries

through a dedicated chat box, which will be made available.

13. The Annual Report of the Company including the Notice convening the AGM circﬁlated to the

members of the Company will be available on the Company's website at

hittps.//iwww.carehospitals.com/annual-reports

14. Since the AGM will be held through VC / DAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this

Notice.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013}

ltem No 4

The Board has approved the re-appointment of the Cost Auditors, M/s. Nageswara Rao &
Co. at a remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- {(Rupees One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand Only) per
annum plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses at actuals, to conduct the audit of
the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31 March, 2023.

In accordance with the provisions of the Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013, read with
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the
Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution for ratification of the remuneration
payable {o the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31 March, 2023.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel / their relatives is, in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

Your Board recommends the resolution set forth in the item no.4 of the Notice for approval of
the Members

For and on behalf of the Board
QUALITY CARE'IN DIA’};IMI"_BED

/ ;- / I{‘/

,-’, | ' I\ .I
Place: Hyderabad, India Mr. Jasdeep smg\h ;
Date: 25.08.2022 Director & Group'C |ef ExecutNeOiﬁcer

DIN: 02745303

Page B of 54



QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED
Annual Report - 2021 — 2022

To
The Members,

BOARD'S REPORT

On behalf of Board, We take pleasure in presenting the Thirtieth Annual Report on the business
and operations of your Company along with the standalone and consolidated summary financial
statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: [Rule 8(5)(i) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

{Rs. In millions)

QCIL(CARE standalone)

QCIL{CARE Consolidated)

Particulars Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21

Net Sales income from:
Business Operations 10,223.07 814113 13,181.61 10,532.68
Other Income 59.64 75.55 08.56 113.56
Total Income 10,282.71 2,216.68 13,280.17 10,646.22
Less: Expenditure 8,069.83 6,697.49 10,564.40 8,746.18
EBITDA 2,212.88 1,519.19 2,715.77 1,900.04
Less; Finance costs 336.02 417.45 42063 511.26
Less Depraciation 715.03 684.581 905.87 869.24
Less; Impairment Losses - 26.28 - 26,28
Profit before share of loss of a 1,161.83 390.65 1,389.47 493.26
Joint venture
Less: Share of loss of a Joint - - 0.01 0.01
Venture
Profit before tax 1,161.83 390.65 1,389.46 493.25
Less: Current Income Tax 245.00 118.51 302.84 135.43
Less: Income tax relafing to 22.15 45.69 2215 45.89
earlier periods
Less: Deferred Tax Expense (160.57) (380.25) (164.44) (367.91)
/{Benefit)
Profiti{loss) for the year 1055.25 606.70 1,228 .91 680.04
Other Comprehensive income:
1. items that will not be
raclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

a. Re-measurement of (4.44) (5.79) (7.08) (6.94)

defined benefit plan

2. Income tax relating to items 1.52 2.02 2.19 2.32
that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Total Comprehensive 1052.33 602.93 1,224.02 675.42
Incomef{Loss) for the year
Earnings per share Basic 25.43 14.62 27.00 16.80
Eamings per share Diluted 25.43 14.56 27.79 15.73

2. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS [Rule 895){ii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014)

During the Financial year under review, there was no change in the business of the Company.
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3. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT [Section 134 (3) ()]

During the year under review —

a. The Company has raised the Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 79,50,000/- (Rupees
Seventy Nine Crores and Fifty Lakhs Only) to Rs. 95,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety Five
Crores only) divided info 7,85,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/ each and 1,55,00,000
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/~ each vide Extra Ordinary
General Meeting dated 25.03.2022.

b. The Company allotted 75,45,290 0.001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
(CCPS) of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including premium of Rs. 442.30/-
per CCPS vide Circular resolution dated 24.06.2022.

¢. The Company allotted 70,27,190 0.001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
(CCPS) of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including premium of Rs. 442.30/-
per CCPS vide Circular resclution dated 25.07.2022 .

4. DIVIDEND [Section 134 (3) (K)}

The Board of Directors of your Company has not recommended any dividend for the financial
year 2021-22. The curent year profits are ploughed back for expansion plans of the
Company. ‘

5. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply as there was no
dividend declared and paid in the previous Financial Year 2020-21.

6. TRANSFER TO RESERVES [Section 134 (3) (N

The details of the amount transferred to the reserves and surplus is detailed in Statement of
changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022 and Note No 4.13(b) of the financial
statements enclosed herewith.

7. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES [Rule 8(5)(iv) of
Companies Accounts) Rules, 2014]

The Company has four subsidiaties and one associgte company as on 31# March 2022.
There has been no material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries.

During the current Financial Year 2022-23 the Company has acquired 2 Companies as its
subsidiaries by acquiring a stake of 95% in Convenient Hospitals Limited and 76% in United
CIIGMA Institute of Medical Sciences Private Lirited.

Pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 139 (3) of the Companies Act 2013, a statement

containing the salient features of the subsidiaries and associates companies in Form No.
AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements of the Company as Annexure- |
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8. DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS [Rule 3(5) (v) of Companies Accounts) Rules, 2014)
The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits during the financial year 2021-22.
Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the act —

a.  Accepted during the year; - NIL
b.  Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year; - NIL
c. Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest

thereon during the year and if so, number of such cases and the total amount involved-
None

i. At the beginning of the year; - NA
i.  Maximum during the year; - NA
iit. At the end of the year; - NA

There are no deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the
Act;

9. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital as on 31st March 2022 was Rs. 95,00,00,000/- consisting of
7,95,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and 1,55,00,000 Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. The paid up Equity

Share Capital as on 31st March 2022 was Rs. 41,49,68,040/- consisting of 4,14,96,894 equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Increase in Authorized Share Capital -

During the year under review, at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on March 25, 2022,
the Company increased its Authorized share capital from Rs.79,50,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy
Nine Crores and Fifty Lakhs Only) consisting of 7,95,00,000 {Seven Crores and Ninety Five
Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Ten Only) each to Rs. 95,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety
Five Crores only) divided into 7,95,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten only) each
and 1,55,00,000 {One Crore and Fifty Five Lakhs Only) Compulsory Convertible Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each by addition of Rs. 15,50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen
Crores and Fifty Lakhs only) divided into 1,55,00,000 (One Crore and Fifty Five Lakhs Only)
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only}

During the year under review, the Company has issued 99,50,000 (Ninety Nine Lakh Fifty
Thousand Only) 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10/-
each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including a premium of Rs. 442.30/- per 0.001% Compulsorily
Convertible Preference shares aggregating to Rs. 4,500,385,000/- (Rupees Four Hundred &
Fifty Crores Three Lakhs and Eighty Five Thousand Only) for cash through private placement
to “Touch Healthcare Private Limited' on 25,03.2022.

During the cument year, the following events had taken place post issuance of the above-
mentioned CCPS -

» Allotment of 75,45290 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs.
10/- each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including a premium of Rs. 442.30/- per 0.001%

CCPS aggregating to Rs. 3,41,27,34,667/- to Touch Healthcare Private Limited on
June 24, 2022,
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10.

» Withdrawal and abandonment of 24,04,710 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares (“CCPS") of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 2,40,47,100 /- out of
89,50,000 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each

offered which were offered during the year to “Touch Healthcare Private Limited’ on
July 08, 2022,

s Issuance of 79,54,710 0.001% Compulscrily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.
10/- each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including a premium of Rs. 442.30 per 0.001%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS") aggregating to Rs.

3,59,79,15,333/- for cash through private placement to ‘Touch Healthcare Private
Limited’ on July 08, 2022,

e Allotment of 70,27,190 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.
10/- each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including a premium of Rs. 442.30 per 0.001%

CCPS aggregating to Rs. 3,17,83,98,037/- to Touch Healthcare Private Limited on
July 25, 2022,

During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting
rights.

During the year under review, the company has not undertaken any of the following
transactions.

Buy Back of Securities Sweat Equity Bonus Shares | Employees Stock

Option
Nil Nil Nil Nil

However the Company vide Special Resolution dated 25.03.2022 discontinued the ESOPs
2013 Scheme and Share Warrants 2016 Scheme and approved payment of Ex-Gratia to
vested holders of Eligible ESOPs holder under ESOPs 2013 Scheme and Share Warrants
2016 Scheme respectively.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT [Section 134(3) (c) and 134(5}].

In accordance with the provisions of 134(3)(c) and Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, the

Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, submit their responsibility
statement:

i In the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial year ending 31 March,
2022, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no
material departures

i. Selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 1o give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
2021-22 and of the profit of the Company for that period,

iii. Taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. Prepared the annual accounts on a “Going Concern” basis;
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V. Laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

vi. Devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL [Rule 8(5)iii) of Companies
Accounts) Rules, 2014]:

DIRECTORS:

In accordance with the provisions of Articles of Association Mr. Vishal Bali (DIN: 01457380)
and Mr. Massimiliano Colella (DiN: 08729468), Directors are liable to retire by rotation and
being eligible offers themselves for reappointment.

During the Financial year 2020-21 and in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Board appointed Mr. Jasdeep Singh as an Executive Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. 19" October, 2020 for a period of 5 years and during the year
under review, on subsequent approval from the Members at the 29™ Annual General Meeting

held on 28" September, 2021, he was appointed as a Director of the Company w.e.f. 28"
September, 2021,

During the year under review, Mr.Vaughan Erris Firman (DIN: 08787748} has resigned as a
Director from the Board with effect from 04™ February, 2022.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL'’s (KMP’s):

During the year under review and in accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the following changes in the Key Managerial personnel's have taken
place:

» Resignation of Mr. Sandeep Kumar as Group Chief Financial Officer (CFO) w.ef. 24"
May, 2021.

« Appointment of Mr. Vikas Rastogi as Group Chief Financial Officer (CFO) w.e.f. 24" May,
2021,

The performance of KMP is evaluated annualiy by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC).

The details pertaining to the Board Committees viz Composition, meeting dates and the

Policy (if any) are covered separately in the Corporate Governance Report attached to this
repott as Annexure V.

12, NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS : [Section 134(3){b)]:
A total of Seven (7) Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2021-22. The details

of the said meetings of the Board are placed in the Corporate Governance report, which is
forming part of this report.
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13, STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER

14,

15.

SECTION 149(6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 [ Section 134 (3) (d) & 149(6)]

Your Company has received declarations from all independent directors of the Company
confirming that they meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section &
of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. The independent Directors have duly complied
with the code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act.

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY,
EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR. [Rule 8(5)iiia) of
Companies {Accounts) Rule, 2014].

The Company has 2 Independent Directors, Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa and Ms. Ekta Bahl
and in the opinion of the Board, both of them possess requisite expertise, integrity and
experience (including proficiency).

COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES,
INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS UNDER SECTION 178 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 {Section 134(3)(e) and 178 (3}]

Your Company has a duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) which
is a sub-committee of the Board. Your company has put in place the relevant framework and
a Nomination & Remuneration Policy as required under section 178 of the Companies Act

2013. The NRC policy is given in the Corporate Governance report which is annexed to this
report.

18. MECHANISM FOR EVALUATION OF BOARD [Rule 8(4) of Companies Accounts) Rules,

17.

2014]:

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules issued there under,
formal Annual Performance process has been carried out for evaluating the performance of
the Board, the Committees of the Board and Individual Directors

A note on performance evaluation was duly circulated and placed before the Board.
Detailed information on the Directors is provided in the Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY, STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 135{Rule 8(1)

of Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 read with Rule 9 of Companies (Accounts)
Rule, 2014::

The Company was required to spend CSR amount in FY 2021-22 and the Company is
committed to taking up Corporate Social Responsibility activities. The Company constituted
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as required under the provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporate Social Responsibility Report including brief details
of CSR Policy is enclosed to this Board report as Annexure |l
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEES GIVEN
AND SECURITIES PROVIDED UNDER SECTION 186[Section 134(3)(g)]:

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along
with the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the

recipient are provided in the standalone financial statements. Please refer to the standalone
financials.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES PURSUANT TO SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 {Section
134(3)(h)].:

During the year under review, the company entered only into related party transactions which
were in the ordinary course of business

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1),
as prescribed in Form AOC-2 of the rules prescribed under Chapter iX refating to Accounts of
Companies under the Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed to this report as Annexure L.

COPY OF ANNUAL RETURN [Section 134(3)(a)]

The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 is available on the Company’s
Website and can be accessed at hitps://www.carehospitals.com/about-care/investors-2/

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY [Section 134(3)(n)]

The Company has adequate internal financial control system in place which operates
effectively. Risks are re-viewed from time to time and controls are put in place with specific
responsibility of the concerned officer of the company. According to the Directors of your
Company, elements of risks that threaten the existence of your Company are very minimal.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME 2013 AND SHARE WARRANT SCHEME -2016
[Rule 12(9} of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rule, 2014]

During the year under review, the Company has discontinued the ‘Employee Stock Option
Sheme-2013" and ‘Share  Warrant Scheme-2016" and approved payment of Ex-Gratia to
vested holders of Eligible ESOPs holder under ESOPs 2013 Scheme and Share Warrants

2016 Scheme respectively by passing Special Resolution in the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on 25.03.2022

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE. [SECTION 134(3)(F)] :

23.1. STATUTORY AUDITORS

Members at their Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting held on 24" September, 2020
appointed M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN: 012754N/N500018), as

Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years till the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting to be held in 2025.
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REPLY TO COMMENTS IN AUDITORS’ REPORT

As required to be stated under section 134 (3)(f) of the Act, there are no qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their independent auditor’s report.
The auditors’ report and notes to accounts forming part of financial statements are self-
explanatory and do not call for further explanation.

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company is part of the
Annual Report

23.2. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Board has appointed M/s RVR & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries for
conducting the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial year 2021-22 in
accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report
for the Financial Year 2021-22. The Secretarial Auditor's report is annexed as Annexure IV
and is a part of this report.

23.3. COST AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has appointed M/s.
Nageswara Rao & Co, Cost Accountants as the Cost auditors for the Company for
conducting the cost audit for the Financial Year 2021-22.

The remuneration of the Cost Auditor as recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors is required to be ratified subsequently by the
Shareholders. Hence the resolution at ltem no. 4 of the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) is recommended by the Board for members approval.

DISCLOSURE, AS TO WHETHER MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS [RULE 8(S){ix)
of Companies (Accounts} Rule, 2014].

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost records.

23.4. INTERNAL AUDIT [RULE 8(5){viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014].

The internal audit function is adequatsly resourced commensurate with the operations of the
Company. The provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding appointment of internal auditor are
applicable to the Company and as per the provisions the Board has appointed M/s. EY LLP,

Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors of the Company for conducting the internal audit
for the financial year 2021-22.
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24. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION

25.

26.

27.

{12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT [Section 134(3)(ca)]:

During the year under review, the statutory auditors have not reported any instances of fraud
by its officers or employees against the Company to the Audit Committee, the details of which

would need to be mentioned in the Board's report as required under section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Rule (5)(vii} of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014]

The Company has well established policies and procedures for internal financial controls
commensurate with its size and operations to safeguard and ensure prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets. All the
transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The
Company is following generally accepted accounting principles and Ind Accounting Standards
for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements.

The Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures
commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

VIGIL MECHANISM [Rule 7 of Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers} Rule,
2014]

Pursuant to section 177 (9) of Companies Act, 2013, the company formulated Whistle Blower
Policy.

The Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism provides a mechanism for the director/employee
to report violations without fear of victimisation of any unethical behaviour, suspected or
actual fraud etc. which are detrimental to the organisation’s interest. The mechanism protects
whistle blower from any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimisation or any other unfair
employment practice.

The Directors and employees in appropriate or exceptional cases will have direct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with the applicable secretarial standards issued by the Institute

of Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and General Meetings and approved by
Central Government.
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28. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND

COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE [Rule 8(5){vii} of Companies {Accounts) Rule,
2014]

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunails
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future

29. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR

STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR [Rule 8(5)(xi) of Companies
(Accounts) Rule, 2014).

The Company has one pending proceeding against it under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 which was filed by Soniks Consuitancy Services Private Limited alleging non-

payment of un-entitlement claim for incomplete services provided by them. The proceedings
of the case are pending for adjudication.

30. INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSA) ACT, 2013 [Rule 8(5)(x) of
Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014].

The Company has adopted a policy with the name “Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment”. The policy is applicable to all the employees of the
organization, which includes corporate office, Units etc.

An Internal Complaints Committee has also been set up to redress complaints received on

sexual harassment as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Waorkplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013 the information required to be disclosed under the provisions of the said
Act are as follows:

8. No Particulars

{a) number of complaints received during FY 2021-22 5

{b) number of complaints disposed of during the FY 2021-22 | 5

(¢} number of cases pending for more than ninety days Nit

31. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUTGO [Section 134(3)(m)] with Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts)
Rule, 2014]

The particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outge are as follows:
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. A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

1. The steps taken or impact on
conservation of energy.

2. The steps taken by the Company
for utilizing alternate sources of

energy

3. The Capital investment on energy
conservation equipment's

| The company is making all efforts to conserve

energy by monitoring energy costs and periodically
reviews the consumption of energy.

The Company has also taken appropriate steps to
reduce the consumption through efficiency in usage
and timely maintenance/installation/ upgradation of
all the energy saving devices. The company has
successfully implemented and is working on
renewabls energy options and conservation

| projects like solar energy, Heat pumps & Energy

efficient air conditioning solutions with internal
expertise and association with external agencies.

The conservation initiatives has resulted in
migration of traditional hot water generators using
diesel fuel / conventional Geysers to Heat pump
technology thus saving fossil fuel and hot water
generation cost,

Two hospitals units have upgraded to LED lightings
from conventional lightings savings.

Installed energy efficient air conditioning
equipment,

All efforts have been taken in order to maintain the
equipment in optimum working conditon to
increase the life span and to decrease the energy
consumption without compromising the safety and
comfort of patients and customers.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

1. The Efforts made towards
|l technology absorption

| 2. The Benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import

| substitution

3. Details of technology imported
during the past 3 years

4. The expenditure incurred on
Research and Development

The company does not have in-house Research &
Development department. However, the company
continuously makes efforts towards sourcing
medical & other equipment from vendors who
adopt the latest state of art technology in their
products/services.

This endeavor ensures that the company always
benefits in terms of cost reduction and improving

{ efficiencies.

Further no technology was imported by the
Company during the year under review.

' C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO

actual outflows

 Foreign Exchange earned in terms INR 80,28,771
of actual inflows
Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of INR 44.31,884
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, shareholders, suppliers, bankers,
business partners/associates, financial institutions and Central and State Governments for their
consistent support and encouragement to the Company. | am sure you will join our Directors in
conveying our sincere appreciation to all employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and
Associates for their hard work and commitment. Their dedication and competence has ensured
that the Company continues to be a significant and leading player in the Health Care Services.

For and on behalf of the Board

"'-~..M_r._Mas[;inn;ltiﬁn"o/Colelﬂ_:v_{f -“aD',i 3 gh
recior || @ | L or 2roup

DIN: 08729468 \ %\ /)/ DIN: 02705303
Date: 25.08.2022 .,/ Date: 25.08.2022
Place: Dubal, UAE S-S Place: Hyderabad, India
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ANNEXURE |
Form AOC-1

{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Ruies, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A’": Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

R Particulars Details
No.
1. [ Name of the subsidiary Ganga Care | Ramkrishna | Galaxy Care | Quality
Hospital Care Multispeciality | Care
Limited Medical Hospital Jharsuguda
Sciences Private Private
Private Limited Limited
Limited
2. | Reporting period for the 01/04/2021 | 01/04/2021 | 01/04/2021 | 01/04/2021
subsidiary concerned, if different
from the holding company's To To To To
reporting period 31/03/2022 | 31/03/2022 | 31/03/2022 | 31/03/2022
3. | Reporting currency and INR (Mn)} | INR (Mn) INR (Mn) INR (Mn}
Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial
year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries
4. | Share capital 118.63 14.98 0.21 0.10
5. | Reserves & surplus 328.25 687.55 175.09 (0.10)
6. | Total assels 630.63 1646.53 332.65 0.04
7. | Total Liabilities 630.63 1646.53 332.65 0.04
8. | Investments 5.70 - - -
9. | Turnover 424,35 2193.50 384.30 0
10. | Profit before taxation 39.76 190.12 {2.24) 0
t1. | Provision for taxation 10.32 43,66 (0.01) 0
12. | Profit after taxation 29.44 146.46 (2.23) 0
13. | Proposed Dividend 0 0 0 0
14. | % of shareholding 74.13 56.33 76 100
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Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement;

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - Quality Care Jharsuguda Private
Limited

2.Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year — None

Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

| Name of associates/Joint Ventures

Quality Care Health Services India Private
Limited

1. Latest ?.u_dited Balance Sheet Date

31-March-2022

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by | 5000
‘the company on the year end
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture | 5,000
Extend of Holding% 30%
3. Description of how there is significant Control over composition of Board
influence
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is Operations of the company not yet started
not consolidated
5. Net worth attributable to g‘lareholding as per | Not Applicable
latest audited Balance Sheet -
" 6. Profit/Loss for the year Not Applicable
0 Considered in Consolidation
ii. Not Considered in_C_onsolidation NIL

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.- Quality Care
Health Services India Private Limited

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.- None

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified

For and on behalf of the Bo_grd

W

rﬂr Massimiliano C
——Pirector
DIN: 08729468

!.

Date: 25.08. 2022 \ \_
Place: Dubai, UAE\ Place: Hyderabad, India

. Mr. 495 eep Singh
Birector & Group CEO
" DIN: 02705303
Date: 25.08.2022
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1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis:

Form No. AOC.2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

ANNEXURE Il

A

HOSPITALS

There are no contracts or arrangements or transactions which were not on arm’s length basis

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

Description Details of the Contracts
Name(s) of the  Asia Healthcare Akna Medical Evercare Group Galaxy Care India Medtronic
related party Holdings Private Limited Management Multispeciality Private
and nature of  Advisary LLP. Limited Hospital Private  Limited
relationships Limited
Nature of Enterprise Enterprise where Enterprise Subsidiary Enterprise where
contractsfarran  where Director Director is where Director Company Director is
gementsftransa is interested — interested — is interested — interested —
ctions Ankur Thadani  Mahadevan Massimiliano Madan Rohini
Narayanamoni Colella Krishnan
Duration of the  July 2021 On-going On-gaing From 1 April 2021  On-going
contracts / Onwards till transaction transaction to 31 December fransaction
arrangementsitr  Projsct 2021
ansactions completion date
Salient terms of  Avalling of Purchase of Professional Sale and Purchase of
the contracts or  Project consumables Services Purchase of goods  capital
arrangements Management rendered by {vaccination) goods/implants/d
or fransactions  Soneutancy QclL rugs pharmacy
including the elc.
value, if any
Date(s) of None, 30/03/2022 30/03/2022 30/03/2022 30/0372022
approval by the  Approved by
Board, if any audit committee
on 24/08/2021
Amount paid as  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
advances, if
any
behalf of the Bo rd
74
. i
Mr. Massimiliano C Mr.J d €p Singh
' or Irector roup CEOQ
DIN: 08729468 DIN: 02705303

Date: 25.08.2022
Place: Dubai, UAE

Date: 25.08.2022
ace: Hyderabad, India
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ANNEXURE Il

*

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE
INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S REPORT FOR
FINANCIALYEAR 2021-22

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: Corporaie Social Responsibility (CSR) is the
Company’s commitment to its stakeholders to conduct business in an economically, socially
and environmentally sustainable manner that is transparent and ethical,

The Company is committed to undertake CSR activities in accordance with the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules.

The Company believes that corporate development has to be inclusive and every corporate
has to be responsible for the development of a just and humane society that can build a

naticnal enterprise. The Company commits itself to contribute to the society in ways possible
for the organization

AIMS & OBJECTIVES

To develop a long-term vision and strategy for Company’s CSR objectives {Long term and
otherwise) :

Establish relevance of potential CSR aciivities to Company’s core business and create an
overview of activities to be undertaken, in line with Schedule Vi of the Companies Act, 2013,
Company shall promote projects that are :

(a) Sustainable and create an impact both long term and otherwise;
{b) Have specific and measurable geals in alignment with Company’s philosophy;
{c) Address the most deserving cause or beneficiaries.

To establish process and mechanism for the implementation and monitoring of the CSR
activities for Company.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

S1. | Name of Director | Designation | Number of meetings| Number of meetings of

No. ! Nature

year

1 IMr. Kewal Kundanlal |[Chairman/Non- 1 1

Handa Executive

Independent
irector

2 [Ms. Ekta Bahi Member/Non- 1 1
Executive

Independent
Direcinr

3 [Mr. Arunprakash Member/Non- 1 1
Srinivasarao Korati  [Executive
Director
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6.
7.

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committes, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company, -
https://www.carehospitals.com/csr-policy

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable {attach the report). ~ Not applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the

Companies (Corporate Sacial responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for
set off for the financial year, if any - NIL

Sl. Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-
No. from preceding financlal | off for the financial year, if
years (in Rs.) any {in Rs.}
1 R N -
2 - - -
a - - -
TOTAL - -

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) — Rs. 2,60,60,238/-
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - Rs. 5,21,205/-

(b} Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years. = Ni}

(¢) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) — Rs. 5,21,205/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent {in Rs.)
Spent for the

. Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund
Financial Year Unspent CSR Account as per specified under Schedule VIl as per
{in Rs.) section 135(6). second proviso to section 135(5),

Amount. | Date of transfer. Name Amount. | Date of
of the transfer.
Fund
Rs. 5,21,205/- NA NA Nit Nil Nil
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{b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial vear: Nil

(1

@)

)

(4) (5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(1)

8.
No

Name
of the
Proje

ct.

ltem
from the

list of
activities

in

Schedul
e Vil to
the Act.

Logal
area
(YesiN
o).

Location of
the project.

Project|
duratio
n.

Stat

Distric
t.

Amoun

t
allocat
ed for
the
project
(in
Rs.}.

Amou
nt
spent
in the
curren
t
financi
al Year
{in
Rs.).

ed to

CSR

Amount
transferr

tUnspent

Account
for the
project
as per
Section
135(6)
(inRs.).

Mode of

Implementat

ion - Direct
{Yes/No).

n

Implementatio

Implemanting

Mode of
= Through

Agency

Nam

CSR
Registrati
on
number.

Total

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

'8
N

o |

Name ot
the
Project

Local
area
(Yes/
No).

item from
the list of
activities
in
schedule
Vil ifo
the Act.

project.

Location of the

State.

District.

Amount
spent
for the
project

{in Rs.).

Mode

of

implem
entatio

- Direct
{Yes/No

)

Mode
implementation
Through implementing
agency.

of

Name.

CSR
registration
number.

Telangana

Sikh Society

Eradicating |Yes

hunger,

poverty and
malnutrition

Telangana

Hyderabad

5,21,205/-

No
Sikh

Telangana

Society

CSR00024103

. TOTAL

|

|

5,21,205/-

(d)

(e)
(f)
(9}

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads- Nil

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — Not applicable

Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) — Rs. 5,21,205/-

Excess amount for set off, if any — Nil
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[ SI. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
{i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as Rs. 5,21,205/-
per section 135(5)
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 5,21,205/-
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)] Nil
{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Nii
(v} Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years Nil

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

[ SI. TPreceding [ Amount Amount Amount transferred to an Amount
No transferred | spentin fund specified under Schedule | remaining
. Financial | to the VIl ag per section 135(6), if to

Unspent Reportin N be spent
Year. CSRpe Fingncia earonf in P
Account Year {in the | succeedin
under Rs.). Fun . g financial
section 135 d Amount (in | Date of ‘ears. (in
(6) {inRs.) Rs). transfer. s.)
1.
2,
3
I

(b) Details of

CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial

year(s). Nil
7 @ (]3 4) {5) {6) (7) (&) {9)

L. | Project | Name | Financial | Project | Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of
No of the duratio | amou shpent on | amount the project
. ID. Year n. nt the spent -

Project| in which |
. the allocate | project at the end
) d for n the of reporting
project the Financial Completed
was project | reporting v i
ear. (in :
cgmmenc (in Rs.). | Financial | Rs.) /Ongoing.
ed.
Year
(in Rs),
TOTAL
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year - NA

(asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creafion or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

{b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(¢) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address
and location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per section 135(5).— NA

\

Mr. Jaéd ep Singh
Director & Group CEO
{DIN: 02705303)

Va

Ekta Bahl
(Chairman CSR Committee)
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Annexure V to Director's Report - 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Corporate governance refers to the set of systems, principles and processes by which a company is
governed. They provide the guidelines as to how the company can be directed or controlied such
that it can fulfil its goals and objectives in a manner that adds to the value of the company and is
also beneficial for all stakeholders in the long term. Stakeholders in this case would include
everyone ranging from the board of directors, management, sharehoiders to customers, ‘employees

and society. The management of the company hence assumes the role of a trustee for all the
others.

Board of Directors Composition

The Company has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors. The Board
comprises of One Executive Director, Two Non-Executive Indspendent director and Six Norn-
Executive Directors. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Director
Identificati tt"::;;:et;e
Name of the Director on Category of Directorship @
Number AG“:I on
(DIN) 28/09i2021
Mr. Arunprakash 00027783 | Non-Executive Director No
Srinivasarao Korati
Mr. Kewal Kundanial 00056826 | Independent Non-Exscutive No
Handa Director
Mr. Vishal Bali 01457380 | Non-Executive Director No
Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani 03566737 | Non-Executive Dirsctor No
Mr. Mahadevan 07128788 | Non-Executive Director No
Narayanamoni
Mr. Madan Rohinikrishnan | 07426734 | Non-Executive Director No
Ms. Ekta Bahl 01437166 | Independent Non-Exscutive Yes
Director
Mr. Massimiliano Collela 08729468 | Non-Executive Director No N
Mr. Vaughan Erris 08787748 | Non-Executive Director No
Firman'
Mr. Jasdeep Singh 02705303 | Executive Director Yes

! Resigned w.e.f.04" February 2022
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Board Meetings

The Board Meetings are conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013,
the rules made thereunder and Secretarial Standard for Meeting of Board of Directors issued by the

Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The attendances of the Directors in the said Board
Meetings are as follows:

Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings held during the financial year 2021-22

S. Director's 24-05-21 24-08-21 28-10-21 13-12-21 17-03-22 24-03-22 30-03-22

No. | name !

1 Arunprakash YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES {VQ) YES YES (VQ)
Srinivasarao
Korati

2 Kewal YES (VC) YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES {VC) YES (VC)} | YES (VC)
Kundanlal
Handa

3 Vishal Bali YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) YES (VC) YES YES {(VC)

4 Ankur Nand YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) YES (VC) YES (VC) LOA
Thadani

5 Mahadevan | YES (VC) YES YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VO) YES YES (VC)
Narayanamoni

6 Madan Rohini YES {VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES {VC) YES (VC} | YES (VO)
Krishnan

7 Ekta Bahl YES (VC} | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) YES YES (VC)

8 Massimiliano YES (VC) | YES (VC) LOA YES (VC) | YES (VC) YES LOA
Colella

9 Vaughan Erris YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES (VC) NA NA NA
Firman®*

10 | Jasdeep Singh | YES (VC) YES YES YES YES YES YES

(VC=video conferencing; LOA ~ Leave of absence)
*Resigned w.e.f. 04.02.2022

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has constituted the following committees:

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee of the Company has been constituted in line with the provisions of section
177 of the Companies Act 2013.

The terms of reference of the Committee are as follows and the Audit committee charter is
annexed as Annexure -1;

a. To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors
(including intemal auditors} of the Company.

b. To review and monitor auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of
the audit process.

c. To review the non-audit services, if any, being provided by the statutory auditors to the
company or its related entities.
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d. To review the financial statements and auditor's report before their submission to the

Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors
and the management of the Company.

. To approve transactions or any subsequent modification of transactions of the

Company with refated parties.

To scrutinize the loans and investments by the Company, if any.

- To review and oversee the Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company,

wherever it is necessary.

. To recommend the appointment, scope and terms of appointment of the valuers of the

Company

To oversese the Company's financial reporting, internal and external audit
requirements, evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems,

To monitor the Company's compliance with external laws and regulations, and internal
policies including its code of ethics.

To monitor end use of funds raised through Public offers and related matters.
To oversee the efficient functioning of the internal audit department and review its
reports. The Committee will additionally monitor the progress made in rectification of

irregularities and changes in processes whersver deficiencies have come to notice.

The Audit Committee charter of the company is enclosed as Annexure AC 1.

Present composition of the audit committee after recent re-constitution of the committee
during the year under review:

S.No Name Designation Remarks

1

Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
Handa Director

2 Ms. Ekta Bahl Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 17.12.2019
Director
3 Mr. Mahadevan Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 17.03.2022
Narayanamoni

The changes in composition of the Committee during the year under review and the

attendance details are as follows:

S.No Name Designation Remarks

1 Mr. Kewal Kundanlal | Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
Handa Diractor

2 Ms. Ekta Bahl Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 17.12.2019

Director

3 Mr. Vaughan Erris Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 31% July 2020
Firman and Resigned w.e.f. 04.02.2022

4 Mr. Mahadevan Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 17.03.2022
Narayanamoni
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Attendance of members at the audit committee meetings held during the financial year
2021-22
S. No. | Name of the member 24/08/2021 13/12/2021
i 1 Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa YES (VC) YES (VC)
2 Ms. Ekta Bahl YES (VC) YES (VC)
3 Mr. Vaughan Erris Firman YES (VC) YES {(VC)
4 Mr. Mahadevan Narayanamoni NA
NA

2. OPERATING COMMITTEE:

The Operating Commiittee is constituted for the operational effectiveness of the Company. The
following are the terms of reference of the committee:

I.  To review the performance of the Company on a periodic basis:

Il.  To borrow monies in terms of Section 179 of the Companies Act, 2013 not exceeding Rs.5
crores (Rupees Five Crores only) outstanding at any point of time;

lll.  To authorize the executives to file legal cases in the ordinary course of business;

IV.  To authorize the executives of the Company to represent and make application /

representation before various statutory authorities like Central Government, State
Government, Municipal and local bodies;

V. To operate any account (s) with such Bank or Banks as the Board may elect to sign, draw,
accepl, endorse or otherwise execute all cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, orders,
bills of exchange, bills of lading, Bank Guarantee and other negotiable instruments to make
and give receipts, release and other discharges for monies payable to the Company and for
the claims and demands of the Company to make contracts and to execute deeds in
connection with the operations of the Company;

VI.  Toinstitute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal proceedings by or against the
Company or its officers or otherwise concerning the affairs of the Company and also to
compound and allow time for payment or satisfaction of any debt due and of claims or
demands by or against the Company and to appeint solicitors, advocates, counsel and other

legal advisors for such purpose or for any other purpeses and setile and pay their
remunerations;

VII.  Such other terms of the reference as may be decided by the Board of Directors from time to
time; and

VIl Such other matters falling under the prevalent delegation of authority as approved by Board
from time to time

Page 38 of 54



QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED

Annual Report - 2021 - 2022

AR

HQO

PITA

B

LS

The composition of the Operating Committee and the attendance details for the meetings held
during the year are as follows:

Present composition of the Operating committee after re-constitution of the committee

during the financial year 2021-22:

S.No Name Designation ; Remarks

1 Mr. Mahadevan Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
Narayanamoni

2 Mr. Jasdesp Singh Director & Group CEQ Appointed w.ef. 19.10.2020

3 Mr. Massimiliano Non-Executive Director Appointed w.a.f. 17.03.2022
Colella

The changes in composition of the Committee during the vear under review and the
attendance details are as follows:

Name of the Director

Category of Directorship

Remarks

Mr. Mahadevan Narayanamoni

Non-Executive Director

Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019

Mr. Vaughan Erris Firman

Non-Executive Director

Appointed w.e.f. 31.07.2020 &
Resigned w.a.f. 04.02.2022

Mr. Jasdeep Singh

Director & Group CEQ

Appointed w.e.f. 19.10.2020

Mr. Massimilianco Colella

Non-Executive Director

Appointed w.e f. 17.03.2022

Attendance of members at the Operating committee meetings held during the financial year 2021-22

Operating 22-04- | 31-05- | 24.06- | 22-07- | 26-08- | 23.09- | 28-10- | 30-11- | 16-12- | 27-01- | 21-02- | 24-03-
Committee 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 pi AN 22 22 22
Mahadevan YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES LOA YES YES YES
Narayanamoni (VC) (V) (VC) (vC)

Vaughan Erris | YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES NA NA
Firman (VvC) {VC) {vC) {(VC) {(VC}) (VC) {(VC) {VC) {(VC) (vC)

{Resgn w.a.f.

04.022022)

Jasdeep YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES
Singh (vC) (VC)

Massimiliano NA NA NA NA NA, NA NA NA NA NA YES YES
Colella

{Mamber w.a.f

17.03.2022)

3. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows:

The Committee shall:

i. Formulate criteria for determining qualifications,

positive attributes and

Independence of Director and recommend to the Board on the remuneration
policies and practices for the Directors, Key Managerial personnel, senior
management of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) in general; and
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Identify persons who are qualified to be Director, Key Managerial personnel or
senior management personnel and make recommendations to the Board for their
appaintment and removal for the purpose of composition of the board and beard
Committees and to ensure that the board of directors consists of individuals who
are equipped to fulfil the role of director of the Company.

specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its
committees and individual directors

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee Charter of the company is enclosed as
Annexure NRC 2.

Present compasition of the NRC after recent re-constitution of the committee during the
financial year under review is as follows:

S.No Name Designation Remarks

1 Mr. Kewal Kundanlal | Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
Handa Director

2 Mr. Vishal Bali Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 21.06,2019

3 Ms. Ekta Bahl Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 17.12.2019

Director

4 Mr. Arunprakash Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 17.03.2022

Srinivas Rao Korati

The changes in composition of the Committee during_the

year under review and the

attendance details are as follows:

Name of the Director

Category of Directorship Remarks

Mr. Kewal Kundanlal

Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019

Director

Handa Director
Mr. Vishal Bali Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e f. 21.06.2019
Ms. Ekta Bahl Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 17.12.2019

Mr. Vaughan Errirs Firman

Non-Executive Director

Appointed w.e.f 31.07.2020 and
Resigned w.e f. 04.02.2022

Mr. Arunprakash Srinivas
Rao Korati

Non-Executive Director

Appainted w.e.f. 17.03.2022
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Attendance of members at the meetings of NRC held during the Financial year 2021-22 ‘

S. No. Members 19/04/2021 24/05/12021 | 13/12/2021
T Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa YES (VC) YES(VC)  YES(VC)
2 Mr. Vishal Bal YES (V) YES(VC) | YES(VC)
3 Ms. Ekta Bahl YES YES (VC) YES (VC)
4 Mr. Vaughan Erris Firman YES (VC) YES (VO) YES (VC)

5 Mr. Arunprakash Srinivas Rao NA NA NA
Korati J

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee pursuant to the provisions of
section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. The Committee functions according to the

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company which is available on the website of
the Company.

Web address;

https://www.carehospitals.com/csr-policy

Present composition of the CSR committee is as follows:

Name of the Member Category of Directorship Remarks
Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Indspendent Non-Executive Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
Handa Director
Mr. Arunprakash Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
Srinivasarao Korati
Ms. Ekta Bahl Independent Non-Executive Appointed w.e.f. 23.03.2020
Director

There were no changes in composition of the Committee during the year under review
and the attendance details are as follows:

Attendance of members at the CSR commiittee meeting held during the financial year
202122
S. No. Members 30/03/2022
1 Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa YES (VC)
2 | Ms. Ekta Bahl YES (V€)
3 Mr. Arunprakash Srinivasarao Korati YES (VC)
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’'S MEETING:

The details of the meeting of Independent Directors of the Company held during the year under
review are:

Attendance of members at the Independent Directors mesting held during the
financial year 2021-22
S. No. Members 30/03/2022
1 Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa YES (VC)
2 | Ms. Exta Bahl YES(VC)
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

The details of previous three years Annual General Mestings are as follows:

Year Date And Time Whether Special resolutions
passed

2020-21 28" September, 2021 @ 2:30 | Yes
PM

2019-20 24" September, 2020 @ 2:00 | No
PM

2018-19 23" September 2019 @ 3:00 | No |
PM

The Annual General Meeting held for the FY 2018-19 was held at the Corporate office of the

Company PACE, #8-2-595/2/B, Care Convergence Centre, Road No. 10, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad
— 500034,

The Annual General Meeting for FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 was held through Video Conferencing
(VC)/Other Audio Visual means (OAVM) facility at the Board Room, Corporate Office, 1st Floor,
Kohinoor building, Road No 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad -500034 Telangana

POSTAL BALLOT:

Thers was no business required to be transacted through postal Ballot during the financial year
2021-22

Annual General Meeting:

AGM Date, time and venue . 28" September, 2022 at 01:00 PM through
Video Conferencing (VCYOther Audio Visual
means (OAVM) facility at Board Room,
Corporate Office, 1st Floor, Kohinoor building,
Road No 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad -500034
Telangana

Page 42 of 54



QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED : E
Annual Report - 2021 — 2022 HOSPITALS
Financial Calendar . st Aprit to 31st March

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) -

1)  Equity Shares - INE108N01016
2) 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares — INE108N03012
3) 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ~ INE108N03020

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Address for Correspondence

All shareholders’ correspondence should be forwarded to M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate
Investments Private Limited, the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company or to the Compliance
officer/Investor relation officer at the addresses mentioned befow:

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited

# 12-10-167, Bharat Nagar,
Hyderabad-500Q 018

Tel: +91-40-23818475/76
Fax: +91-40-23868024

Email: info@vccipl.com

Compliance officer/investor relation officer

Mrs. Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran
Company Secretary

Company Secretary Department

H.NO.8-2-120 /86 / 10, 10A, 11, 11A, 118, 11C, & 11D
1st Floor, GVK Kohinoor Building {(New Star Maa Building)
Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad - 500034

Opp. Park Hyatt hotel, near: L V Prasad Eye hospital
Phone: 040-681065656

Fax: 040-39116019

Email: cs.office@carehospitals.com

Change of address:

Members holding equity shares in physical form are requested to nofify the change of address, if
any, to the company’s Registrar and Transfer agent, at the address mentioned above.

Share Transfer System:

All share transfers can be effected only in dematerialisation form. All shareholders are requested to
immediately initiate the process for converting physically held shares into Dematsrialisation form.
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Investor Safeguards:

In order to serve you better and enable you to avoid risks while dealing in securities. You are
requested to follow the general safeguards as detailed hereunder:

Update your address:

To receive all communication promptly, please update your address registered with the Company.

Consolidate your multiple folios:

Members are requested to consolidate their shareholding held under multiple folios to save them
from the burden of receiving multiple communications.

Register Nomination:

To help your successors get the share transmitted in their favour, please register your nomination.
Member(s) desirous of availing this facility may submit nomination in Form 2B {Enclosed) Member(s}

holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to register their nominations directly with their
respective DPs.

Prevention of Frauds:

We urge you to exercise due diligence and notify us of any change in address / stay in abroad or
demise of any shareholder as soon as possible. Do not leave your demat account dormant for long.

Periodic statement of holding should be obtained from the concermed DP and hoiding should be
verified.

Confidentiality of Security Deposits:

Members are requested not to disclose their Folio No. DP ID / Client ID or to handover signed blank
transfer deeds / delivery instruction slip to any unknown person.

Green Initiative:

Pursuant to Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21st April, 2011 and Circular No. 18/2011 dated 29th April,
2011, Ministry of Carporate Affairs (MCA) has launched “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance”

whereby the companies are allowed to send notices, documents and other communication to the
shareholders in electronic mode.

Your Company encourages its shareholders to support the “Green Initiative” by registering their
email addresses and intimate changes in the email address from time to time.

For and on behalf of the Board

Yy

Mr Massimitiano Coleya — Mr Jasd

ap Singh
Director Uir ctor & Group CEO
DIN: 08729468 | < | | =) DIN: 02705303
Date: 25.08.2022 \&5\_ .7/ Date: 25.08.2022
Place: Dubal, UAE - F{Iace. Hyderabad, India

Page 44 of 54



QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED A
Annual Report - 2021 - 2022 HOSFITALS

Annexure AC-1
QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED
CHARTER
AUDIT COMMITTEE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Authority and Purpose

A. The Board of Directors (‘Board") of Quality Care India Limited or its Subsidiaries or Associates
Company (the “Company”) constituted an Audit Commitiee {("Committee”) to assist the Board
in fulfilling its statutory and fiduciary responsibility:

To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors
{including internal auditors) of the Cormpany.

To review and monitor auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of the
audit process.

To review the non-audit services, if any, being provided by the statutory auditors to the
company or its related entities.

To review the financial statements and auditor's report before their submission to the
Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors
and the management of the Company.

To approve transactions or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company
with related parties.

To scrutinize the loans and investments by the Company, if any.

To review and oversee the Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever
it is necessary.

To recommend the appointment, scope and terms of appointment of the valuers of the
Company

To oversee the Company’s financial reporting, internal and extemal audit requirements,
evaluation of intemal financial controls and risk management systems.

To monitor the Company's compliance with external laws and ragulations, and internal
policies including its code of ethics.

To monitor end use of funds raised through Public offers and related matters.

To oversee the efficient functioning of the internal audit department and review its reports.
The Committee will additionally monitor the progress made in rectification of irregularities
and changes in processes wherever deficiencies have come to notice.

As such, the Committee exercises the authorities and powers delegated to it and the powers
imposed by law, regulations and/or regutatory authorities within the jurisdiction.

B. Members of the Committee should be conversant with the various responsibilities placed upon
them by Section 177 of the Act and rules made there under and as amended from time to time.
The relevant extracts of Section 177 of the Act are included in Appendix 1.

C. The Committee shall comply with the various provisions, regulations or guidelines as may be
applicable and amended from time to time. Further, the Committee shall review and update
this Charter once in the financial year, to give effect to such amendments and recommend the
revised Charter to the Board for its approval.

D. This amended Charter shall substitute and supersede all previous Charters of the Committee.
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Constitution of the Committee

A,

Size of the Committee: The Commitiee shall consist of at least three (3) members
(“Members”) and shall only comprise Directors from the Board. At all times, majority shalt be of
the Independent Directors.

Appointment and removal of Members: The Members will be appointed by the Board and will
continue until their successors are duly appointed by the Board. The majority of members of

the Audit Committee including its Chairperson shall be persons with ability to read and
understand financial statements.

In the event of any amendment to the Companies Act and rules made there under, the

composition of the Committee will be amended accordingly to ensure compliance with the
amendments.

Election of a Chairperson. The Members shall elect a Chairperson of the Committee
{"Chairperson”) from among themselves from time to time, by a majority vote. The Board shall
formally appoint the Chairperson of the Committee.

Appointment of a Committee Secretary: The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of
the Committee (“Committee Secratary”) but shall not be a Member. The Committee Secretary
shall be responsible fo provide support 1o the Committee members in his/her role and to
ensure proper execution of the required processes.

. Invitees to the Commiltee: Subject to the appraval by the Chairperson, the Committee may

invite members of the management as it considers necessary to be present at the Mestings of
the Committee but such executives shall have no voting rights.

Key Managerial Personnel: The Key Managerial Personnel shall have a right to be heard at the
Meetings but shall have no voting rights, when the Committee considers the auditor's report.

. Qualification of the Members and the Chairperson. All Members shall be financially literate and

at least one Member shall have accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Chairperson shall be an independent non-executive director of the Board and shali be a
person with a strong financial analysis background.

- Independence. The Committee should be constituted to ensure its independence and

objectivity.

Role of the Committee

A.

The responsibilities of the Committee is to carry out the purpose laid down in Section | of this
Charter. These responsibilities should serve as a guide with the understanding that the
Committee may carry out additional functions and adopt additional or different policies and
procedures as may be appropriate in light of changing business, legisiative, regulatory, legal or
other conditions.

To act as a Compliance Committee to discuss the level of compliance in the Company and any

associated risks and to monitor and report to the Board on any significant compliance
breaches.

The Committee shall also have such further powers as may be delegated to it by the Board

from time to time, in relation to the purpose of the Committee as outlined in Section | of this
Charter.

The responsibilities of the Committes, as prescribed under the Act and rules made there
under, and other delegations as prescribed by the Board of Directors.
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IV. Powers of the Committee

A. The recommendations of the Committee, on any matter relating to financial management,
including the audit report, shall be reported to the Board.

B. In performance of its responsibilities and obligations described in Section | and Section Ill, the
powers of the Committee shall include the following:

Vi,

C.

The right to ask a member of the management of the Company who is responsible for an

area commented upon on reports presented to the Committee, to be present when the
Committee reviews such report.

Investigate any matter in relation to its roles and responsibilities, to items specified in
Section 177(4) or referred to it by the Board.

Seek information from any employee of the Company.

Have full access to information contained in the records of the Company and obtain outside
legal or other professional advice if necessary.

Call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit,
including the observations of the auditors and about their review of the financial statements
before their submission to the Board and may also discuss any related issues with the
internal and statutory auditors and the management of the company.

Have oversight on the procedures and processes established to attend to issues relating to
maintenance of books of account, administration procedures, transactions and other

matters having a bearing on the financial position of the insurer, whether raised by the
auditors or by any other person.

The Committee shall accord omnibus approval to the related party transactions, which ara in

ordinary course of business and are at arm’s length basis, as detail in the Related Party
Policy of the Company:.

V. Proceedings of the Committee Meetings

A.

frequency of Meetings: The Committee shall meet at least two times every year. The
Committee may meet as often as it deems necessary or appropriate in its judgment, in
person or audio visual, and at such times and places as the Committee determines.

Quorurm: The quorum for a Meeting shall be either two {2) Members or one third {1/3rd} of
the Members whichever is greater. The quorum shall comprise of at least two (2) Members,
with one (1)} Member representing the JV Partner, present in person or through video
conferencing or by other audio visual means.

Notice: All notices to be issued by the Committee will be in accordance with the Act,

D. Voting: Each Member shall have one (1) vote and all matters submitted to the Committee for

approval shall require approval of a majority of the Members present and voting. Non-
Members shall have no voting rights.

. Non-Members: Subject to the approval by the Chairperson, the Committee may invite non-

Members to the Meetings fo attend and to participate at the Meetings, but such non-
Members shall have no voting rights.
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F. Invitees: The Company's Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and shall be
permanent invitees to the Meetings of the Committee but shall have no voting rights, Any of

the key managerial personnel of the Company shall have a right to be heard in the meetings
of the Audit Committee but shall not have the right to vote.

G. Statutory Audifors: The statutory auditors of the Company shall attend and participate in the
Committee Meetings convened for the purpose of approving annual (audited) financial

statements, but shall have no voting rights. The statutory auditors shall have access to the
Board through the Committee.

H. Executive Sessiom: The Committee has the right to hold private sessions with the
management, the Directors or the external and internal auditors, as required by applicable
law, regulation, and in such other circumstances as the Committee may deem appropriate.

| Circufation of agenda, supporting papers and resolutions: The agenda papers along with
requisite supporting documents and resolution shall be sent to all Members at least seven {7)
days before the Meetings. A resolution proposed to be passed by circulation should be sent,
together with necessary papers, to all the Members.

J. Minutes: In accordance with the Board protocols, the minutes of the Committee Meetings
shall be completed within fifteen (15) days of such Meeting and shall be circulated to all
Members and other relevant personnel as deemed necessary by the Committee.

K. Necessary support. The Company’s Secretary shall provide the necessary support and
assistance for conducting the Committee Meetings.

L. Reporting fo the Board: The Chairperson shall present to the Board an update on the
Committee Mestings.

M. Annual General Mesting: The Chairperson of the Committee shall attend the Annual General
Meetings of the Company to provide any clarifications on audit-related matters.

Vi. Disclosure

A. The Committee will disclose in the Company's Director Report whether or not, with respect to
the concerned fiscal year:

I. The management has reviewed the audited financial statements with the Committee,
including a discussion of the appropriateness of the accounting principles as applied and
significant judgments affecting the Company's financial statements.

ii. The independent auditors have discussed with the Commiitee their judgment of the

appropriateness of those principles as applied and judgments referred to the above, under
the circumstances.

iil. The Members have discussed among themselves without the management or the
independent auditors being present, the information disclosed to the Committee.

iv. There are any material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred betweaen the end of the financial year of the Company to
which the financial statements relate and the date of the Director's report.

v. The internal financial controls are adequate.

Page 48 of 54



e

QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED CARE
Annual Report - 2021 - 2022 HOSPITALS

B. To the extent required by the law, the Committee shall ensure that the following items are
disclosed in the annual report:

i-

Number of Meetings held in a financial year.

The composition of the mandated comrﬁittees, setting out the name, qualification, field of
specialization, status of directorship held.

Number of Meetings attended by the Diractors and Members.
Details of the remuneration paid, if any, to Independent Directors.

Where the Board has not accepted any recommendation of the Audit Committse, the
same shall be disclosed in the annual report along with the reasons thereof.
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Appendix 1: Extracts from Companies Act 2013

177. Audit Committee

1,
2,

9.

10.

The Board of Directors of every listed Company and such other class or classes of
companies, as may be prescribed, shall constitute an Audit Committes.

The Audit Committee shall consist of a minimum of three Directors with independent
Directors forming a majority: Provided that majority of Members of Audit Committee

including its Chairperson shall be persons with ability to read and understand, the financial
statement,

. Every Audit Committee of a Company existing immediately before the commencement of

this Act shall, within one year of such commencement, be reconstituted in accordance with
sub-section {2).

. Every Audit Committee shall act in accordance with the terms of reference specified in

writing by the Board which shall, inter afia, include, —
t. the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the Company;
i. review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process:
iii. examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
iv. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parties;
v. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments:
vi. valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
vii, evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
viii. monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.
The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control
systems, the scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of
financial statement before their submission to the Board and may also discuss any related
issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the Company.

- The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the

items specified in sub-section (4) or referred to it by the Board and for this purpose shall
have power to obtain professional advice from external sources and have full access to
information contained in the records of the Company.

- The auditors of a Company and the key managerial personnel shall have a right to be

heard in the Meetings of the Audit Committee when it considers the auditor's report but
shall not have the right to vote.

. The Board’s report under sub-section (3) of section 134 shall disclose the composition of

an Audit Committee and where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of the

Audit Committee, the same shall be disclosed in such report along with the reasons
therefore.

- Every listed Company or such class or classes of companies, as may be prescribed, shall

establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and employess to report genuine concerns in
suich manner as may be prescribed.

The vigit mechanism under sub-section (9) shall provide for adequate safeguards against
victimization of persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to
the chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional ¢cases. Provided that
the details of establishment of such mechanism shall be disclosed by the Company on its
website, if any, and in the Board’s report.
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3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Annexure NRC-2

QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED
Nomination & Remuneration Committee Charter

Quality Care India Limited
{“the Company’}
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CHARTER
("the Committea")

TERMS OF REFERENCE
CONSTITUTION

The Committee is constituted as a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the board in terms of
the section 178 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules made
there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
read with the reievant articles of the Articles of Association of the Com pany.

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Committee is to provide an independent and objective body that will:

{a) Formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of
Director and recommend to the Board on the remuneration policies and practices for the

Directors, Key Managerial personnel, senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries
(*the Group”} in general; and

(o identify persons who are qualified to be Director, Key Managerial personnel or senior
management personnel and make recommendations to the Board for their appointment and
removal for the purpose of composition of the board and board Committees and to ensure that

the board of directors consists of individuals who are equipped to fulfil the role of director of
the Company.

{c} specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual
directors

MEMBERSHIP/QUORUM

The Committee shall be constituted by the board from among the non-executive directors, provided it
shall consist of three or more non-executive director out of whom at least half of the members of
Independent Directors. The membars as a whole must have sufficient qualifications and experience to
fulfil their duties. The Chairperson of the Company (whether executive or non-executive may be the
member of the Committee. However, he shall not be Chairperson for this committee,

Notwithstanding the above, the board shall have the power at any time to reconstitute the Committee
including removing any members from the Committee and to fill any vacancies so created

The board shall, from time to time, review and revise the composition of the Committee, taking into
account the need for an adequate combination of skills and knowledge.

Provision shall be made for an induction programme and suitable training for all members of the
commities.

The company secretary or a person approved by the Chairman shall act as secretary to the
Committes.
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4, MEETINGS
4.1 Attendance

42

5.2

53

»  Aquorum of the meeting of the Committee shall be higher of two {2) Members or one-third (1/3) of
the Members of the Committee.

+ The chief executive officer, the chief financial officer, chief operating officer, chief medical officer
and head of human resources or other members of senior management as may be required shall
be in attendance at meetings of the Committee (as invitees) and shall have unrestricted access to
the chairperson or any other member of the Commitiee as is required in relation to any matter
falling within the remit of the Committee. Other board members may also attend at the invitation
of the Committee. Such Invitees shall have no voting rights.

e In the absence of the chairman of the Committee and/or an appointed deputy, the remaining
members present shall elect among themselves a Chairman of the meeting subject to the other
clauses of this terms of reference

» Suitably qualified persons may be co-apted onto the Committee when necessary to render such
specialist services as may be necessary to assist the Committee in its deliberations on any matter
but shall have no voting rights.

« Noinvited attendee shall have a vote at the meetings of the Committee.

Frequency of meetings

» Meetings of the Cormmittee shall be held as frequently as the Commiittee, in consultation with the
company secretary, considers appropriate, but it shall normally meet not less than twice (2) a
year. Sufficient time should be allowed to enable the Committee to undertake a full discussion as
may be required and a sufficient interval should be allowed between Committee meetings and
board meetings io allow for the Committee to undertake such work as is necessary in preparation
for each board mesting. Further meetings may be called by the board or any member thereof,
including all members of the Committee.

PROCEEDINGS

The Committee must establish an annual work plan for each year to ensure that all relevant
matters are covered by the agendas of the meetings planned for the year. The annual plan must
ensure proper coverage of the matters laid out in these terms of reference: the more critical matters
will need to be attended to each year while other matters may be dealt with on a rotation basis aver a
three-year period. The number, timing and length of meetings, and the agendas are to be determined
in accordance with the annual plan.

A detailed agenda, together with supporting documentation, must be circulated, at least seven days
(7) prior to each meeting to the members of the board and other invitees and the committee shall
observe applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. $5-1 in refation to all its meetings.

The secretary of the Commitiee shall take minutes of all meetings, which minutes shall be circulated
as follows:

»  Within 10 business days of the meeting generally, but not later than 15 days - to the executive and
chairperson of the Committee;

s once approved by the Committee - to the subsequent meeting of the board of directors of the
company.

The minutes shall record the issues, the salient features pertaining to the issues and the decisions of
the Committee.
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5.4 The secretary of the Committee shall ascertain, at the beginning of each meeting, the existence of any
conflicts of interest and minute them accordingly.

55 The chairperson of the Committee shall report on the Committee's proceedings and findings to the
next meeting of the board.

6. REMUNERATION

6.1 Non-executive members of the Committee shall be paid a sitting fee and other remuneration as may
be permitted under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder including
remuneration with respect to the committee meetings attended by them.

6.2 The above fees shall be subject to review by the board from time to time.

7. RESPONSIBILITIES

7.1 Human Resources relatad matters

The duties of the Committee shall be to work on behalf of the board and be responsible to it for
recommendations in respect of human resources matters:

¢ Laying down criteria for appointments of Directors, MD/CEO/EDWTD/KMP and Senior
Management and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal as per requiremeants of
the Companies Act 2013

* Evaluating performances of the Directors and other personnel as per requirements of the
Companies Act 2013

e Formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence etc of the
Directors and other personnal.

* Recommend to the Board a policy/ Terms of Reference, relating to remuneration packages and
any other compensation payment for the Directors, MD/ICEQ/ED/WTD/KMP/SM | and other
employees

= ensure alignment of the remuneration and human resources strategies and policies with the
Group’s business strategy and the desired culture;

» determine the Group's general policy on executive and senior management remuneration;

* consider and recommend for approval by the board the remuneration of the chisf executive,
execulive directors, KMP and Senior Management;

» consider and recommend for approval by the board the setting of KPA's for performance bonus
purposes for executive directors and the ratification thareof of other senior employees;

¢ consider and racommend to the board the achievements of the above KPA’s and the approval of
payment of performance bonuses of senior management;

e determine any grants to executive directors and other senior employees made pursuant to the
Group's management share option scheme;

» regularly review incentive schemes to ensure continued contribution to shareholder vaiue and that
these are administered in terms of the rules;

« consider the appropriateness of early vesting of share-based schemes at the end of employment;

» ensure the adequacy of retirement and health care funding for executives and senior
management;
ensure adequate succession plans for the executive and senior management; and

ensure compliance to all statutory and best practice requirements regarding labour and industrial
relations management.

Note: Job grades provided for reference:

CEQO: Crade F2
Executive Directors: Grade F1 (COO, CFO & CMO)
Senior Management: Grade E1 (All Group Managers)
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7.2

Board and nomination related matters

. This is not allowed under section 178

The Committee shall have the following responsibilities:

make recommendations to the board on the appointment of the chief executive officer, new
executives and non-executive directors, including making recommendations on the composition of
the board generally and the balance between éxecutive and non-executive directors appointed to
the board;

regularly review the board structure, size and compesition and make recommendations to the
board with regards to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

identify and nominate candidates for the approval of the board to fill board vacancies as and when

they arise, as well as put in place plans for succession for the board, in particutar for the chief
axecutive and CFO;

recommend directors that are retiring by rotation, for re-election;

consider recommendations by management in relation to non-executive director remuneration for
final recommendation by the board to shareholders;

oversee the development of a formal induction programme for directors;
ensure that inexperienced directors are developed through a mentorship programme;

oversee the development and implementation of continuing professional development
programmes for directors;

ensure that directors receive regular briefings on changes to in risks, laws and the environment in
which the company operates: and

consider the performance of the directors and take steps necessary to remove directors who do
not make an appropriate contributian.

8. GOVERNANCE

8.1

82

8.3

The Committee is authorised by the board to irvestigate any activity within its terms of reference. It is
authorised to seek any information it requires from any employee of the group and all em ployees are
directed 1o co-operate with any request made by the Committee. Such requests will be channslled
through the Company's chief executive officer.

The Committee is authorised by the board to, at the company's expense, obtain outside legal,
accounting or other independent professional advice as it considers necessary to carry out its duties

and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers this
necessary.

The Committee has reasonable access to the company's records, facilities and any other resources
necessary to discharge Its duties and responsibitities.

9. DISCLOSURE

The Committee shall ensure that the following is disclosed in the annual report to the extent required by law:

e Number of meetings held in a financial year
« The composition of the Committee, setting out the name, status of directorship held.
» Number of meetings attended by the directors and Members

¢ Details of the remuneration paid, if any, to Independent directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Quality Care India Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Loss), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2022, total comprehensive income {comprising of profit and other comprehensive loss),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (S$As) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisiens of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises Lhe
information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informatien and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fratgj;ﬂ'r:ﬁr/-mm-- ered 4.
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To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalene Financial Statements
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6.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7s

10.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economie decisions of users taken on
the basis of these finaneial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from ervor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in

place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals. )

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 1o continue as
a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plannad scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independenee, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,
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To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalone Finaneial Statements
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Repert on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, zozo (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11} of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

0

(4

We have sought and obtained all the information and explarations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive loss), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements — Refer Note 4.37 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, zo22 under the applicable law or
accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts. The Company
did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2022.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to
the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s} or entity{ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indireetly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {(*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 4.45(vii) to the
standalone financial statements);
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(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to
the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indireetly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 4.45(vii) to the standalone financial
statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {a} and (b)
contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registratton Number: 012754N/N500016

Sunit Kumar Basu

Partner

Membership Number: 55000
UDIN: 22055000APVVQD3249

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 25, 2022
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Quality
Care India Limited on the standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
Page1ofz2

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Quality Care
India Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finanecial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Gunidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financia! controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, hoth applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

5. Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s interna! finaneial controls system with reference to financial

statements.
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Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Quality
Care India Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alse, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deleriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by 1CAIL

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sunit Kumadr Basu

Partner

Membership Number: 55000
UDIN: 22055000APVV(QD32409

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 25, 2022
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i. {a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of Property, Flant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

{b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a

(c)

phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note
4.1 to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company, except for the
following:

Description | Gross Held in the | Whether | Period held | Reason for
of property | carrying | name of promoter, | -indicate not being
value director range, held in the
(INR in or their | where name of the
millions) relative or | appropriate | Company*®
employee
Land 105.55 | Andhra No From 2009 Refer note
Pradesh 4.44 to the
Industrial Standalone
Infrastructure Financial
Corporation Statements
Limgited

(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of

{e)

it. (a)

Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the questicn of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on (or) are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
its financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

_,,;__:':__._—_ T:'_:—:h:l___“
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(k) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,

iii.

v,

vii. (a)

(b}

in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account (Also refer Note 4.45(ii) to the standalone financial statements)

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting
under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a}, (iii)(b), (1ii)(c), @ii}(d), (ii){e) and (EHi)}(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and aceording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We
have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facte, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to ns and the recovds of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
stalutory dues in respect of provident fund and employees’ state insurance, though there has been
a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
sales tax, income tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods
and services tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities,

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues of duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess, goods and services tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The
partlculars of other statutory dues referred to in sub-clause {a) as at March 31 2022 which have
not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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Name of the statute

Income Tax Act, 1061

Andhra Pradesh General
Sales Tax Act, 1957

Andhra
Pradesh
Laoaary Tax
Act, 1987

The Finance
Act, 1994

Minimaurm Wages Act,
1948

Expenditure
Tax Act, 1987

Employees State
Insurance Act, 1948

The Employees’
Provident Funds
and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952

Total

Nature of
dues

Income tax
Income tax
Income tax

Sales tax

Luxury tax

Luxury tax

Luxury tax

Service tax

Service tax

Service tax

Service tax

Minimum

Wages

Expenditure
tax

ESI
Employees’

Provident
Fund

Total
Amount
of dispute
{INR in
millions)

22,01
0.51
4.36

3.56

16.86

21.78

78.58

4.57

B.10o

27.47"%

28.01

319

7.83

1.26

277

237.76

Amourni
paid under
protest
(INR in
millions)

1.78

835

21,78

19.64

147

1.25

0.53

357

0.42

3.51

62.29

* This amount does not include interest liability.
** Out of the total amount paid under protest, Rs. 3.63 million was charged to the Statement of Profit

and Loss in earlier years

Period to
which the

amount

relates
AY 2013-14
AY 2017-18
AY 2018-19

FY 2003-04
and 2004-05

FY 2004-05
and 2005-06

FY z006-07
to 2013-14

FY 2014-15
to 2015-16

July 2010 to
April 2011

FY 2014-15
to June 2017

FY Oct 2012 to

March zo17

FY 200g3-10
to 2013-14

FY 2001-02
FY 1590-01
to 1993-94

FY 1990-01 to
1996-97

Qctober 2008-

August 2009

te ouse Chartered Accountants LL

Forum where the
dispute is pending

ITAT

Assessing officer

CIT (A), Hyderabad
High Court, Telangana
High Court,
Telangana

Appellate Tribunal,
Hyderabad

High Court,
Telangana

Commissioner Appeals,
CESTAT, Visakhapatnam

Additional Conunissivner
of Customs, Central
Excise, & Service tax,
Hyderabad

CESTAT, Hyderabad
High Court, Telangana
CBDT, Hyderabad
High Court, Telangana

High Court, Telangana

i
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Viii.

ix. (a)

(b)

(e)

(d)

(e)

(f)

x. (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the [Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded
in the books of account.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. (Also refer Note 4.46(ii) to the
standalone financial statements)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that ne
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures.
The Company does not have any associates.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures. The Company does not have any associates.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clanse 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or

xi. (a)

()

partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicahble to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-
4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required
to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reportlng under clause 3(xi}b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company. — —
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(c)

xii.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has received whistle-blower complaints
during the year, which have been considered by us for any bearing on our audit and reporting.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has

(b)

xvi. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d

xviii,

Xix.

an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,
The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192
of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvij(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

‘The Company has not conducted non-banking tinancial / housing finance activities during the
vear. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Compary.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial vear.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
{Also refer Note 4.45(«) to the standalone financial statements), ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at

—— e "‘
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the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a pericd of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due,

XX. As at Balance Sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

xd The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Grder is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Fimm Registration Number; 012754N/N500016

Sunit Kumar Basu

Partner

Membership Number: 55000
UDIN: 22055000APVV(}D3240

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 25, 2022



Quality Care Indis Limited

Standa lance Sheet .

{All am Z millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Partkcuolars

ASSETS

A. Non-current pssets
{a) Property, plant and equipment
(b} Right-of-use assets
(¢} Capital work-in-progress
(d) Goodwill
(e) Otherintangible assets
(f) Intangible assets under development
{g} Investments
{hy Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets
(i) Deferred tax assels (net)
(I} Noen-current tax assets (net)
(k) Other non-current assets
Total non-curreat assets (A)
B. Current assets
(ay Inventories
(b} Financial assets
(1) Investments
(i) Trade receivables
(i1} Cash and cash equivalents
{iv) Bank balances other than above
{v} Loans
(vi}  Other financial assets
(¢} Qther current assets
Total current assets (B)

Total assets (A+B)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equlity
A. Equity
{a) Equity share capital
{b) Other equity
(i)  Reserves and surplus
Total equity (A)
Liabitities
B, Non-Current Liablllties
fa} Financial lHabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities
{b) Employee benefit obligations
Total non-current liabilities (B)
C. Curreat Liabilities
fa) Financial liabilities
(i} Bormowings
(i1} Lease liabilities
(itiy Trade payables
(a) total ourstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
{b) total outstanding dues other than (iii) (a} above
{1v) Other financial liabilitics
(b) Employee benefit obligations
() Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities (C)

Totsal liabilities {B+C)
Total equity and liabilities {A+B+C)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

This is the Standalene Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhonse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm's Registration No: 012754N/N500016

Sunit Kumar Basu
Partmer
Membership No: 55000

Place; Hyderabad, India
Date; 23th Aupust, 2022

Notes As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
41 fa) 425380 4,203 55
41 () 1,030 80 1,353 54
42 58708 544.60
413 26671 26671
43 7324 8091
44 26 59
45(a) 442 31 44231
46(a) 16370 18212
47 f(a) 33962 67753
47 (b) 51696 5H4 56
48 (a) 169 47 9360
8,443.69 8,446.03
49 117 96 114 55
45 (b} 1,023 85
410 38381 858 21
411 {a) 22399 572.03
411(b) 23853 33606
412 018 180
46 (b) 18222 99 55
4.3 (b) 7198 5677
4 13 (2} 41497 414 97
413 (b} 611210 5,074 35
#527.07 5,489,32
414 1,557.73 1,764 44
438 1,013 48 1,192 26
415(a) 11953 121 &7
2.690,74 3.078.37
416 292 25 286 30
438 237 51 349 58
417 {a) 2167 21.97
417 (b 1,135 05 91107
418 138.73 176 58
415(b) 7427 5379
419 7872 78 02
1,968.20 1,937.31
4,658.94 £,015.68
11,186.01 10,505.00
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Quality Care India Limited
4728
Jasdeep
Director Officer
DIN: 08729468 N
Place : Dubai, UAE Plage : Hyderabad
Vikas Rastogi
Chief Financial
AFEPR&865H y
Place : Hyderabad
Gayathri
Company Secretary
AQSPC2418C

Date: 25th August, 2022

Membership Mo . A41363
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25th August, 2022



Quality Care India Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the vear ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
I Revenue from operations 4.20 10,223.07 8.141.13
II Other income 4.21 59.64 75.55
III Total income (I+11) 10,282.71 8,216.68
IY Expenses
(i) Purchases of medical consumables and pharmacy items 2,366.96 1,858.73
(i) Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items 422 (0.38) 76.35
(iii) Employee benefits expense 4.23 1,576.98 1,329.56
(iv) Other expenses 4.24 126.27 3 L50
Total expenses (IV) 8,069.83 6,666.14
V Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (II1-IV) 2,212.88 1,550.54
() Finance costs 4,25 336.02 448.80
(ii) Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,26 715.03 684.81
(iii} [mpairment of intangible assets 43 26.28
VI Profit before tax 1,161.83 390.65
VII Income Tax expense/(benefit);
(i) Current tax expense 4.27 245.00 118.51
(ii) [ncome tax relating to earlier periods 4.27 22.15 45.69
(iii) Deferred tax expense 4.7 (a) (160.57) {380.25)
Total tax expense 106.58 (216.05)
VIII Profit for the year (VI-VII) 1,085,258 606.T0
IX Other comprehensive income:
(i} Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
(a) Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations 4,32 (4.44) {3.79)
(i) Income tax relating to these items 4.7 {a} 1.52 2.02
Other Comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (IX) (2.92) 37D
X Total comprehensive income for the year (VIIIHIX) 1,052.33 602.93
Eamings per equity share (Nominal value of equity share 210 (31 March 2021 : Z10))
Basic Earnings per equity share (in 3) 4,28 25.43 14.62
Diluted Earmings per equity share (in ) 2543 14.56
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standatone financial statements.
This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered A ccountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm's Registration No: 012754N/N500016 Quality Care India Limited
14728
Sunit Kumar Basu J
Partner Director Executive Officer
Membership No: 55000 DIN: 08720468 IN: 02705303
Place : Dubai, UAE Place

Yikas Rastogi
Chief Financial
AFEPRS8865H
Place : Hyderabad

Gayathri
Company Secretary
AQSPC2418C
Place: Hyderabad, India Membership No.: 441863
Date: 25th August, 2022 Place: Hyderabad

Date: 25th August, 2022 Date: 25th August, 2022



Quality Care India Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

(Al amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments:

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Impairment losses of intangible assets
Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Property, plant and equipment written off
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment
Advances and loans written off

Share based compensation expense

Income/liabilities written back from operating activities

Interest income
Finance costs

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

{[ncrease)/decrease in inventories
{[ncrease)/decrease in trade receivables
{Increase)/decrease in loans
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increasef(decrease) in provisions
Increasef(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income tax {paid)/refund, net

Net cash inflow from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment
Purchase of mutual funds

Sale of mutual funds

Interest received on fixed deposits

Interest received on income tax refund

Movement in other bank balances, net

Net cash outflow from investing activities (B)

\NAAC S

01275aN NS

¥ ar *

For the year ended

31 March 2022
1,161.83

(26.95)
715.03

50.87
5.29
248

(14.58)

(23.59)
300.60
2,170.98

(3.41)
(76.47)
11.43
38.05
(91.32)
148.80
13.90
@2.31)
0.70
2,170.35
(309.55)
1,860.80

(595.59)
50.97

(1,349.93)
353.23
20.70

224.39

31 March 2021

390.65

684.81
26.28
116.88
17.75

2.10

{1.05)

(54.70)
417.45
1,600.17

76.67
(157.47)
(14.51)
37.03
(15.33)
67.90
(8.11)
77.40
(62.63)
1,601.12
9.28
1,610.40

(272.59)

13.40
2126
(279.93)



Quality Care India Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayments) from short term borrowings, net
Interest paid
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities (C)

Net increase/{deerease) in eash and cash equivalents(A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the year (note 1)

Note 1:
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
- Included in cash and cash equivalents {(refer note 4.11(a))
Cash on hand
Balances with banks in cash credit accounts
Balances with banks in current accounts
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flows

This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

85.53 1,075.86
(286.29) {1,210.36)
(298.63)
(169.02) (218.94)
{402.99) (354.37)
(772.77) (1,006.94)
(208.20) 85.60
432.19 346.59
223.99 432,19
As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

6.64 7.90
88.94

12841 424.29

223.99 432.19

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP  For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Firm's Registration No: 012754N/N500016

Sunit Kumar Basu

Partner Director
Membership No: 55000 DIN: 08729468

Place : Dubai, UAE

Place: Hyderabad, India
Date: 25th August, 2022

Date: 25th August, 2022

Quality Care India Limited

Jasdeep

Director and Chief Executive Officer
IN: 02705303

Place : Hyderabad

Vikas Rastogi
Chief Financial

AFEPR8865H ’
Place : Hyderabad g

Gayathri

Company Secretary
AQSPC2418C
Membership No.: A41863
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 25th August, 2022



Quality Care India Limited
Standalone Statement of changes in Equity
{All amounts in  millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Notes Nuruber of shares Amouat in milliona
Balance at 1 April 2020 41,496,894 414,97
Chanpes in equity share cavital 4,13 (a)
Balance at 31 March 2021 41,496,894 41497
Changes in eauity share canital 4.13{a)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 41.4%6,894 414,97
B, Other
Attributable to owaers of Ouality Care India Limited
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Securities Capital Share options Share Retained Total
preminm reserve onistanding warrants earnings
aceount reserve
Balance: ui 1 April 2020 445324 11.31 ¥ 51 TO7 {1171 4,471.42
Profit for the year 406 70 606,70
Other loss
Balance at 31 March 2021 1131 1.51 707 £01.22
Prafit for the year 105525 1,055,215
Other comprehensive loss, net of lax {292) (2.52)
Stock for the
Balance at 31 March 2022 24 11.31 12.1¢
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Statement of chanpes in Equity refamad 1o in our repovt of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP  For and on behelf of Board of Directors of
Firm's Regisiration No; 012754N/N300016 Quality Care India Limited
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Sunit Kumar Basu
Partner Vikay
Membership No: 55000 Chief Executive Officer Chief

DIN: 08729468 DIN; AFLEPRE865H

Place : Dubai, UAE Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad

Date - 25th Auvgust, 2022 Date : 25th August, 2022 Date : 25th August, 2022

Gayathri Chand
Company Secretary
AQSPC2418C

Place: Hyderabad, [ndia Membership No : A41863
Date: 25th Augnst, 2022 Place : Hyderabad
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalene financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

The standalone financial statements of "Quality Care India Limited” (*the Company® or “QCIL”) are for the
year ended 31 March 2022. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at
#6-3-248/2, Road no. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034.

Incorporated in 1992, Quality Care India Limited is primarily engaged in providing healthcare and related
services. The Company has a network of multi-speciality hospitals across various cities in India.

The Holding Company of QCIL is Touch Healthcare Private Limited and the Ultimate Holding Company upto
21 June 2019 was Abraaj Growth Markets Health Fund General Partner Limited, United Arab Emirates
("UAE”). With effect from 21 June 2019, the Ultimate Holding Company of QCIL has changed to
Evercare Health Fund, L.P, Cayman Islands.

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 25 August 2022.

2. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Statemeant of Compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with all
material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of

the Act,

Details of accounting policies are included in Note 3
b) New amendments issued but not effective

The Mimistry of Corporate Affairs has vide notificatton dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective
1 April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

¢) Reclassifications consequent to amendments to Schedule 111

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule 11 to the Compantes Act, 2013 on 24 March 2021
to increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These
amendments are effective from | April 2021.

NAAC
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The company has reclassified comparative amounts to conform with current year presentation as per the

requirements of Ind AS 1. The impact of such classifications is summarised below
(Rs. in millions)

31 March 2021 Increase/ 31 March
Balance sheet (extract) (As previously (Decrease) 2021
reported) {Restated)
Financial assets - Loans {(current) 8.03 {(6.83) 1.80
Financial assets -Other financial assets (current) 92.72 6.83 99 355
Financial assets - Loans (non-current) 170,89 {170.89)
Financial assets -QOther financial assets (non-current) 11.24 170.89 182.13

d) Basis for measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under historical cost, except

for the following:
certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured either at fair valve or at amortised cost
depending on the classification;

. Liabilities for cash-settled share-based payment arrangements; and

. employee defined benefit liability are recognised as the net total of the fair value of plan assets, plus
actuarial losses, less actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

¢) Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in T and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except
when otherwise indicated.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use or for the purpose of better presentation of financial statements. Management evaluates all
recently issued or revised Accounting Standards on an ongoing basis and accordingly changes the Accounting
policies as applicable.

) Current and nen-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification

An asset is treated as current when it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

C,ha.l't(‘.rgd
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

A liability is current when:
It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

Al other liabilities are classified as non-current
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ¢lassified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3A. Significant accounting policies

a. Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies (such as cash, receivables, payables etc.) outstanding at the
end of reporting period, are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date,
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of

profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recogaition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other compreQC1 or profit
or loss are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or profit or loss, respectively).

Any gamns or losses arising dve to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are
accounted for in the Statement of profit and loss, except those relating to Jong-term foreign currency monetary
items.

b. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair valve measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or hability.

The princtpal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market would use
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their ec
N AAC
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalore financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are avatlable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value i1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement,

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted financial assets, and
significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon
annually by the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agrecing the information in the
valuation computation to relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

¢. Revenue recognition

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged under contract for inpatient and/or outpatient hospital services and
includes sale of medical and non-medical items. Hospital services include charges for accommodation, medical
professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratory, pharmaceutical goods among others, used in
treatments provided to the patients.

Revenue 15 recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive 1n
exchange for those products or services,

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services 1o the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does
not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statcments
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if oné of the following
criteria is met:
¢ the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s
performance as the Company performs;
the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the assct
is created or
enhanced; or
e the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and
an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed 1o date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Goods and services tax is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected by the
Company on behalf of the Government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue

Revenue from health care services and related activities

Income from healthcare services is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered unless
significant future uncertainties exists. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services rendered, to the
patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date to the extent of services rendered.
Revenue is recognised net of discounts and concessions, if any, given to the patients and disallowances
including claims.

Other operating revenue comprises revenue from varicus ancillary revenue generating activities such as
clinical research, income from outsourced facilities and academic/iraining services. The revenue in respect of
such arrangements is recognized as and when services are performed.

Unbilled receivables and Unearned revenue

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage
of time is required, as per contractual terms. Other contract assets have been disclosed as contract assets within
other assets.

Unearned revenue (“contract liability™) is recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. The billing
schedules agreed with customers could include periodic performance-based payments and/or milestone-based
progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period. Advances received for
services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognmition are met.

Contract modifications - Services added that are not distinet are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis,
while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract if the additional
services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a
new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy

Revenue from sale of pharmacy is recognised when control is transferred to the customer and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and
regarding its collection
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded vusing the effective interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial hability, When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrnment (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options} but does not consider the expected
credit losses. Interest income is included under other income in the Statement of profit and loss.

Pividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established.
d. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation autherities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction ¢ither in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept as uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures
its tax balances either based at the most likely amount or expected value, depending on which method provides
a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
bustness combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to that it
isnelo that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1o be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised cutside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income (OCI) or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Minimum Aliernate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is reasonably
certain that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset 1s written down to the extent there
is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

e. Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”)

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property,
plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrving value as the deemed cost of

the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Assel class Useful life
(years)

Buildings 60
Plant and Machinery used in medical and surgical operations 13
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Office Equipment 5
Computer equipment {end user devices) 3

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity
expects 1o use the assets beyond the lease term.

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the manageme which
are higher than those specified by Schedule [I to the Compantes Act; 2013, in order to refl
of the values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The assets’ residual values and vseful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gatns/(losses).

f. Goodwill and other intangible asscts

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, other intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred.

Other intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The
estimated useful life of other intangible assets is mentioned below:

Asset Useful life
rs
Software 3tos

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the assets and are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss (SPL) when the assets are derecognised.

Goodwill arising on business combination is recorded at excess of the consideration paid over the fair value
of the net assets taken-over and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

g. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

h. Leases
As a lessee

Leases are recogmised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liabtlity at the date at which the Icased asset
is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are mitially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

+ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any iease incentives receivable

« variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate

as at the commencement date

« amounts expecied to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

= the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily deteimined, which 1s generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary 1o obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:
« where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received
= uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by Value Ind AS Retail Limited, which does not have recent third party financing, and
+ makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.
If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the Company use that rate as a starting
point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Company is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusied against the right-of-use asset.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
« the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
» any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
* any initial direct costs, and
= restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis, If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset 1s
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less. Low-value assets comprise 1T equipment and small items of office furniture

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtatning an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. The Company
did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of  opting the
new leasing standard
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

i. Inventories

Inventory of medical supplies, drugs. and other consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
Cost of medical supplies and drugs is determined on the basis of Weighted Average Method. Stores and spares
and other consumables are valued on the basis of Weighted Average Method. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories include purchase price, import duties and other taxes excluding taxes those are
subsequently recoverable from the concerned authorities, freight inwards and other expenditure incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

i- Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are companied together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest company of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to
beneftt from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

k. Provision and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is

presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss (SPL) net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that

reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. N
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities is identified and disclosed with respect to following:

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of

the entity; or

. a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
» it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation; or
» the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor dis¢losed, unless inflow of economic benefits is probable.
However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognized.

l. Employee benefits

Short term benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits are accounted for in the period during which the services have been rendered
Post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits

Provident Fund: Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
contributions to the provident fund administered by the Central Government under the Provident Fund Act,
1952, are charged to the Statement of profit and loss (“SPL™) for the year in which the contributions are due,
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Gratuity: The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is

determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising mainly of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the Balance
Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Leave Encashment: Accrued liability for leave encashment including sick leave is determined on actuarial
valuation basis using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Method at the end of the year and provided completely in
profit and loss account as per Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits".

m  Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
easurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the fin  ial asset



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(AN amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
. Debt instruments at amortised cost

. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOC])
. Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
. Equity instruments imeasured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A *debt instrument’ 1s measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Afterinitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in Statement
of Profit and Loss {(SPL). The losses arising from impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(SPL}.
Debt instrament at FYTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractval cash flows and selling

the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractval cash flows represent SPPIL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of profit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FYTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the Statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the
same either as at FVTOCI or FYTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amoun from OCl to

Statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may tra ve
gain
012754N
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Notes to the standalone financial statements
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A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an cbligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rcwards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transterred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvernent. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that

the Company has retained.

Continuving involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are meastired at amortised cost .., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables, unbilled receivables and bank balances.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 1f, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant mcrease in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defauit events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in nce with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), at the
original estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider 0
S [
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Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

. All contractual terms of the financial insttument (including prepayment, extension, calt and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument
Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral 1o the
contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in Statement of Profit and Loss {SPL). The Balance Sheet presentation for various financial instruments is

described below:

. Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part
of the measurement of those assets in the Balance Sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.
Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the

Zross carryimg amount.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of
dircetly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings

Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss {(SPL) when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in the Statement of profit and loss.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per agreed terms. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (SPL).

A
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

n  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of

equity shares outsianding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

0. Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method. Cash Flow Statements present the cash flows
by operating, financing and investing activities of the Company. Operating cash flows are arrived by adjusting
profit or loss before tax for the effects of transactions of a non- cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past
or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of income or expense associated with investing or

financing cash flows.

For the purpose of Cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with
banks in current accounts, balances in cash credit accounts and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less.

p- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an griginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

q. Investments in subsidiaries and joint venture

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries and joint venture
at cost in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, “Separate Financial Statements’.

r. Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards/warrants granted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become eatitled to the awards/ warrants. The amount recognised as expense is based on the
estimate of the number of awards/ warrants for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of
awards/warrants that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For
share-based payment awards/warrants with non-vesting conditions, the grant dale fair value of the share-based
payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and
actual outcomes.



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

5. Measurement of profi‘Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

As permitted by the Guidance Note on division I — Ind AS Schedule 111 to the Act, the Company has elected
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the
face of the Statement of profit and loss.

In its measurement of EBITDA, the Company includes other income but does not include depreciation and
amortisation expense, impairment losses, finance cost and tax expense.

3B. Key accounting estimates and judgements
a  Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefit plan

The cost and present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and leave encashment (other long-term benefit
plan) are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation and other long-term benefits are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

b. Useful lives of depreciable and amortisable assets

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. The factors such as changes in the expected level of usage,
technological developments and product life-cycle, could significantly impact the economic useful lives and
the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation and amortization charge could be
revised and thereby could have an impact on the future years.

¢. Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill with indefinite life is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication
that the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount
of cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell,

The goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit which are benefiting from
the synergies of the acquisition and which represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable

amocunt.
d. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
mcluding the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair vaiues.

¢.  Share-based payments

The grant date fair value of employee stock options/warrants granted is recognised as an employee expense
over the period that the employee/holder becomes unconditionally entitled to the options/warrants. Estimating
fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which ts dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimation requires ination of
the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the sh

nterest rate and making assumptions about them

b—
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Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

. Impairment of non-financial assets, apart from Goodwill

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recaverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair valve less costs of
disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use
calculation ts based on a discounted cash flow (“DCF") model.

g. Recognition and measurement of provisions

The recognition and measurement of provisions is based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow
of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known as at the Balance Sheet date. Therefore, the
actual outflow of resources at a future date may vary.

h. Expected Credit Loss

The impairment provision for trade receivables and unbilied receivables is based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgements in making certain assumptions and
selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade receivables, based on the Company’s historical
cxperience towards potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the end of each repoiting period.

i. Deferred tax assets

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable prefits. The amount of total deferred
tax assets could change if estimates of projected future taxable income or if tax regulations undergo a change.

j.  Income Taxes

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case
law and the potentiai cutcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty,

k. Assessment of claims and litigations disclosed as contingent liabilities

There are certain claims and litigations which have been assessed as contingent liabilities by the Management
which may have an effect on the operations of the Company should the same be decided against the

Company.

The Management has assessed that no further provision/adjustment is required to be made in these Standalone
Financial Statements for the above maiters, other than what has been already recorded, as they expect a
favourable decision based on their assessment and the advice given by the external legal counsels/
professional advisors.

. Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with
any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company
makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is
reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the
lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over
the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the under g asset to
Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availabil  of suitable
alternatives.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.5 Investments
Particulars

(a) Non-current
Investment in equity instruments (fully paid up)

Unquoted
Investment in subsidiaries - at cost
= 844,016 (31 March 2021: 844,01 6) equity shares in Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences Private Limited

- 10,000 (31 March 2021: 10,000) equity shares in Quality Carc Jharsuguda Private Limited

-~ 8,794,000 (31 March 2021: ,794.000) equity shares in Ganga Care Hospital Limited
- 15,810 (31 Murch 2021: 15,810) cquity shares in Galaxy Carc Multispceinlty Hospital Privatc Limited

Total
Unquoted
Investment in Joint ven(ure - at cost
= 5,000 (3] March 2021: 5,000} equity shares in Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (A)

(b) Current

Investment in mutual funds
Quoted
- 23,33,355 (31 March 2021 NIL) units L&T Money Market Fund - Growth.

- 40,568 {31 March 2021: NIL} units UT! Money Market Fund - Growth.

- 2,63,003 (31 March 2021: NIL) units Nippon India Money Market Fund - Growth,
Total

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof (B)

Aggregate amount of quoted & unquoted investments (A) + (B)

Other financial assets
Farticulars

4.6

{a)} Non current

Security deposits

Fixed deposits with banks with more than 12 months maturicy*
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks

Totsl

{b} Current

Security deposits

Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks
Unbilled receivables

Others

Total

#Includes ¥25.24 (31 March 2021: 22.98) which are given as margin money to banks or against bank guarantess.

\N AAC-5

§

012

As at
31 March 2022

25296

0.10
37.94
101.26

442.26

0.05

0.05
442.31

50.00
100.10
373.55

1,023.65

1,023.65
1.465.96

Asat
3 Marck 2022

117.75
41.99
396
163.70

51,13
378
100.67
26.64
18222

As at
31 March 2021

252.96

0.10
2794
101.26

442.26

0.05

0.05
442.31

442.31

As at
31 March 2021

170.89
9.01
223

152.13

6.83
1243
76.80

349
99.55
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Notes to the standalone financial statements

{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where ctherwise stated)

4.7 (a) Deferred tax assets (net)

The Following is the analysis of deferred tax assets, net recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income

(i) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment ("PPE")
Borrowings measured at amortised cost
Provision for bad and doubiful trade receivables
Provision for bad and doubitful loans

Provision for employee benefits

Loss [rom specilied business

Indexation benefit of land

Expenses allowable on deduction of TDS

Total (A)

Deferred tax assete/(liabilities) in relation to:

Right-of-use assets
Provision for lease liabilities
Total (B}

Total (A-+1)

{ii} Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment ("FPE")
Bomowings measured at amortised cost
Provision for bad and doubtful rade receivables
Provision for bad and doubtful loats

Provision for employee benefits

Loss from specified business

Total (A )

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) im relation fo:

Right-of-use assets
Provision for lease liabilities
Tatal (B)

Total (A+B)

Note:

As at
1 April 2021

(1,03639)
(12.55)

15825
23.00
74.96

1,408.24

615.51

As at
1 April 2021

(478.20)

54022
62,02

677.53

As at
I April 2020

(24.15)
(30.75)

163.63
$7.30
62.12

268.15

As at
1 April 2020

(543.42)

570.53
27.11

295.26

{Charged)/credited
to Statement of
Profit and Loss

269.90
3.04
15.75

19.17

(257.50)

7878
20.00
149.14

(Charged)/credited
to Statement of
Profit and Loss

118.00

(106.57)

1143

160.57

{Charged)/eredited
to Statement of
Profit and Loss

1,012.24)

18.20

(53%)
(7430)

10.82
1,408.24
34534

(Charged)/credited
to Statement of
Profit and Loss

635.22

(30.31)

34n

380.25

{Charged)/credited
to other
comprehensive
income

1.52

152

{Charged)feredited
10 other
comprehensive
imcome

152

(Charged)/credited
to other
comprehensive
incame

202

2.02

{Charged)/credited
to other

comprehensive
income

2.02

As at
31 March 2022

(766.49)

©.51)
174.00
23.00
95,65
1,150.74
7878
20.00
766.17

As at
31 March 2022

(360.20)
43365
7345

83%.62

As at
31 March 2021

{1,036.39)
(12.55)
158.25

23.00
74.96
1,408.24
61551

As at

31 March 2021

(478 20)
$40.22
62.02

677.53

The Company has recognised deferred tax asset on carried forward business loss of earlier years from specified business, as defined under Section 35AD of
the Income Tax Act, 1961, The Company has earnad profits on specified business in the current year and previous year. The management has concluded that
such deferred tax asset will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on approved business plans and budgeis of the Company. These
losses can be carried forwerd for an indefinite period as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961,

4.7 (b) Non- current tax assels (net)
Particulars

Advance income tax (net of provision for taxation)
Total

d
N AAL-S
r
2 y
0127544
* Hyderabad *

Asat
31 March 2022

616.96
£16.96

As Bt
31 March 2021
§74.56
57456



Quality Care India Limited

Notes to the standalone fingncial statements
{All amounts in 2 millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.8 Other assets
Parficelars

(a} I!m!l’l"ﬂlt

Statutory dues paid under protest
Capital advances

Others

Total

{b) Current

Prepaid expenses
Advances to vendors
Others

Total

4.9 Inventories®
Particulars

Medical consumabies and phanmacy items
Other consumables
Total

* Refer note 4 14 and 4 11 for details of inventories pledged/hypothecated as security, if any

4.10 Trade receivables
FParticulars

Trade receivables from contract with eustorners — billed

Trade receivables from contract with customers - unbilled

Total

Leass: Allowance for had and doubtful trade receivables*

Total trade receivables and unbilled revenue

Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue recognised in other financial assets (refer note 4 6(b))

Particulars
Trade receivables considersd good - unsecured
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Total

Less; Allowance for bad and doubtful rede receivables®
Total trade receivables and unbilled revenne

As at
31 March 2022

58 66
10377
7.04
169.47

19.63
1968

267
T1.98

As at
31 March 2022
106 88
1108
117,96

As at
31 March 2022
1,256.52
100.67
1,357.19

(372.71)

984.43
883 81
100 67

Asat
31 March 2022
984 48
3727
1,357.19

G7271)

984.48

As at
31 March 2021

38 66
2778

7.16
93.60

3980
13.98

299
56.77

As at
31 March 202]
106 50
805
114.55

As at

31 March 2021
1,311.09

76.80

1,387.39
(452 88)

9235.01

258 21

76.80

As at
31 March 2021
935.01
452 88
1,387.89

{432 88)
935.01

*The movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful trade receivables for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as follows:
For the year ended

Openiag balance at begloning of the yesr
Provision made during the year (refer note 4 24)
Bad debis written off during the year

Closing balance at end of the year

of trade receivables and unbilled as at March 2022

¥1 March 2022
452.88
50.87

(131.04)

37271

Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Particulars Unbilled  Not due Less than 6 months - 1
1-2 years
6 months year

Undisputed trade receivables and unbilled

—Considered good 100 67 32723 483K 7285

=which have signihcant 61.91 109 03 45 26 £9.30
increase in credit risk

-Allowance for bad and (61 91) {10903} (45.26) (69.30)
doubtful trade receivables
Total 100.67 327.23 483.70 72.89

N AAC 1
3 r
012754n /N5
h w

More than
3 years

33.56

(33.56)

31 March 2021
46826

116.88

(132.26)

452,88

Total

084.48
mnn

(372 1)

984.48



Quality Care Indis Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Outstanding for following perieds from the due date

of trade receivables and ns at March plirg
Parti -
articulars Unbilled  Not due Less than & mionths - 1
6 months year

-Considered good 7680 33173 434 10 e

-which have sigmificant 53185 7725 2180
increase m credit sk

-Allowancee for bad and {33 85) {77.25) {21.80)

doubtful trade receivables
Total 76.80 33732 434.10 86.79

4.11 Cash and bank balances

4.12

Particnlars

0) Cash and ensh equivalents
Balances with banks

-in current accounts

-in cash credit accounts®
Cash on hard

b) Other bank balances
Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months**
Earmarked balances with bank in current account®*#

Total

1-2 years

142 §7

(14287

2-3 years

5193

(5193)

More than Total
3 years
93501
10518 452 88
{105.1%) (452.88)
935.01
As al Axs al

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

128 41 424 2%
8894 139384
.64 790
223.99 572.03
224 44 3197
1409 1409
238.53 356.06
462.52 928.09

*The Company has availed cash credit facilitics amounting to 2 Nil {31 March 2021: 2 Nil) from Union Bank of India {formerly Andhra Bank). Cash
credit is secured against first charge on inventory and trade receivables and second charge an Property, plant and equipment of the Company The cash

credit is repayzble on demand and carries an interest rate of one year MCLR + 0 6% per annuim.

**Includes €32 43 (31 March 2021: T2 59) which are given as margin money to banks or against bank guaranices

***Balances in current account includes 14 09 (31 March 2021; 14.09} which are restrictive in nature as they are earmarked funds payable to the
minority share holders of Care Institute of Medical Sciences Limited, which was amalgamated with the Company with effact from
1 April 2016 in accordance with the terms of the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad vide its Order

dated 5 May 2017 (Alsc reler note 4 18)

Loans
Particulars

Non-Current

Loans to related parties

Less: Loss allowance
Total

Current

Advances to employses
Advances to related parties
Total

N AAC

012754

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

65.83 65.83
63.53 65.83
{65 83) (65.83)
018 0238

1.52
0. 1.50



Quality Care India Limited
Notes (o the stundalone financial statements
(All amounts in 2 millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4,13 (a) Equity share capital
Particul Asat 31 March As at 31 March
iculars 2022 2021

Authorised Share capital
79,500,000 (31 March 2021: 79,500,000) Equity shares of T10

cach 795 00 795 00

Tatal authorised share capital 795.00 T95.00

Isgued, subseribed and fully paid up shores

41,496,894 (31 March 2021: 41,496,8%4) Equity shares of T10

each 41497 41497

Total issued, snbscribed and fully paid-up shares 414,97 414.97

Notes:

(i) Recomciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning of the year and end of the reporting perind

Equity Shares

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of Arount Number of Amount

shares (in millions) shares (in millions}

At the beginning of the year 41,496,894 41497 41,496,894 414,97

lssued during the year

Balance at the end of the vear 41.496.8%4 414.97 41.496.894 414.97

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par vatue of 210 per share Each holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vote per share. Where dividend is proposed
by the Board of Directors, it is subject to the approval of the sharchelders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

(lii) Equity shares held by the Holding Company

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Nuomber of Aniount Number of Amount
shares (in millions) shares (in milliors)
Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Mauritius 39782603 397 83 39,782,603 397.83
Particulars of shareholders more than 5% shares
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of MNumber of
shares % holding shares % holding
Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Maucitius 39,782,603 95 87% 39,782,603 95 87%

{¥) The Company has not bought back any equity shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date.

(vi) The Company has not issued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the last Balance Sheet
dare

d
W AAC-S

O01275aN
* ad ¥



Quality Care India Limited
Notes (o the standalone financial statements
(A1l amounts in Z milliens, except share data and where otherwise stated)

(vii) Equity shares reserved under the Employee Stock Option Plan and Share warrant plan: For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option
plan (ESOP) and share wacrant plan of the Company, refer note 4 39 and 4.40.

Detalls of the Promoter/Promoter
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 % Change
Promoter/Promoter Group Name during the year
Number of Shares Y holding  Number of Shares % holding -
Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Mauritius 39.782 603 95 7% 39782 603 95.87%
Total 39.782.603 95.87% 39.782.603 95.57%

* % change during the year has been computed on the basis of the nurnber of shares at the beginning of the year

4.13 (b) Other equity

Reserves and surnlus

Partleulars Securities Caoltal reserve  Share ontions  Share warrants]  Retatned Total

Balance at 1 April 2020 445724 1131 751 FO7 (11 71} 447142
Profit for the year 60670 606.70
Other loss 377 3TN

7 7
Profit for the year 1,055 25 1,055,285
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (292} {2.92)
Stock for the 7500 {7.07 14 58y
at M March 2022 1131 10

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium
Securitigs premium is used to record the premium on issue of equity shares It is utilised in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Aet™)

Capital reserve

Capital reserves comprises of:

(i} 4 25 towards excess of net nssets taken over the consideration paid as part of business combination This was created in accordance with the composite scheme of
amalgamation, sanctioned by the High Court for the States of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh vide its Order dated 18 August 2016, for the amalgamation of Quality Care Hi-
tech City Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary, with the Company during the year ended 31 March 2016

{1t} 7 06 represents forfeited money received against share warrams in the earlier years

Sharc options outstanding account
The fair value of the equity settled share based payment options is recognised to share options cuistanding account over the vesting peried of such options The Company
transfers the proportionate amounts, outsianding in this aceount, in relation to options exercised to securities prentium ob the date of exercise of such options.

Share warrants reserve
The fair value of the equity warrants is recognised to share warrants reserve over the vesting period of such wamanis The Company transfers the proportionate amounts,
outstanding in this reserve, in relation 1o warrants exercised to securities premium on the date of exercise of such warrants

N OAAC.

0212754N
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Notes to the standalone fimancial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.14 Long-term borrowings

=

=4

iv

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Non-current Current* Non-current  Current*

Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans from banks

- HSBC - Tem loan (refer note i) 85.53

- Axis Bank - Tern loan I (refer note ii) 259.13 52.17 31130 51.30

- Axis Bank - Tem loan IT (refer note iii} 492,58 99.18 591.76 97.52
Term loans from banks {A) 837.24 151.35 903.06 148.82
'T'erm loans from financial institutions

- NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited (refer noie iv) 7200.49 140,90 £61.38 137.48
Term loans from financial institutions (B) 720.49 140.9%0 86138 137.48
Total (A+B) 1.557.73 29225 1,764.44 286.30

Notes:
*Refer note 4.16 for details.
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities excluding interest accrued**

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance at beginning of the year 2,050.74 2,129.74
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 85.53 1,075.86
Repayments of long-term borrowings (286.29) (1,210.86)
Others 56.00
Closing balance at end of the year 1.849.98 2.050.74

**Borrowings include current and non-current portions of term loans from banks and financial institutions.

Reconciliation of interest accrued on above borrowings

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balancc at beginning of the year 37
Interest expenses 169.02 271.75
Interest paid {169.02) (218.94)
Others (55.98)

Closing balance at end of the year

HSBC Bank Term Loan- Secured by first pari passu charge on immovable & movable Property, plant and equipment all present and firfure assei.
Second pari passu charge on stocks & receivables all present and fiture assets towards overdrafl and working capital loan facilities.

The loan is repayable in 8 years (Frequency of Repayment: Monthly) carries an interest raie of repe rate + 3% p.a (31 March 2022: 7.00% p.2.) (31
March 2021: Nil per annum) payable at monthly intervals and moratorium period of 2 years,

i Axis Bank term loan - Secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable property, plant and equipment, present and future of the

Company and also hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets both present and future of the Company,

Second pari passu charge over all present and future current assets of the Company. The said loan is repayable in 6 years and 7 months (frequency
of repayment: monthly instalments ranging from ¥2.17 to ¥5.22) and carries an interest rate of repo rate + 3% p.a. {31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.} (31
March 2021: 7% p.a) payable at monthly intervals.

Axis Bank term loan - Secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immoveble property, plant and equipment, present and future of the
Company and also hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets both present and future of the Company.

Second pari passu charge over all present and future current asset of the Company. The said loan is repayable in 6 years and 7 months (frequency of
repayinent: monthly instalments ranging from ¥4.13 to 29.92) and camies an interest rate of repo rate + 3% p.a. (31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.) (31
March 2021: 7.00% p.a.} payable at monthly intervals.

NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limiled - The loan is secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable property, plani and
equipment, present and future of the Company, excluding MRI machine exclusively charged to Siemens Financial Services Private Limited.

Second pari passu charge over all present and future current assets of the Company. The loan carries an interest rate of five year NIIF [FL
benchmark rate + 0.4% (frequency: monthly instalments ranging from 6.19 to 14.86) (As on 31 March 2022: 9.30% per annum, As on 31 March
202t: 9.30% per annum).

IN AAC
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Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.15 Employee benefit abligations
Particulars

lgl Egn-currem
Frovision lor employee benefits

Gratuity {refer note 4.32)
Compensated absences

Total
{b) Current

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 4 32)
Compensated absences

4.16 Short-term
Particolars

Secured - at amortised cost
Current maturities of term loans from banks (refer note 4 14}

Current maturities of term loans from financial institutions (refer note 4 14)

Notes:

4.17 Trade payables
Particulars

{a) Trade payable : Micro and small emerprises, (refer nole 4.313
Subrotal {a)

(b) Trade payable : others
(c) Tcade payable to related parties; (tefer note 4.33)

Subtotal (b)
as on 31, 20221
Particnlars Unbilled
Undisputed irade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprisas
Others 226.50
Total 226.50
of trade payables as on March 31, 2021
Particulars Unbilled
Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others 118.26
Total 118.26

4.18 Other financial labilities
Particulars

Capital creditors

Dues to related parties
Employee benefit payables
Retention money and deposits
Other payables*

Total

Not
due

19.01
773,82
79z.83

Not
due

703.08
79308

Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

91 86 96,35

27 67 25.33

119.53 121.67

54 25 41.89

2002 11.90

74.27 .79
Asat A4S at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

15135 148.82
140 90 137 48
291.2% 236,30
Asat As 8t
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2167 21.87
2167 21.97
111376 959 44
21.29 [1.63
1,135.08 971.07
1,156.72 993,04
Dutstanding for following periods
firnm the dne date
Less More Total
than 1 y;::'s y:;?‘s thana
vear Years
2.48 0a7 .01 21.67
100.27 17.44 4.08 12.07 1,135.05
L0275 17,61 4.95 12.08 L1567
Quitetarting tor fallowing periods
from the due date
Less More Total
than 1 y:;_s y:;"" than 3
wear Vears
21.95 2197
17.61 12.81 4.38 4.93 47107
so.58 12,81 4.38 4.93 99304
As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2056 16.11
- 5537
96.65 72.66
633 719
1514 2525
138.73 176,58

*Gther payables includes T14.09 (31 March 2021: ¥14.09) payable to the minority share holders of Care Institute of Medical Sciences Limited, which was amalgamated

with the Company with effect from 1 April 2016 in accordance with the terms of the scheme of

Hyderabad vide its Order dated 5 May 2017 {refer note 4.11)

4.1% Other liabilities
Particulars
Current
Statutory 1ax payables
Uneamned revenue {refer note 4 43) N AAC 5
=
022754n

pad ™

1
-4

tion sanclioned by the National Company Law Tribunal,

As at Ag at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

7374 4460
408 3342
78.72 78.02
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Naotes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, ¢xcept share data and where otherwise stated)

4.20 Revenue from operations
Particulars

Revenue from healthcare services
Revenue from outpatient pharmacy
Othcer operating income

Total

Revenue disaggregation geography wise is as follows:
Particulars

India
Other than India

Reconciliation of contract price to revenue recognised from healtheare services is as follows:

Particulars

Revenue from healthcare services, gross
Less: Expected disallowances
Revenue from healthcare services

4,21 Other income
Particulars

{(2) Interest income
on financial assets { bank deposits ) measured at amortised cost
on income tax refund
on financial assets carried at amortised cost
{b) Other non-operating income
Net gain arising on mutual funds designated at FVTPL
Lease remeasurement Gain/Loss
Government grant*
Miscellaneous income
(c) Income/liabilities written back from operating activities**
Total

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2022

3 March 2021

9,648.39 7,660.20
537.49 441.96
37.19 3897
10,223.07 8,141.13
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
10,202.69 8,127.42
20,38 13.71
10,223.07 8,141.13
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
9,773.62 7,759.79
(125.23) (99.59)
9,648.3% 7,660.20
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022

13.78

9.8!

26.95
2,06

7.04

59.64

31 March 2021

2591
21.26
7.53

3.06
16,74
1.05
75.58

*Government grant relates to reimbursement against expense incurred for Covid-19 related response. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other

contingencies attached 1o these grants.

**Represents operating liabilities and provisions no longer required written back amounting o ¥ Nil (31 March 2021: 21.05). These operating

expenses were adjusted in computation of the Company’s EBIDTA for such years,

4.22 Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items
Particulars

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Inventory at the end of the year
Total

4.23 Employee benefits expense
Particulars

Salaries, wages and bonus

Share hased compensation expense

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note {(a) below)
Cratuity and compensaied absences

Staff welfare expenses

Total

*Net of amount capitalised (refer note 4.29)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

106.50
106.88

(0.38)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1.352.7%
68.32
87.34
45.05
23.48

1.576.98

{a) For the year ended 31 March 2022, the amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to provident

March 2021
d

WASC S
=
012754y
ad "

state insurance scheme aggregates to 28.33 (31 March 2021: 25.63).

For the year ended
31 March 2021

182.85
106.50
76.35

For the year ended
31 March 2021

1,193.66

75.51
25.11
35.28
1,329.56

79.01 (31
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Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.24 Other expenses*

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Power and fuel 210.86 202.09
Rent (refer note 4.38) 12.68 7.33
Repairs and Maintenance

- Buildings 39.26 3677

- Plant and machinery and others 29835 186.72
Hospital maintenance 75.71 79.07
Housekeeping charges 259.09 222 64
Security charges 94 86 86.15
Insurance 8.0% 10.83
Water charges 22.53 24.63
Bocks and periodicals 5.5% 6.39
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 111.29 141.63
Travelling and conveyance 3865 13.74
Communication expenge 30.59 27.53
Marketing and business promotion expense 21460 146.95
Allowance for bad and doubtful trade receivables 50.87 116.88
Advances and loans written off 210
Printing and stationery 32.02 25.36
Payments to the auditor (refer note (a) below) 5.50 303
Legal and professional charges 75.02 53.76
Catering charges, net 111,57 96.98
Diagnostics expenses 55.14 48.42
Contribution towards Corporate social responsibility (refer note (b) below) 0.52
Professional charges to doctors 2,353.69 1L.E11.95
Property, plant and equipment written-off’ 529 17.75
Loss on sale of Property. plant and equipment net 248
Bank charges 5.80 5.52
Miscellaneous expenditure 6.22 19.78
Total 4,126.27 3,401.50

*Net of amount capitalised (refer noic 4.29)
Note (a): Details of paymenis to auditors

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
I March 2022 31 March 2021

For audit 5.50 530

For reimbursement of expenses 0.03
5.50 5.53

Note (b): Details of Corporate social responsibility

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contribution to Telengana Sikh Society - Eradicating Hunger by donation of food 0.52
Accrual towards unspent obligations in relation to:
Omngoing project
Other than ongoing projects
Total 0.52
Details of CSR ex under Section of the Act in of other than
Amount deposited
) in Amount Amount
Balance a9 at Lst April, 2021 ng::;g:‘li::l:::: r:::::;i:’ﬂ: spent during Balance as at ¥1st March, 2022
the Act the year the year
within & months
NIL NIL 0.52 0.52 NIL
d .4
N AAC 5
s
'S o o
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4,25 Finance costs
Particulars

Interest on borrowings

Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 4.38)
Others

Total

4.26 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amoriisation on other intangible assets
Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Total

4
MC-BOQJ

g

* ad *

For the year ended
31 March 2022

169.02
131.58

35.42
336.02

For the year ended
31 March 2022

323.69

68.12
323.22
715.03

For the year ended
31 March 2021

27175
14570

31.35
448.80

For the year ended
31 March 2021

317.01

48.42
319.38
684.81
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(Al amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.27

4.28

Income tax expense/ (henefit)
Particulars

Income tax expense/{benefit) reported im the Statement of Profit and Loss
Tax expense comprises of:

Current tax expense

Income tax relating to carlier periods

Deferred tax expense/(benefit)

Reconciliation of tax expense/ (benefit) and the accounting profit multiplied by India‘s tax rate:
Particulars

Profit before tax
Tax at the Indian tax rate 34.944% (31 March 2021: 34.944%)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductiblef(taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Effect of income not subject to tax nnder the Income Tax Act, 1961

Previously unrecognised tax losses from specified business, as defined under Section 35AD of the Income
Tax Act, 1961, now recognised (net of deferved tax liability)

Effect of taxable profits from specified business, as defined under Section 35AD of the Income Tax Act,
1961, adjusted against brought forward specified business tax losses
Adjustments for advance written-off not allowed under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Indexation benefit on land

Income 1ax pertzining to carlier years

Other adjustments
Tax expense

Earnings per equity share (EPES)
Particulars

Profit for the year
Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares considered in computation of Basic EPES
Dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and warrants
Weighted average number of equity shares considered in computation of Dilutive EPES

Basic Earnings per equity share in ¥ (absolute number)
Diluted Earnings per equity share in T {absolute number)

Mote:
Outstanding employee stock options and warrants has been settled duning the year ended 31 March 2022.

Chartered

Wa

For the year ended
31 March 2022

245.00

22.15
(160.57)

106.58

For the year ¢ended
31 March 2022

1,161.83
405.99

(3.43)

(257.45)

(78 78)

22,15

18.10
106.58

For the year ended
31 March 2022
1,055.25
41,496,304
41,496,894

41,496,894
41,496,894

2543
2543

For the year ended
31 March 2021

11851
4569
(380 25)
(216.05)

For the year ended
31 March 2021
390.65
136.51

(2.63)

(371 85)

(94.37)

74.30

435.69

(3.70)
(216.03)

For the year ended
31 March 2021
606.70
41,496,894
41,496,894

41,496,894
165,237
41,662,131

14.62
14.56



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.29

4.30

4.31

(i
(ii}
(iii)

(iv)

)

Incidental expenditure during the construction period

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has capitalised the following amounts to the cost of Property, plant and
equipment / Capital work in progress (CWIP). Consequently, amounts disclosed under the respective noles are after adjusting
amounts capitalised by the Company,

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance (A) 187.18 183.36
Employee benefits expense (refer mote 4.23)
Salaries and wages (.26
Total (B) 0.26
Other expenses (refer note 4.24)
Rates and taxes 2.58 2.60
Others 1.76 1.22
Total (C) 4.34 3.32
Total (D=A+B+(C) 191.78 187.18
Amount capitalized to Property, plant and equipment (E)
Balance carried forward to work in 191.78 187.18

Segment [nformation

The management has assessed the identification of reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108
“Operating Segment™ (“Ind AS 108") and believes that the Company has only one reportable segment namely ‘Medical and Health
care services',

Geographical information
Revenue disaggregation geography wise information has been disclosed under note 4.20 to the standalone financial statements
Further 100% of Company's non-current assets as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were located in India.

Major customers

The Company has no single customer who has contributed more than 10% of the Company's total revenue during the year ended 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

Details of dues to Micro and Smail Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The creditors covered by Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“the MSMED Act, 2006™) have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Disclosures in respect of the amounts payable to such parties are
given below:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
The principal amount remaining unpaid as at end of the year 21.67 2197
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid on (i) above
Amount of interest paid by the Co terms 16, of the MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of payments ond th date during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but
interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid)

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Notes:

() Explanation- The terms ‘appointed day®, ‘buyer’, “enterprise’, ‘micro enterprise’, ‘small enterprise’ and ‘supplier®, shall have the

same meaning as assigned to them under clauses (b}, {d), (e}, (h}, (m) and {n) respectively of section 2 of "the MSMED Act, 2006.”

{b) This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

Company.

WP N A&C
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.32 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company provides its employees with benefits under a defined benefit plan, referred to as the "Gratuity Plan". The
Gratuity Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive 15 days salary for
each year of completed service at the time of retirement/ exit in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan is
managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of
Gratuity Act,1972 as applicable as at the Balance Sheet date and accordingly the maximum payment is restricted to 2 per
employee.

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan
and the amounts recognised in the Company's standalone financial statements as at the reporting dates:

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation 153.09 143.05
Fair value of plan assets 6.98 4.81
Net defined benefit liability 146.11 138.24
Non-current 91.86 96.35
Current 54.25 41.89

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit liability

and its components:

i) Reconcilistion of present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 143.05 133.97
Benefit payments from plan assets (21.24) (22.04)
Current service cost 18.59 18.17
Interest expense 9.15 837
Actuarial losses/(gams)
- changes in financial assumptions (1.38) (0.37)
- experience adjustments 4.92 4.95
Defined benefit obligation at the closing of the year 153.09 143.05

i) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 4.81 3.7%
Contributions 23.89 23.95
Benefits paid (21.24) (22.04)
Intetest income 0.42 0.32
Actuarial (losses)/gains (0.90) (1.21)
Plan assets at the closing of the year 6.98 4.81

iii) Net defined benefit liability 146.11 138.24
C Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 18.59 18.17
Interest on net defined liability / (asset) 8.73 8.05
Total cost, included in 'employee benefits expense’ 27.32 26.22

Chartereg
N AAC-500,
3
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.32 Employee benefits (continued)

D Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation (3.54) (4.58)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (0.50) (1.21)
Total cost recognised in the other comprehensive income {4.44) (5.79)

E Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Attrition rate 40.00% 33.00%
Discount rate 7.34% 6.91%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Note:

a) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

F Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within 1 Year 5425 41.89
2 to 5 years 99.11 93.05
6 to 10 years 26.36 33.26
179.72 168.20

G Sensifivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, can affect the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Ye) (%)
Discount rate  (+ 1% movement) (2.00) (2.50)
Discount rate (- 1% movement) 2.10 2.60
Salary egcalation (+ 1% movement) 2.50 3.00
Salary escalation (- 1% movement) (2.40) (2.80)

H The Company expects to contribute T30.00 as its coniribution to gratuity within one year from the year ended 31 March
2022,

N AAC
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Quality Care India Limited

MNotes to the staudalone financial statements
{all amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where atherwise stated)

4.33 Related party disclosore

(8} Mame of related parties and nature of relatonshio
Nature of relationshio
Subsidiaries

Key Manapement Personnel (KMPYy

Holding Company and Ultimate Holding Company

Eutities im which Director is interested

Sister entity of ultimate holding company
Joint venture

(b) Transactions

Particulars

Trangactions during the year
L. Galaxy Care Multispeciality Hospital Privete Limited
Purchasé of drugs and consumables (COYID Vaccine)
Sale of drugs and consumebles (COVID Vaccine)
2. Ganga Care Hospital Limited
Reumnt 1 of exp
Repayment of loan
3. Ramkrishoa Care Medical Sci Private Limited
Professional and business services
Purchase of Praperty, plant and equipment
4, AKNA Medical Private Limited
Purchase of drugs and consumables
5. Indian Medironic Private Limited
Purchase of drups and consumables
6. Asia Healthcare Holding Advisory LLP
Professional and business services.
7. Madhavi Darbha
Short-term and post employment benefits™
8. Vikas Rastogi
Short-term and post employment benefits*
9. Dr. Raajiv Singhal
Short-term and pos1 employment benefits®
10, Jasdeep Singh
Short-term and post employment benefils®
11, Sandeep Kumar
Short-term and post employment benefits*
12. Gayathri Chamdramoulieswaran
Short-term and post employment benefits*
13, Evercare Group Management Lid
Revenue from professional services

{c ' Balances outstandine from/ to the reloted marties
Particulars

Names

Ganga Care Hospital Limited

Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences Private Limited
Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited
Quality Care Jharsuguda Private Limited

tadhavi Darbha, Group Financial Officer (upte 31 October 2020}

Dr. Ragjiv Singhal, Group Chief Executive Officer (upio 15 Qutoher 2020)

Jacdeep Sinph, Chief Executive Officer (w e [ 19 October 2020)

Sandeep Kumar, Chief Financial Officer {w.e £, 27 Ociober 2020 and upto 24 May 2021)

Vikas Rastogi, Chief Financial Officer (w e.f. 24 May 2021}

Gayathn Chandramoulieswaran, Company Secretary (w.e T 21 Janoary 202 1)

Touch Healtheare Private Limited, Mauritius, Helding Company

Evercare Health Fund, L.P, Cayman lslands, Ultimate Holding Company

AKMA Medical Private Limited
Indian Medtronic Private Limited
Asia Healtheare Holding Advisory LLP

Evercare Group Management Lid
Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited

year
31 March 2022

390
0.80

3537

0.06
407
4332

g

764

4294
652
097

17 50

As at 31 March 2022

Balances outstanding fromy to the related parties as ar 31 Mar 2022

1. Ganga Care Hospitsl Limited

year
31 March 2011

17.85

504

.14

20.03

As at 31 March 2021

Advances payable 55,37
L. Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited

Advanee receivable 1.51

Trade payable 152
3. Quality Care Health Services 1ndia Private Limited

Loans receivable** 6583 65.83
4. Quality Care Jharsuguda Private Limited

Advance receivable 00l
5. AKNA Medical Private Limited

Trade payable 0.14 Ll
6. Indian Meditronic Private Limited

Trade payable 1957 19 89
6. Evercare Group Management Ltd

356

* Short-term and post employment benefits, disclosed above, does not include those benefits which are computed for the Company

** The amount as at 31 March 2022 aggregating to 63 83 (31 March 2021: ¥65.83) is provided for in the hooks
INAAC.S
- 3
O12754n
* *



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4,34 Categories of financial instruments and their fair values
The carrying amount of all financial assets and financial liabilities appearing in the financial statements are reasonable approximation of their Fair

values.

Categories of financial instruments

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
FVYTFPL* FVYTOCI# Amortised cost FVTFPL FVTOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets
Investments 1,023.65
Trade receivables 984.48 935.01
Cash and cash equivalenis 223.99 572.03
Other bank balances 238.53 356.06
l.oans 0.18 1.80
Other financial assets 345.92 281.68
Total financial assets 1.023.65 1.793.18 2,146.58
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
FVTPL FYTOC1 Amortised cost FVYTPL FYTOCI Amortised cost
liahilities
Botrowings 1.849.98 2.050.74
Trade payables 1,156.72 993.04
Lease liabilities 1,240.99 1,541.34
Other financial liabilities 133.73 176.58
Total financial liabilities 4.386.42 4.762.20

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at an amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a curremt
irunsaction belween willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sals,

*FVYTPL - Fair value through Profit and Loss
#FVTOCI - Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

012 754N
* erabad *



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise slated)

4.35 Financial instroments risk management

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company's Board of Drirectors have an overall respensibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework The Board
of Directors have established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsibie for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.
The Committee teports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s principal financial liabilitics, comprises of borrowings, wade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations. The Company”s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and bank balances that the
Company derives directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL investments.

The Company is exposed primarily to Credit Risk, Liquidily Risk and Market risk (fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency rates), which may
adversely impact the fair value of its ftnancial instruments. The Company assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and secks to mitigate
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

A. Credit visk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will ot meet its ohligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks Credit risk arises primarily
from financial assets such as trade receivables, investmenis, balances with banks, loans and other receivables.
Credit nisk is controlled by analysing crexit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granied after obtaining
necessary approvals for credit. Financial instraments that are subject to concentrations of ¢redit risk principally consist of trade receivables, investments, cash
and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of the eredit
Fisk.
Exposure to credit risk:
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximurn credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk was 22,716.08 and 32,069.78 as of 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of financial asscis,
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including fixed deposits, were either past due or impaired as al 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
Financial assets that are past due but not impaired : Refer note 4,10 - Trade Receivables
Ind AS requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a financial asset or a
group of financial assets are impaired Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal ko 12 months expected credit loss or at an amount equal to the
life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial assets have increased significantly since the initial recognition, The Company has nsed a
practical expedient by computing the expected eredit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account
historical ¢redit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

4.35 Financial instraments visk management {continued}

B. Liquidity risk
As at 31 March 2022 Up to 1 vear Muore than 1 year Total
Bortowings 24225 1,557.73 1.849.98
Trade payables 1,156.72 1.156.72
Lease liabilities 227.51 131348 1,240.99
Other financial liabilities 138.73 138.73
Total 1.815.21 287121 4,386.42
As at 31 March 2021 Upto | vear More than 1 vear Total
Borrowings 286,30 1.764.44 2,050.74
Trade payabies 993,04 993.04
Lease liabilities 349.58 1,192.26 1,541.84
Other financial liabilities 176.58 176.58
Total 1,805.5¢ 2.956.70 4,762.20

C. Market risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future eamings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is
attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, such as foreign currency denominated receivables and payables and variable interest rates of short-
term and long-tertm borrowings. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk:
Interest rate tisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insorument shall fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with floating interest rates.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, every 50 basis point decrease in the floating interest rate component applicable to the Company's
borrowings would have increased the profi belore tax approximately by ¥10.25 and 11.36 respectively. A 30 basis point increase in floating interest rale
would have led to an equal but opposite effect.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone (inancial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except sharc data and wherc otherwise stated)

4.35 Financial instraments risk managenzent (continued)

i
.

Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency visk is the risk that the fair value or fiture cash flows of an exposure shall fluctuate becanse of changes in forgign exchange rates. The
Company's exposure 10 the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relales primarily to the Company’s operating activitics (when revenue or expense
including capital expenditure is denominated in a forcign currency). The cxposurs of entity to foreign currency risk is very limited on account of limited
transactions in foreign currencies.

The carrying amount of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary items in ¥ as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 202 1: NIL

4.36 Capital risk management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, ¢apital includes issued equity capital, scouritics premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholders value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requircments of the financial covenants.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payments to the sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The Company’s policy 1s to keep the gearing
ratio below 30%. The Company includes within net debt, borrowings {long and short term), less cash and cash equivalents.

Ag at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Bomrowings (note 4. 14 and 4.16) 1,849.98 2,050.74
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 4.12(a)) {223.99) {572 03)
Less: Other bank balances {note 4.12(b}) (238.51) (356.06)
Less: Investment it mutual funds (note 4.5(b)) {1,023.65)
Net debt (A) 363.81 1,122,065
Total equity (B) 6,527.07 5.489.32
Net debt and total equity (A) + (B) 6,890.88 661197
Gearing ratio (%) 5.28% 16.98%

In order to achicve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets the financial covenants
attached to the borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants woutd permit the lenders to immediately ¢all back the borrowings There has been no
breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowings during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

No chanpes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing the capital during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

AAC 5004
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Motes to the standalone financial ts
{All amounts in ¥ millinns, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4,37 Contingent liabilities and commitments

4.38

(a) Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at
31 March 2022

Claims against the Company not acknowiedged a5 debis
- Disputed disallpwances, deemed dividend under Section 2(22)¢) and deemsd income undse Seclion 56(2)(viib) of the 2778
[neome Tax Act, 1961

under the Andhra Pradesh General Sales Tax Act, 1957 136
- Diisputed wages of specific employees under the Minimum Wapes Act, 1948 119
- Disputed lusury tax levied on bed charges under the Telangana Tax on Luxuries Act, 1987 11722
rendered to specific calegorics 6815
the Finance Act, 1994
- Drisputed lewy of Employee state insurance provisions on certain employees under the Employees' State Insurance Act, 26
1948
- Digputed levy of Provideni fund provisions on cerlain employees under the Employees’ Provident Funds and: 877
Miscellansous Provisions Act, 1952 '
Disputed tax levied on specific building of the Company under the Expenditure Tax Act, 1987 7.83
Patient legal claims are pending with various Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission 20308
legal claims pending under the various Stacutory Acts 9968
Guarantees excluding financial guarantees 187.93
(b} Commitmenis
Particalars Asat
31 March 2022
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net oF advances) 43117
Leases

As at
31 March 2021

7265

356
319
11722
6762

126

877

783
74 95
7913

37.80

Agat
31 Miarch 2021

18282

The Company has tzken hospital buildings, plant and machinery and vehicles on operating lease having a term ranging from 1 year to 15 years. The lease has an

escalation clause in the range of 5% to 10% per annum  The Company obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

The Company aise has certain lease of building with lease terms of |2 months or less The Company applies the ‘short term lease' recognition exemption for these

leases.

Carrying amount of lease liabilities and movement during the year

Particulars As at
1 March 2022
Batance at the beginning of the year 1,541.84
Additions during the year 65 88
Deletions during the year {6783y
Finance cost accrued during the year 13158
Other adjusiments {2749)
Payment of lease liabilities {202 99)
Lease linbilities as at the end of the year 1,240.99
Current lease Liabilities 227 51
Non-current lease liabilities 101348
The effcetive interest cate for lcase liabilitics is 9 55% with maturity between 2020-2034,
Following amounts have been recognised in the Statement of Profi¢ and Loss:
Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2022
Depreciation on Right-of-nse assets m»n
[mierest on lease liabilitics 13158
Total amount recognived in the Statement of profit snd loss 454,80
Details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis are as follows:
Particulars As at 31 March
1022
Less than one year 33506
One 1o five years 1,006.39
More than five years 37171
Tatal 1,713.16

Asat
31 March 2021
1,632 71
13273

145 70

(14 93)
{354 37N
1,541,34

349 58
1,19226

For the year
ended
3 March 2021
31938
145.70
465.08

As at 31 March
2021

391 13

1,174 31

546 86

2,112.38

The Company does not face a significant liquidity rick with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the oblipations related to lease

liabilities as and when they fall due

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was $12 68 for the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 iarch 2021, T7 33}
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Quality Care [ndia Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in Z millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4,41 Tramsfer pricimg
The Company has entered into commercial transactions with its associated enterprises which are subject 1o assessment and test of being transactions carried out at an

"armi's length price," in accordance with the provisions of chapter X of the Income Tax Aect, 1961.

The Company has established a comprehensive systemn of maintenance and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 Management is of the opinion that its transactions with associated enterprises are at arm's length. Therefore, the legislation shall not have any impact on

the standalone financial statements.

4,42 in subsidiaries and venmture:

Owrership interest in the Company (%)

Particulars Nature of relationship Country of As at31 March 2022 As 2¢ 31 March

incorparation nn

CGiangn Care Hospital T.imited Subgidiary Tndia 74 13% 74.13%
Ramkrishnz Care Medical Sciences Private Limited Subsidiary India 56 33% 56 33%
Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited Subsidiary India 76.00% 76 00%
Quality Care Jharsuguda Private Limited Subsidiary India 100.00% 100 00%
Joint venture India 50 00% 50.00%

Privale

4.43 Unearoed revenue
The lollowing table discloses the movement in the unearned revenue durine the year ended 31 Mareh 2022 and 31 March 2021:
For the year ¢cmded  For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 3342 42 40
Revenue recognised during the year 3342 42.40
408 3342
4.98 33.42

Balance at the end of the vear

In 2009, the Company had entered into an agreement with Andhra Pradesh [ndustrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC") to acquire a land parcel and
development of 2 Health City along with allied infrastructure (“Project”) in Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh. Pursuant 1o the terms of the said agreetnent, the APIIC
has allotted 4.18 acres of land to the Company upon payment of INR 105 55 and included in Property, plant and equipment [refer note 4.1 ()] subjected 1o conditional
registration of land in favor of the Company upon completion of the Project by 30 June 2020 The company has received extension of timeline from APIIC tilt
December, 2023. Further the company bhas incurred sum aggregating Rs. 564.17 (31 March 2021: Rs. 476.64} towards land development and civil construction there
on which are included in capital work-in-progress {refer note 4 2) Based on internal evaluation, the management of the Company is confident of completing the

project within stipulated timelines.

4.44

Chartereq 4

Ws
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise siated)

(i

{in)

(iii}

(i

A

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Note 4.45 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule [1I

Dretails of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Borrowing secured against current assets
The company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements
of current assets filed by the company with banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts,

Wilful defaunlter
The company has not been declered wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or govemment or any govermment authority

Relationship with struck off companics
The company has ro transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1955

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premiwm

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shail:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall;
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persoms or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the baoks of account

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year

Valuation of Property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property
The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or
Previous year.

IN AAC.5

L3
01275 4p: /85
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Quoality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone flnancial statements

(All amounis in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Parficulars

Current ratio

Numerator - Current assels

Denominator - Current Liabilities

Debt-eouity ratio

Numerator - Total debr

Denominator - Total Shareholders Equity

Debt service coverase rato

Numerator - PAT + Depreciation and amortisations expense+
[nterest + Loss on property, plant and equipment + Provision for
daubtful balances

Denominator - Tnterest & lease vavments + erincival revevments
Return on eyuily eatio {in %)

Nurmerator - Profit afler tax

Danominator - Avetane sharshalders sauitv

Inventory turnover ratlo {in times)

Numeratar - Cost of goods sold

Denominator - Averaee Invenlory

Frade receivables turnover ratia fin fime)

Numrerator - Net credit, sales

Denaminator - Average trade raceivables

Trade pavables turmover ratio fin timesk

Numerator - et credit purchases

Denominator - Average trade payables

Net capital turnover ratio fin times)

Numerator - Revenne from operations

Denominalor - Averaps working capilal

Met profif ratio {in %)

MNumerator - Profit for the vear

Denominator - Revenue from operations
Return om capital emploved (in %)
Numerator - Earnings before interest and taxes
Demominatar - Capital employed= Tangiblc net warth + Total debt +
Deferred tax liability

Heturn on investment (in %)

Numerator - Earnines before interest and taxes
Denominator - Average 1otal assets

AAC 500,

012764

Current year Current year

2021-22

274232
1.968 20

184993
£.527.07
2,164.94

17277

105515
5.008.20

2,366 58
116.26

4,151.7%
87101

6,425 47
1.074.88

10,223.07
447 39

1.055 25
10,223 07

1.497.85

803710

1.497 83
10.845 51

ratie

139

028

17.56%

20136

477

598

2282

10.32%

18 64%

1381%

Previous
year
2030-21

205897
193731

2,050.74
5489032
1,874 34

T0831

GG 70
5187 36

193508
152 89

4,041 L6
81792

512490
959,62

814113
(1217

606.70
814113

83945

7.192 44

83945
10,340.17

Previous
year ratio

106

11.69%

12.66

482

534

(66923)

7.45%

.M

§12%

Variance % Reasons {if variance is more than 25%)

%

-24%

6%

50%

61%

1%

12%

=103%

9%

%

Due to investnent in mumel funds for surplus
funds generated during the year

Nome

None

Due 1o increase in profit after tax for the year

Due 1o increase in operations during the year

None

None

Due to improvement in denominator mainly due
10 surplus generated from operations invested in
mutual funds and also nercase in revenue from

Due to ingrease in bed octupancy compared to
previous vear and absorption of fixed costs.

Due to mcrease in profit during the year

Due to ncrease m profit dunng the year



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standatone financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and whers otherwise stated)

4.46

4,47

Other regulatory information

(i) Title decds of immovable properties not held in name of the company

The title desds of all 1he immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee), as disclosed in note 4.1 (a} to the financial statements, are held in the name of the company except for land aggregating 1o T103.55.
{Refer note 4.44 for further details)

{ii) Udilisation of borrowings availed feom banks and financial institutions
The borrowings obtained by the company fiom banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such laans were was taken.

(iii) The company has not given Joansfadvances in the nature of loans to directors, promoters, KMPs or any other related parties which are repayable on
demand or without specifying terms & condilions of repayment.

(iv) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period;

Charge holder name Charge ID Date of creation  Amount in INR Reason for delay
L. This charge belongs to old acquired company which was
ICIC] Bank Limited 10568516 02-Aug-14 1,100.60 merged into QCIL's Index of charges on merger, the

satisfaction could not be filed as the acquired company was
45.00 1° longer in existence. The company is in the process of

Andhra Bank 10160606 1 1-May-09 .
getting the same removed
[CICI Bank Limited 90136844 08-Dec-01 180.00
Industrial Development of charge was done manually and the same was
Bank Of India 0137502 15-May-93 49.50 reflected on conversion 1o eleotronic system on
New Bank Of india 20137145 20-Feb-88 4,00 The company is in the process of getting the
[DIBI 20137107 13-May-87 10.00 removed
[FCI Bank Ltd 20137002 23-Jan-23 05.00
Subsequent events

a. Subsequent to the year end the Company has acquired 95% shareholding in Convenient Hospitals Limited, Indore w.e.f June 29, 2022 for
consideration of Rs. 3790 million and 76% sharsholding in United Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, Aurangabad w.e.f July 26, 2022
for a consideration of Rs. 3,805 million. Further the Company has also acquired one hospital in Hyderabad for a consideration of Rs. 200 million on
slump sale basis w.e.f. April 25, 2022, The consideration for above acquisitions will be cash seftied. These acquisitions are expected to add iremendously
to the clinical depth and further strenghten the presence in non metro cities in India.

b. For the above acquisitions, subsequent to the year end the Company has issued 14,572,480 - 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
{CCPS) of face value of Rs. 10 each @ Rs. 452.30 per CCPS to the Holding Company amounting to Rs. 6,591 million which are convertible inw squity
shares on or before the end of 10 years.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm registration number: 012754N/N500016 Quality Care Indla Limited
14728
Sunit Kum
Pariner Director Director and Officer
Memberhip number: 55000 DIN: 08729468 DIN:
Vikas Rastogi
Chief Financial
AFEPR8865H
Gayathri
Company Secretary

AQSPC2418C - Membership no. A41363

Place: Hyderabad Place; Dubai, UAE Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 25, 2022 Date; August 25, 2022 Date: August 25, 2022



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1.  Wehave andited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Quality Care India Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group™) and joint venture {refer Note 2(g) to the attached consolidated financial statements),
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equify, the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consclidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant aceounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements™).

2. In our opinien and to the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Aet”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and joint venture as at March 31, 2022, of consolidated
total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive loss), consolidated changes in equity
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in aceordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under these Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
and joint venture in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence oblained by (he other auditors in terms of their reports referred Lo in sub-paragraph 2 of the Other
Matters section below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the consolidated finanecial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consalidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of the other auditors as furnished to us
{Refer paragraph 1z below}, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other informaticn, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Unit - 2B, 8th Floor, Octave Block, Block E1, Parcel - 4, Salarpuria
Sattva Knowledge City, Raidurg, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500081
T: +91 (40) 4424 6000, F: +91 (40) 4424 6300

Ragisterad office and Head office: Sucheta Bhawan, 11A Vishnu Digambar Marg, Mew Delhi 110 002

Price Waterhouse {a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP {a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAG-5001)
with effect from July 25, 2014, Post [I5 conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its [CAl registralion number is 012754 N/NS00016 (IGAI registration
numbar befors conversion was 012754N)



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Page 2 of 5

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

5.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows, and
consolidated changes in equity of the Group including its joint venture in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and joint venture are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal finaneial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and joint venture
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do se.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and joint venture are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

8.

Q.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the conselidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit pracedures responsive t¢ those risks, and obtain andit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher thar for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

@ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audir in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
aed related disclosures made by management.




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Page 3 of 5

© Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a marerial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and itsjoint venture to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uneertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and itsjoint venture to cease
to continue as a going concern,

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and joint venture to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the comsolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a staiement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independenee, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

12. We did wot audit the financial statements of one subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs
0.04 millien and et assets of Rs. 0.00 million as at March 31, 2022, total revenue of Rs. Nil, total comprehensive
loss (comprising of loss and other comprehensive loss) of Rs. Nil and net cash flows amounting to Rs. Nil for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements also include the Group’s share of total comprehensive lass (comprising of loss and other
comprehensive loss) of Rs. 0.01 million as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one
joint venture whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this
subsidiary and joint venture and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report
on Other Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and joint venture, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respeet to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors.




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Repott on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Page 4 0f 5

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

13. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO 2020, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B, a
statement on the matter specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of CARO 2020.

14. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financia! statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive loss), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account and records
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

{(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and joint venture incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies, its joint venture incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure A.

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 1t of
the Companies (Audit and Aunditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and te the best of cur information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its joint venture~ Refer Note 4.37(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

1l. The Group and joint venture were not required to recognise a provision as at March 21, 2022 under
the applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on
long-term contracts, The Group and joint venture did not have any derivative contracts as at March
a1, 2022.

iif. During the year ended March 21, 2022, there were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its
subsidiary companies and joint venture incorporated in India.

iv.  (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries/ joint venture which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us and the other anditors of such subsidiaries/ joint veunture respectively
that, ta the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company or any of such subsidiarfes/ joint venture to or in any other person{s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
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in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
or any of such subsidiaries/ joint venture (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. (Refer Note 4.45(vi) to the
consolidated financial statements);

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries/ joint venture which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries/ joint venture respectively
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
or any of such subsidiaries/ joint venture from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company or any of such subsidiaries/ joint venture shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. (Refer Note 4.45(vi) to the consolidated financial statements);

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiary/ joint
venture which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has cansed us or
the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e)
contain any material misstatement.

v. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture, has not declared or paid any
dividend during the year.

15. The Group and its joint venture have paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sunit Kumar Basu

Partoer

Membership Number: 55000
UDIN: 22055000APVVFQ1967

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 25, 2022
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
mnder clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Corpany as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with refarence to financial statements of
Quality Care India Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies
and joint venture, whick are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Infernal Financial Controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture, to whom
reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements is applicable, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderfy and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable finaneial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in aceordance with the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAT and the Standards on Auditing deemed 1o be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal finaneial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtaimed by the other auditoers in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purpases in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, kave, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

9.

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company
and one joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of such companies incorporated in India. Qur opinion is not modified in Tespect of this matter.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

(W

Sunit Kumar Basu

Partner

Membership Number: 55000
UDIN: 22055000APVVFQ1967

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 25, 2022
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India
Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022

As required by paragraph 3(x«i) of the CARO 2020, we report that the auditors of the following companies have given qualification
or adverse remarks in their CARO report on the standalone financial statements of the respective companies included in the

Consclidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company:

5. Name of the CIN Relationship Date of the

No Company with the
Holding
Company

(Holding
Company/
Subsidiary/
Joint
Venture)

1 Quality Care U85110TG199  Holding
India Limited 2PLCo14728 Company

2 Galaxy Care U8s5110PN200  Subsidiary
Multispeciality  5PTCozo122 Company
Hospital
Private Limited

comment in the
respective CARQ report reproduced below

(i)(c} - The title deeds of all the immovable
properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as
disclosed in Note 4.1 to the financial statements,
are held in the name of the Company, except for
the following: (Refer note 1 below)

(vii}(a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in regpeet of provident
fund and employees” state insurauce, though there
has been aslight delay in a few cases, and is regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
sales tax, income tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and
services tax and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(xi}c) - During the course of our examination of
the books and records of the Company carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the
Company has received whistle-blower complaints
during the year, which have been considered by us
for any bearing on our audit and reporting.

vii(a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by ws, in our opinien, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident
fund, though there has been a slight delay in a few
cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including employees’ state
insurance, sales tax, income tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
goods and services tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities.
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Ganga Care
Hospital
Limited

U8s11oMH20
o5PLC150811

Subsidiary
Company

August 22,
2022

viifa) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regnlar in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident
fund, though there has been a slight delay in a few
cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including employees’ state
insurance, sales tax, incoms tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
goods and services tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities,

Ramkrishna
Care Medical
Sciences
Private Limited

U85110CT1998
PTCo13035

Subsidiary
Company

August 22,
2022

vil.(a) - According to the informatien and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident
fund, though there has been a slight delay in a few
cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including employees’ state
insurance, sales tax, income tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
goods and services tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities.

Quality Care
Jharsuguda
Private Limited

UB5300TG20
6PTC112746

Subsidiary
Company

Augist 22,
2022

xvii, The Company has incurred cash losses n the
current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

Quality Care
Health Services
India Private
Limited

U85100TG200
8PTCos8264

Joint venture

August 22,
2022

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses in the
current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.
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Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India
Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 1:
Description Gross Held in the Whether | Period held | Reason for not being held in the name
of property | carrying name of promoter, -indicate of the Company
value director or range,
(INR in their where
millions) relative or | appropriate
employee
Land 105.55 Andhra Pradesh No From 2009 | Refer note 4.44 to the Standalone Finaneial
Industrial Statements*
Infrastructure
Corporation * Included in note 4.44 to the consolidated
Limited financial statements.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sunit Kuma? Basu

Partner

Membership Number: 55000

UDIN: 22055000APVVF(}1967

Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 25, 2022




Quality Care India Limited
Consvlidated Balance Sheet
{A)l amounds in ¥ millions. excent share dala and where otherwise stated)

Notes As at
Particulars k| 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
A, Non-current assets
(a) Propery, plant and equipment 4 1 {a) 527502 5,266 40
(b) Right-of-use ascets 41 (b} 1,389 48 17521
(c) Capital work in progress 42 62374 601.14
(d) Goodwill 33051 330 51
(e} Other intangible assels 43 %16 8134
(f) Intangiblz assetc under development 44 26 59
(8) Investments in Joinl venlure 45 (a) 092 003
(h) Financial assets
(i) Orher financial assets 4 6{a) 188.4% 204 11
(i} Deferred tax assets {net) 47(a) 90463 73899
(i} Non-current ax assets (net} & 70y 688 33 645 46
{k) Qther non-cument assels 4.8 (a) 17828 11229
Total nen-carrenl assels (A)
B. Current assets
(a) Inventories 49 152.53 14312
(b} Financial assets
i)  Investments 4 5(b) 1029335 547
(i) Trade receivables 4,10 1,172.61 1,12805
(i) Cashand cash equivalents 4.111(a) 1551 636.28
(iv) Bank balances ather than above 4114 778 H 700.45
(v} Loans 412 041 113
(vi) Other financial assals 46(h) 22468 150.95
(c)  Qther cumen assels LRI E5 80 6292
Total current assets {B) 3,759.63 2.878.3%
Total asseis (A+B)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
A.  Equity
(a) Equity share capital 413(a) 414 &7 414 97
(b} Other equity 4.13(»
{1} Reserves and surplus 6,536.87 539775
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company 6,951.84 581272
(€} Non-controlling intecest 5388 450 56
Total equity (A) 747272 6,263.28
Liabilities
B. Non-curremt liabilitics
(a) Financial liabililies
(i) Berrowings 414 1,859.10 2,199.20
(i) Leasa liabilities 4138 138198 1,595 69
{iii) Other financial liabilities 4 18(a) 1160
(b) Employee benefit obligations 415 {a) 15395 153 0%
Total non-current labilitics (B) 3.406.03 3,948.88
C. Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i) Bormowings 416 424 82 41592
(i}  Lease liabilities 438 28288 39027
(i) Trade payables 417
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 30,54 2732
(b} total outstanding dues other than (iif) (a) above 1,406.34 1,229 27
(iv) Other financial liabilides 4,18 (b 161.87 148 38
{b) Employee benefit obligations 415 (b} 96 57 67.79
{c) Other current Liabilities 419 13607 146 84
Tatal current liabilities {C) 2,537.89 2425.80
Total Eabilitics (B+C) 5,943.92 6,374.68
Total ¢equity and labilities (A+B+C) 13.416.64 12453796
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred 1o in our report of even dats
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Direciors of
Firm's Registration No: 012754N/N500016 Quality Care Indin Limit!ﬁl -
4
Sunit Knmar Basu Massimiliano Colella Jasdeep Singh
Partner Drirector and Officer
Membership No: 55000 DIN: 8729468 DIN:
Place : Dubai, LAE Place
Vikas
Chief
AFEPRBBGSH
Place ; Hyderabad
Gayathri
Company Secrefary
AQSPC2418C
Membership No : A4 1863
Place: Hyderabad, Tndia Place: Hyderabad

Date: 25th August, 2022 Date: 25th August, 2022

Dale: 251h August, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

1 Revenue from operations
[U Other income

Il Total income {1411}

IV Expenses

(i) Purchases of medical consumables and pharmacy items
(i) Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items

{iii) Employee benefits expense
(iv) Other expenses
Total expenses {[¥)

Notes

4.20
421

4.22
4.23
4.24

¥ Eareings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) {I11-1V)

(i) Finance costs

(i) Depreciation and amaortisation expense

(rii) Impairment of intangible assets
¥1 Profit before exceptional items

¥II Profit before share of loss of 1 joint venture

(i) Share of loss of a joint venture
¥YIII Profit before tax

IX Income Tax expense/(benefit):
(i) Current 1ax expense

(i) Income tax relating o earlier periods
(iii) Deferred tax expense / (benefit)

Total tax expense
X Profit for the year (VIII-IX)
XI Other Comprehensive Income:

4.25
4.26
43

442

427
427
4.7 (a)

(i} Tiems that will not be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss
(a) GainAloss) on remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations 4.32 (d}

(i) Income tax relating to these items
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (1X)
XIL Total comprebensive income for the year (X+XI)

XIII Profit for the year attributeble to;
Owmners of the parent
Non-controlling interasts

XIV Other comprehensive loss attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

XV Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

4.7 {a)

XVI Eamings per equity share {Nominal value of equity share ZL0 (31 March 2021 : 210)) 4.28

Basic Earnings per equity share {in %)
Diluted Eamnings per equity share {in %)

The accompanying nates are an ittegral part of the consolidated financial stacements.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

For Price Waterhouse Chartered A¢countants LLP
Firmy's Registration Mo: 012754N/N500016

Sunit Kumar Basu
Partner
Membership No: 35000

Place: Hyderabad, India
Date. 25th August, 2022

Quality Care India Limited
Ll St
Massimiliano

DIN: 08729468
Place : Dubai, UAE

Date; 25th August, 2022

For the vear ¢nded

728

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
13,13 1.61 14,532.66
98.56 113.56
13,2§0.17 16,646.22
307544 2,305.21
(941 112 83
1,982.45 1,677.44
5 1593 76
10.564.41 8.709.24
421.02 548.20
9205.27 §69.24
26.28
493.26
7 493.26
0.01 0.01
1.389.46 493,25
302 84 135.43
21.51 45.69
(163.80) {367.91)
160.55 {186.79)
122891 680.04
(7.08) (6.94)
219 232
439 (4.62)
1.224.02 675.42
1.157.87 635.49
F1.04 24 55
(4.17) (4.28)
{0.72) (0.34)
[,133.70 651.21
70.32 24.21
27.90 15.80
2790 15.73
Jasdecp
Director and Officer
DIN: 02705303
Place : Hyderabad
Vikas Rastogi
Chief Financial
AFEPRER65H
Place : Hyderabad
Gayathri Chandra
Company Secretary
AOSPC2418C
Membership No : A41863
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 25th August, 2022



Quality Care India Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit beforc tax
Adjustments:
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Share of loss of 4 joint venture
Depreciation and amertisation expense
Impairment losses of intangible assets
Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Advances and loans written-off
Share based compensation expense
Income/liabilities written back from operating activitics
Interest mcome
Finance costs
Property, plant and equipment written off
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Change in operating assets and Liabilities:

{Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
{Increase)/decrease in loans
{Increase)/decrease in other assets
(Increase)/dzcrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets
Increasc/{decrease) in wrade payables
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in other non financial liabilities
Incrense/(decrease) in other liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid, net

Net cash inflow from operating activities {A)}

Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment
Purchase of mutual funds
Sale of mutual funds
Interest received on fixed deposits
Proceeds from loan recovered
Movement in other bank balances, net
Net cash outflow from investing activities (B)

For the vear ended
31 March 2021

31 March 2022

1,389.46

@717
0.01
905 67

105,78

(14.58)
(4.13)
(46.30)
380,59
529
391
2,698.53

(9.41)
(150.32)
12.05
3932
(29.66)
0.04
17028
2248
(46.19)
(11.50}
11.00
0.70
2,708.22
(367.86)
2,340.36

(664.08)
51.42

(1.349.93)
35323
4325

28 57
(1.537.54)

49326

(0.32)
0.01
869.24
2623
136.16
210

(5.52)

(70.74)
$11.26
1775
1.08
1,980.56

11283
(157.07)
{(16.31)

31.27
(7.59)

70.45
(6.06)
4214

(10.73)
2,039.44

{16.57)
202287

{327.13)

30.67

21.26
(248.20)
(523.40



Quality Care India Lintited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended
Particul
articulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 85.53 1,075 86
Repayments of long-term borrowings (424.83) (1,315.38)
Froceeds/Repayments from short term borrowings, net 6.39 (33113
Payment of lease liabilitics (492.69) (425.05)
Interest paid {208.58) (26211
Dividend paid {0.07 (82.65)
Net cash (outflow)/ inflow Irom financing activities (C) (1,033.75) (1,340,477
Netincrease/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) (230.93) 159.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 54¢.44 38744
Cash and cash equivalents st the end of the year (mote 1) 31551 846,44
As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 1:
Cash and cash equivalents includes
- In¢luded in cash and cash equivalents (refer note 4.12(a))

Cash on hand 875 11.30
Balances with banks in ¢ash credit accounts 8894
217.82 535 14

Balances with banks in current accounts

Balances as per statement of cash fows J15.51 546.44
The accompanying notes ars an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is the consolidated cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.
. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP Quality Care India Limited
Fimn's Registralion No: B12754N/MN500016 CIN 14728

Jasdeep
Sunit Kumar Basu Director and Officer
Partner DIN: 08725468 DIN: 02705303
Membership No: 55000 Place : Dubai, UAE Place : Hyderabad

Vikas Rastogi

Chief Financial

AFEPRS845H

Place : Hyderabad

Gayathri
Company Secretary
AQSPC2418C
) Membership No.: A41863
Place: Hyderabad, India Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25th August, 2022 Daie; 25th Avgust, 2022 Date: 25th August, 2022



Quality Care India Limited

Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity

{All amounts in 2 millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital
Particulars

Balance at 1 April 2020
Chanees in equity share capital
Balance at 31 March 2021
Changes in equity share capita
Balance at 31 March

B. Other

Partlculars

Balance at | April 2020
Profit for the year

(nther comprehensive loss
Balance at 31 March 2021
Profit for the year

Stock option compensation for the year

Other comprzhensive loss
Balance at 31 March 2022

Securities
premium

445724

4,457.24

445724

Notes

413(a)

413 (u)

Reserves and surplus

Capital  Share options Share
reserve outstanding  warrants

account reserve
I3 751 707
11.31 7.51 747

7 50) 707)

11.31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statcments.

This is the Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity referred 1o in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accotmtants LLP Quality Carc lndia Limited

Firm's Registration No; 012754N/N 500016

Sonlt Kuﬁ

FPartner
Membership No: 55000

Place: Hyderabad, India
Date: 25th August, 2022

DIN: 08720448
Place : Dubai, UAE
Date: 25th August, 2022

Jasdeep

DIN:
Place ; Hyderabad

Date: 25th August, 2022

Number of Amount in millions
shares

41,496,834 414.97
41,496,894 414.97
414.97

Total other equity

Retained atiributable to

earnings  equity holders of
Parent Company

263,41 4,746.54
63549 655.49
(428) (4.28)
914.62 539775
1.157 87 1,157.87
(14.58)
@17 407
2.068.32 6.536.87
Qfficer
AFEFR3865H
Place : Hyderal

Gayathrl
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements of "Quality Care India Limited” (“the Company” or “QCIL” or “Parent
Company” or “Parent”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Group™) and a joint venture are for the
year ended 31 March 2022. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under
the erstwhile provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 applicable in Indta. The registered office of the Company
is located at #6-3-248/2, Road no. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034,

The Group is primarily engaged in providing healthcare and related services, The Group has a network of
multi-speciality hospitals across various cities tn India.

The Holding Company of QCIL is Touch Healthcare Private Limited and the Ultimate Holding Company upto
21 June 2019 was Abraaj Growth Markets Health Fund General Partner Limited, United Arab Emirates
(“UAE™). With effect from 21 June 2019, the Ultimate Holding Company of QCIL has changed to
Evercare Health Fund, L.P, Cayman lsland.

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 25 August 2022.

2. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated Financial statements of the Group have been prepared and presented in accordance with all
material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of
the Act. Details of accounting policies are included in Note 3.

b} New amendments issued but not effective

The Mmistry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective
L April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

c) Reclassifications consequent to amendments to Schedule II
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule 111 to the Companics Act, 2013 on 24 March 2021

to increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These
amendments are effective from 1 April 2021.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts in ¥ milliens, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The Group has reclassified comparative amounts to conform with current year presentation as per the
requirements of Ind AS 1. The impact of such classifications is summarised below:

Balance sheet (extract)

'Financial assets - Loans (current)

‘Financial assets -Other financial assets (current)
'Financial assets - Loans {non-current)

'Financial assets -Other financial assets (non-
current)

Financial liabilities- Other financial liabilities
(current)

Financial liabilities- Borrowings (current )

d) Basis for measurement

31 March
2021
(As
previously
reported)
7.96

144,12
192.47
11.64

564.31

(Rs. in millions)

Increase/
{Decrease)

(6.83)
6.83
(192.47)
192.47

(415.93)

41593

31 March 2021
(Retated)

1.13
150.95

204.11
148.38

415.93

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under historical cost, except

for the following:
certain financial assets and liabilities are measured either at fair value or at amortised cost depending on

the classification;

Liabilities for cash-settled share-based payment arrangements; and
employee defined benefit liability are recognised as the net total of the fair value of plan assets, plus
actuarial losses, less actvarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

¢) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in ¥ and all values are rounded to the nearest millions,
except when otherwise indicated.

f} Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use or for the purpose of better presentation of financial statements. Management evaluates all
recently issued or revised Accounting Standards on an ongoing basis and accordingly changes the Accounting

policies as applicable.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in T millions, cxcept share data and where otherwise stated)

2) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
and a joint venture. .

List of subsidiaries and joint venture included in the consolidated financial statement is as under;

Name of the entity Relationship Country of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interest as at
31 March 31 March
2022 (%) 2021 (%)
Ganga Care Hospital Limited (GCHL) Subsidiary India 74.13 74.13
Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences  Subsidiary India 56.33 56.33
Private Limited {(RCMSPL)
Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital — Subsidiary India 76.00 76.00
Private Limited (GCMHPL)
Quality Care Jharsuguda Private Limited  Subsidiary India 100.00 100.00
(QCJPL)
Quality Care Health Services India Joint venture India 50.00 50.00

Private Limited (QCHSPL)

(i) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the Acquisition method. The acquisition date is the date on
which control is transferred to the acquirer. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interesis in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. For the non-controlling interests in consolidated
subsidiaries, the Group elected to recognise the non-controlling interests at its proportionate share of the
acquired net identifiable assets.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are at their acquisition date
fair value. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that cutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or
liabilitics related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS
12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits, respectively.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held
equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’), as appropriate.

Gaodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, aver the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fzir value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified ali of the assets acquired

ilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amou nised at

the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of over
N AAC.S
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (*OCF)
and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the
entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through Other
Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’).

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benetit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquirec are assigned to thosc units,

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be jmpaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the Statement of
profit and loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

(ii) Subsidiaries and joint venture

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group
controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

e exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
s the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there ts a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

s the contractyal arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
e the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and

¢ the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative 1o the size and dispersion of the holdings
of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Censolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed-off during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date ceases t0
conirol th subsidi
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances. If 2 member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated
financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting
date as that of the Parent Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the
Parent Company is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes,
additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the Parcnt Company to cnable
the Parent Company to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do
S0.

Consolidation procedure:

(2) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent
Company with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary
are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date.

(b)  Offset (¢liminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to
account for any related goodwill or capital reserve.

(c)  Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relatmg to transactions between entities of the Group (profits or Josses resulting from intra-group
transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated tn
full}. Intra-group losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of prefits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions.

Profit or Joss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent of the Group and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, 1t:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill} and liabilities of the subsidiary;

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received,

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

Recognises any surphus or deficit in the Statement of profit and loss; and

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income (¥OCI”) to the Statement of profit and loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control. The results and assets and liabilities of joint venture is incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a
portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105.
Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is inttially recognised in the balance
sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and ve



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Distributions received from a joint venture reduces the carrying amount of the investment. The carrying value
of the Group’s investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
losses. When the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture exceeds its interest in that joint venture, the carrying
amount of that interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to zero and the recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has obligations or has made payments on behalf of
the joint venture. An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture and discontinues from the date when the investment ceases to be a
Joint venture, or when the investnent is classified as held for sale.

The difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing ol a parl interest in Lhe joint venture
15 included in the determination cf the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if that joint venture had directly disposed off the related assets or
liabilities. When a Group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current ¢lassification

An asset is treated as current when it is;

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability 1s current when:
v It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the scttlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

d
N AAC-
L X\
O12754N
* rabad ¥



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

3A. Significant accounting policies
a. Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Parent Company, its subsidiaries and jomnt venture is Indian rupee (INR). These
financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Parent Company’s functional currency.

Transactions m foreign currency are initially recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions.
Monetary iteins denominated in foreign currencies (such as cash, receivables, payables etc.) outstanding at the
end of reporting period, are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on scttlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of

profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are
also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are
accounted for in the Statement of profit and loss, except those relating to long-term foreign currency monetary
items,

b. Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to meagsure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant  the fair value

able
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recwrring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted financial assets, and
significant liabilities, such as contingent constderation. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon
annually by the management. Sclection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measored or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the infermation in the
valuation computation to relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

¢.  Revenue recognition

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged under contract for inpatient and/or outpatient hospital services and
includes sale of medical and non-medical items. Hospital services include charges for accommodation, medical
professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratory, pharmaceutical goods among others, used in
treatments provided to the patients.

Effective 1 April 2018, the Group adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Ceontracts with Customers, using the
modified retrospective application method. The application of Ind AS 115 did not have any significant impact
on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Revenue 1s recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange
for those products or services.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not
adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
15 met;
e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;
the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced: or
o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and an entity has
an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is e point
mn time ich e obligation is satisfied
\APIN AAC.S
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Goods and services tax is not received by the Group on its own account. Rather, itis tax collected by the Group
on behalf of the Government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Revenue from health care services and related activities

Income from healthcare services is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered unless
significant future uncertainties exists. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services rendered, to the
patients who arc undcrgoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date to the extent of services rendered.
Revenue is recognised net of discounts and concessions, if any, given to the patients and disallowances
including claims.

Unbilled receivables and Unearned revenue

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage
of time is required, as per contractual terms. Other contract assets have been disclosed as contract assets within

other assets.

Unearned revenue (“contract liability™) is recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. The billing
schedules agreed with customers could include periodic performance-based payments and/or milestone-based
progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period. Advances received for
services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition are met.

Contract modifications - Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis,
while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract if the additional
services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a
new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy

Revenue from sale of pharmacy is recognised when control is transferred to the customer and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and
regarding its collection.

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of (he financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected
credit losses. Interest income is included under other income in the Statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to recetve dividend is established.
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Quality Care India Limited
Netes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

d. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or

substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Cutrent income tax relating to items recognised outside protit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation Lo Lhe underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken m the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept as uncertain tax treatment. The Group measuies its
tax balances either based at the most likely amount or expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transachion that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled., based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
15 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is reasonably
certain that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at cach
Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no
longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax durin

period. £l
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

e. Property, plant and equipment {“PPE™)

Property plant and equipment and Capital Work in progress are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price (net of discounts and rebates),
borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for the intended use. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of
profit and loss as incurred,

Depreciation is provided on the basis of straight line method, except for RCMSPL where depreciation is
provided on the basis of written down value method. Depreciation is provided using the useful lives and in the
manner prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act, except in respeet of the following assets wherein based on
technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, the assessed useful lives are
determined to be different from those prescribed under the Schedule 11 of the Act. Management believes that
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are
likely to be used.

i) Plant and machinery used in medical and surgical operations other than those mentioned in IV(ii)(;)(1) of
the Schedule II and General plant and machinery: Useful life is considered to be 13 years. Useful life of
each asset 1s determined based on internal and external technical evaluation.

i) Computers and data processing units mentioned in XII(i) of the Schedule II: Useful life is considered to
be 3 years. Useful life of each asset is determined based on internal and external technical evaluation.

The useful life provided for different asset classes under Schedule II of the Act is as follows:

Asset class Useful life
{years)

Buildings : 60
Plant and Machinery used in medical and surgical operations 13
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Office Equipment 5
Computer equipment {end user devices 3

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity
expects to use the assets beyond the lease term.

Depreciation on assets which are available for use during the year is charged on pro -rata basis from the date
of their availability.

An item of Property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of a PPE is measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss (“SPL”) when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, plant and equi are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if approprate.

(PN AAC

~ oL

PINTINES -
ernhad *



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

f. Goodwill and other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, other intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred.

QOther intangible assets are amoitised on straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The
estimated useful life of other intangible assets is mentioned below:

Asset Useful life
(years)
Software 3ol

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the assets and are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss (“SPL”) when the assets are derecognised.

Goodwill arising on business combination is recorded at excess of the consideration paid over the fair value of
the net assets taken-over and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

g. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

h. Leases
The Group as a lessec

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, plant and machinery and vehicles,
The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has the
right to direct the use of the agset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangemenis in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the
Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the iease before the end of the lease term.

ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the leage liability

adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct

costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated lation and

impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line the
term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For
the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and
the value-in-nse) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease ltability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using (he interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rate. 1.ease liahilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
ROU asset if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

The Group as a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessce, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. For operating leases, rental income is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant Jease.

i. Inventories

Inventory of medical supplies, drugs, and other consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
Cost of medical supplies and drugs is determined on the basis of weighted average method except for Galaxy
Care Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited and Ganga Care Hospital Limited determined on the basis of
first-in-first-out method. Stores and spares and other consumables are valued on the basis of weighted average
method except for Galaxy Care Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited and Ganga Care Hospital Limited
determined on the basis of first-in-first-out method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, Jess estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories include purchase price, import duties and other taxes excluding taxes those are
subsequently recoverable from the concerned authorities, freight inwards and other expenditure incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

J- Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are companied together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Ch
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there
is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

k.  Provision and conlingencies
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in
the Statement of Profit and Loss (“SPL”™) net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of meney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies’
Contingent liabtlities is identified and disclosed with respect to following:

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of

the entity; or

. a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
» 1t is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation; or
» the amount of the obligation carmot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed, unless inflow of economic benefits is probable
However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognized.

i. Employee benefits

Short term benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits are accounted for in the period during which the services have been rendered
Post-employment benefits and other long term empioyee benefits

Provident Fund: Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
contributions to the provident fund administered by the Central Govemnment under the Provident Fund Act,

1952, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss (“SPL”) for the year in which the contributions are due.
The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
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Gratuity: The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made
to & separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined

using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising mainly of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the Balance
Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC! in the period in which they occur,
Remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Leave Encashment: Accrued liability for leave encashment including sick leave is determined on actuarial
valuation basis using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Method at the end of the year and provided completely in
profit and loss account as per Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits".

m. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subseauent easurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

o Debt instruments at amortised cost

° Debt mstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCT)

. Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;
a) The asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash

flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of principal

and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in Statement
of Profit and Lass (“SPL”). The losses arising from impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(“SP]_’”).

instrument at

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the

financial assets, and
b) cash flows represent SPPI
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of profit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the Statement of profit and loss.

Equnity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading are classified as at FYTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same
either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and ts irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTQCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
Statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity.

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower

of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

¢
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost ¢.g,, loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables, unbilled receivables and bank balances,
. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

The Group follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of stmplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, [ifetime ECL is used. If, in a subseguent period, credit guality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment toss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events
that are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:
All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument
. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are iniegral o the
contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in Statement of Profit and Loss {“SPL”). The Balance Sheet presentation for various financial instruments is

described below:
Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part
of the measurement of those assets in the Balance Sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount,
Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

Financial labilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs

The n ial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings. By
Char
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (“SPL”) when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in the Statement of profit and loss.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per agreed terms. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

A financtal liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the samme lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (“SPL”).

Financial assets and financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

n. Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the vear are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

0. Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method. Cash Flow Statements present the cash flows
by operating, financing and investing activities of the Group. Operating cash flows are arrived by adjusting
profit or loss before tax for the effects of transactions of a non- cash nature, any deferrals or Is of past
or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of income or expense associated ng or
financing cash flows.
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For the purpose of Cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with
banks in current accounts, balances in cash credit accounts and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less.

p- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

. Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards/warrants granted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards/ warrants. The amount recognised as expense is based on the
estimate of the number of awards/ warrants for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of
awards/warrants that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For
share-based payment awards/warrants with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based
payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and
actual outcomes.

r Measurement of profit/Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and ameortisation (EBITDA)

As permitted by the Guidance Note on division II — Ind AS Schedule III to the Act, the Group has elected to
present carings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the
face of the Statement of profit and loss.

In its measurement of EBITDA, the Group includes other income but does not include depreciation and
amortisation expense, impairment losses, finance cost and tax expense.

3B. Key accounting estimates and judgements
a.  Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefit plan

The cost and present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and leave encashment (other long-term benefit
plan) are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation and other long-term benefits are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

b. Useful lives of depreciable and amortisable assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. The factors such as changes in the expected level of usage,
technological developments and product life-cycle, could significantly impact the economic useful lives and
the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation and amortization charge could be
revised and thereby could have an impact on the future years

F
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¢. Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill with indefinite life is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication
that the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount
of cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell.

The goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit which ars benefiting from
the synergics of the acquisition and which represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable

amount.
d. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feastble, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

e. Share-based payments

The grant date fair value of employee stock options/warrants granted is recognised as an employee expense
over the period that the employee/holder becomes unconditionally entitled to the options/warrants. Estimating
fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimation requires determination of
the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option/warrant,
volatility, risk free interest rate and making assumptions about them.

f. Impairment of non-financial assets, apart from Goodwill

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of
disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset, The value in use
calculation is based on a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model.

g. Recognition and measurement of provisiens

The recognition and measurement of provisions is based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow
of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known as at the Balance Sheet date. Therefore the

actual outflow of resources at a future date may vary.
h. Expected Credit Loss

The impairment provision for trade receivables and unbilled receivables is based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting
inputs to determine impairment of these trade receivables, based on the Group’s historical experience towards
potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the end of each reporting period.

i. Deferred tax assets

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits. The amount of 1 deferred
tax assets could change if estimates of projected future taxable income or if tax regulations
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j- Income Taxes

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case
law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty.

k. Assessment of claims and litigations disclosed as contingent liabilities

There are certain claims and litigations which have been assessed as contingent liabilities by the Management
which may have an effect on the operations of the Group should the same be decided against the Group.

The Management has assessed that no further provision / adjustment is required to be made in these
Consolidated Financial Statements for the above matters, other than what has been already recorded, as they
expect a favourable decision based on their assessment and the advice given by the external legal counsels /
professional advisors.

L Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with
any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes
an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is
reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the
lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the
lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to Group’s
operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives.
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4.1 {a) Properiy, plant and equipment*

4.

[

Particulars

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2020
Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying smount as at 31 March 2021
Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2022

Accumulnted Depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2020
Depreciation charge during the vear

Cn dispesals

Closing accumulated depreciation a5 at 311 March 2021
Depreciation charge during the year

O disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 Mareh 2022

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022

* Security- Refer note 4.14 and 4 11a) for charge details on Praperty, plant and equipment

Leasehold
tand

114 41

114.41

114.41

G.84
a.1¢

0.4
010

L4

113.47
113.37

Freehold

land#®

36838

368,38

36838

36838
368.38

Buildings

276816
733
0.0
1,775.48
4190

2.817.38
21342
68.42

281.84
6762

349.46

2.493.64
2.467.92

Leasehold
improvements

892 94
1141
{201 431
702.92
8931
10 36}
791.87

438 25
8353
183 68)
335.10
T77.71

(0.2
415.59

64,82
37628

Plant and
machinery

296727
10120
(4.41)
3.064.06
28193
166 201
3279.79

1,059 89
24939
{2.80)
1.306,48
24723
(5011
1.503.60

1.757.58
1.776.19

** The title deeds of land aggregating to T105 55 (31 March 2021 : T105.55) are pending transfer to the Parent Compeny's name Refer note 4 44 for further details

(b} Righi-of-use asgets

Particulars

Balance as at 1 April 2020
Additions

Dieletions

Other adjustmenis

Depreciation charge for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021
Additions

Deletions

(Other adfustments

Depreciation charge for 1he year
Balance a3 at 1 March 2022

N AAC-50q;

X

0127z4
+ wr

Bulldings

1,641.51
151 46

{14.93)
(241 70}
1,536.34

B2 48

(59 91)

{4.68)
(278 66}
1.275.57

Category of Righi-of-use assety

Plant and
machinery

322,71

(125.80)

196.91
11 43
{0 81)

m2on
95.46

Vehicles

2,82

1.8
L01

(1.01)

Furpiture and

fixtures
2038

(193)
18.45

18.45

Total

[,98742
151.46

(1493
i371.24}
1,752.7]
9391
(60 72)
(4.68)
(391.74)
1389.48

Furniture and
fixtures

150 55
139
(0.011
153,93
€99
(0 64)
160.28

78 81
14.62
00N
93.42
1340
(0161
106.66

60,51
3162

Olice
equipment

108.50
11.38
€0.03)

119.35
15.87
{2 46"

133.26

72.32
12.69
0 03
§4.98
10 65
12 29
5334

34.37
30,92

Computer
equipment

100 59
314
(0 400

133.33
.80
0.90)

167.23

60 62
1613
{0 14}
76.91
2447
(090}
100.48

56.42
66.75

Vehicles

07
229
{140
3160

219
2941

11.76
430
(.17
14.8%

{2 06)
16.82

16.71
12.59

Total

7,501.51
170 14
(207 69
7.463.96
470,80
72715
786101

1,93621
449 18
(187 43}
2,197.56
44517
{35741
2.586.99

5,264.40
5,275.02



Quality Care India Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial staternents
(All amounts in ¥ millions, exeept share data and where otherwise stated)

4.2 Capital work in progress

Particulars

(1) Projects in progress
{ii} Projects temporarily suspended
Total

Less thao one
year
109.51

109.31

As on 31at March, 2022
1-2years 2-3vesrs Morethan 3 years Total
47.98 466.25 623.74
47.98 46:6.25 623.74

4 2 (b) Completion schedule for Capital work in progress whose completion is averdue is as below There are no Capital work in progress which has exceeded its cost compared fo its original plan:

Particulars

(i) Projects in progress
Vizag Health City Project

{ii) Projects temporarily suspended
NIL

Total

Chartered
AAC

B Y

012754N
*

Less than one

364.17

1-2

Tao be
As on st

2-3

in
2022

More than 3 Total

564 17

564.17

As on st March, 2021
Less than one Meore than 3
year 1-2years 2-3 years YeArs Total
720 50394 601,14
97.20 503.94 601.14
To be in
Ason 3lst 2021
than one
1-2 -3 Total
476 74 476.74
476,74 47a. 14
Ei

win



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consclidated financial statements
{All amounis in ¥ millions, except share data 2nd where otherwise staled)

4.3 Goodwill and Other intangible nsgets

44

Particulars Goadwill
Gross carrying amount

Opeaing gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2020 330351
Additions

Closing gross cartying amount as at 31 March 2021 330.51
Additions

Closing groes carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 330.51

Accumulated amortisation

Dpening sccumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2020
Amortisation charge for the year

[mpairment charpe

Ciloving accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2021
Amortisation charpe for the year

Closing accumulated amortisation a8 at 31 March 2022

Closing net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 330.51
Closing net carvying amount as at 31 March 2022 33051

under
Aping of Imangibles under development:

Particulars Less than ane
vear

(1) Projects in progress

Total

Software Total
17896 509 47
35 68 3568
214.64 545.15
6518 6518
279.82 610,33
5420 58 20
48.82 48 82
2628 26.28
133.30 133.30
£8.36 6836
201.66 201.66
8134 411.85
74.16 408,67
As on 31st March, 2022
1-2 years

2-3years More than 3 years

Seal do L

Less than onc
Year
1674
16,74

Total

amets nnder develnnment for

As on J1st March, 2021

1-2yeors  2-3yearn MOTEthAR3 o
VEars
9.85 26.59
245 26.59



Quality Care Indis Limited
Notes to the consolidated fuancial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share dara and whers otherwise stated)

4.5 Investments

Particulars As at

As at

(a) Non-current
Unguoted
Investment in Joint venture - at cost

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

= 5,000 (31 March 2021: 5,000) equity shares of 10 each in Quality Care Health Services [ndia Private Limited 0.02 0.03
0.02 0.03
Agpregate amount of unquoted investments (&) 0.02 0.03
b} Current
Investment tn mutual fonds - at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
564 542
006 0.05
50.00
100.10
.- 2,63,003 (31 March 2021: NIL) units Nippon India Money Market Fund - Growth. 873.55
Total 1,029.35 547
Aggregate amonnt of quoted investments and market value thereof (B) 1,029.35 547
Aggregate amount of quoted & unquoted investments (A) + (B)
4,6 Other financial assets
Particulars Asat As at
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
{a) Non-current
Security deposits 130 85 192.47
Fixed deposits with banks with more than 12 months maturity* 4239 941
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 6.24 223
Total 188.4% 204.11
{b} Curreat
Security deposits 51.58 6.83
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 12.8% 2109
Unbilled receivables 133.57 116.85
Others 26.64 6.18
Total 224,68 150.95

*Includes 2524 (31 March 2021: ¥2.98) which are given as margin money to banks or against bank guarantees.

A
N AAC 5
§ 2
&
O1275am
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statemenis

(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.7 (a) Deferred tax assets (net)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets, net recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss ("SPL") and Other Comprehensive

Income {OCI)

Deferred tax assets/liabilitics) in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment
Bormrowings measured at amortised cost

Provision for bad and doubtful trade receivables

Provision for bad and doubtful loans
Provision for employee benefits

Loss from specified business

Indexation benefit of land

Expenses allowablc on deduction of TDS
Others

Total (A)

assels
for lease liabilities

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation tu:

Provision for employee benefits
Loss from

Others

Total (A)

Total (B)
Total (A+B)

Note:

As at

1 ril2021
{1.048.25)
(12,55)
179.72
23.00
88.17
1,408.24

2713
665.46

81
654.95
73.53

738.99

Agat
1 April 2020
(34.70)

22935
97.30
74.64

335383

687.95
3291
368.74

Charged/recognised Charged/recognised As at

to SPL 1o OCI 31 March 2022
269,73 {778.52)
3.04 (9.51)

2058 209,30

23.00

21.48 2.19 111.84
(257.50) 1,150.74

R7.25 87.25

2125 21.25
(27.30) {0.24)

147,46 2,19 815.11

130,70 430,

540.59

16.34 89.87

163.80 2.19 004.98

Charged/recognised Charged/recognised As at

to SPL to OCI 31 March 2021
(1,01 T (1,048.25)
2.5
179.72
23.00
11.21 2.32
27.13
32729 2.32 665.46
73.62 81
654.95 -
40.62 73.53
367.91 2.32 738.99

The Parent Company has recognised deferred tax asset on carried forward business losses of earlier years from specified business, as
defined under Section 35AD of the Income Tax Act, 1961, The Parent Company has earned profits on specified business in the current
year and previous year. The management has concluded that such deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated firture taxable
income based on approved business plans and budgets of the Parent Company. These losses can be carried forward for an indefinite period

as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

4.7 (b) Non-current tax assets (net)
Particulars

Advance income tax (net of provision for taxation)

Total

N AﬁC-SOol

01275481
* abad *

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
688.33 645.46
6BR.33 645.46



Quiality Care [ndin Limited
Notes to the consolidated financia) statements
(ANl amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.3 Other assets
Particulars

{a)} Non-current

Statutory dues paud under protest
Capiial advances

Prepaid expenses

Others

Total

(b} Curremt

Prepaid expenses
Advances to vendors
Others

Tolal

4.9 Invemtories*
Particulars

Medical consumables and pharmacy items

Other consumables

Total

* Refer note 4 14 and 4 1 1{a) for details of inveritories pledged as security/hypothecated, if any

4.10 Trade receivables

Particulars

Trade receivables from contract with customers = billed

Trade receivables from contract with cusiomers — unbilled

Total

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtfil trade receivables®

Total trade receivabies apd unbilled revenue

Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue recogrised in ather financial assets (refer note 4 6(b))

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
60.22 60.22
107.55 40.50
346 408
T05 749
1 112.2%
3515 4516
47 85 1475
280 jol
85.80 62.92

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
149 51 133,96
302 214
152.53 143.12

Asal As at
2022 31 March 2021
1,666 76 1,666 05
133 57 116.85
(494.15) (537.99)
1,306.18 1,244.91
1,172.6] 1,128 06
133 57 116.85

The movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful trade receivables for the year ended 3| March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Opening balance at beginning of the year
Provision made during the year

Bad debts written off during the year
Closing balance at end of the year

of trade receivables and as at March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date
Particul .
arfieutars Unbilled Notdue ~ Lossfhan  Gmonths-1 ), s
6 months vear
lled
~considered good 133.57 438 78 61976 9239 1.68
-which have significant
increase in credit risk 74 00 13051 6637 92.46
-Allowance for bad and
doubtful trade receivables {74.00) (130351 (6637 (92 48)
Total 133.57 438.78 639.76 92.39 1.68
of trade receivables and unbilled as at March 2021
feom due date
eul .
FParticulars Unbilled Not due Less than 6 manths - 1 12 years
6 months vear
d vnbilled
-considered good 116 85 423.74 57539 119.93 598
-which have significant
increase in credit risk 6379 97 88 2912 148 93
-Allowance for bad and
doubtfu) trade receivables (63 79 (97 88) 2912 (14%.93})
Total 11685 423.74 575,39 11995 8.95
®
rabud *

For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
53799 726.34
105,78 136 16
(149 62) {324.51)
494,15 537.99
2.3 years More than 3
Years
65.84 &4 97
(65 84) {64.97
23 years Maore than 3
YEars
7286 12541
(72.86) {12541}
E/
S
~ T
-

Total

1.306.18

494,15

{494 150
1,306.18

Total

1.244 91

33799

{53750
1,244.91



Quality Care Indig Limited
Notes to the consolidated linancial statements
(All ainounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

411

412

Cash and bank balances
Particulars As at Asg at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
-in current aceounts® 21782 53514
-in cash credit accounts** BB 94 135,84
Cash on hand 873 1130
Total 315.51 686.28
b} Other bank balances
Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months*** 764.51 GR6 16
Earmarked balances with bank in current account* 14.09 14 0%
Unpaid dividend account 0.14 021
T78.74 F00.46
Toial 1,094.25 1,386.74

*Balances in current account inchudes €14 09 (31 March 2020. 214 09) which are restrictive in nature as they are earmarked funds payable 1o the
minarity share holders of Care Institute of Medical Sciences Limited, which was amalgamated with the Parent Company with effect from | April 2016
in accordance with the terms of the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad vide its Order dated 5 May
2017

**The Company has availed cash credit facilitics amounting to T Nil (31 March 202 1; Z Nil} from Union Bank of India (formerly Andhra Bank). Cash
eredit is secured against first charge on inventory and trade receivables and second charge on Property, plant and equipment of the Company. The cash
credit is repayable on demand and carries an interest rate of one year MCLR + 0.6% per annum (31 March 2022: Nil per annum: 31 March 2021: Nil
per anpum).

***Includes 332 43 (31 March 2021: ¥4 59) which are given as margin money to banks or against bank guarantees

Loans
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-~current
Loans to related parties 65 83 6583
Less; Allowance for bad and doubiful loans (65 83) 6585
Total
Current
Advances to employess 0.41 1.13
Total 0.41 113

IN AAC

012754n



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated fimancial statements
{All amounts in € millions, except share data and where othcrwise stated)

4,13 (a) Equity share capital

Particuolars As at As &t
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised Share capital
79,500,000 (31 March 2021: 79.500,000) Equity shares of Z10 each 79500 795.00
Total authorised share capital 795.00 793.00
1ssued, subscribed and folly paid-up shares
41,496,894 (31 March 2021: 41,496,894) Equity shares of 210 each 41497 41497
Total issned, subscribed and Fally paid up shares 414,97 414.97
MNotes:
(1} Reconclliation of the shares outstan ding at the beginning and end of the reporting year
Shares

As at 31 March 2022 Ag 1t 31 March 2021

Particulars Number of Amoumt Number of Amounnt
shares fin millions} shares fin millfonsy

At the beginning of the year 41,496,894 41497 41,496 8% 41497
Issued during the ycar
Balance at the end of the year 41,496.894 414.97 41,496,894 414.97

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 210 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Where dividend is
proposed by the Board of Directors, it is subject 1o the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, In the cvent of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to reccive remaining assets of the company afier distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

shares held  the

Ag at31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Nember of Amount Number of Amount
shares {in millions} shares {in millions)
Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Mauritius 39.782.603 39783 39,782,603 39783
Particulars of shareholders more than 5% shares
Particulars A9 at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Numberof o poiding NPTl o ) olding
ghares shares
Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Mauritius 39,782,603 95.87% 39,782,603 95.87%

(v) The Company has not bought back any equity shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet
{vi) The Company has nol issued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the last Balance

(vii) Equity shares reserved under the Employee Stock Option Plan and Share warrant plan: For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock
option plan (ESOP) and share warrant plan of the Company, refer note 4.39 and 4.40.



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except shere data and where otherwise stated)

Details of the Promoter/Promaoter
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Promoter/Promoier Group Name Number of % holding Number of % holding % Change dorisg the year *
Shares Shares
Touch Heaithcare Private Limited, Mauritius 39782603 95.87% 30,782,603 95 87%
Total 39.782.603 95 87% 39,782,603 95.87%

* %.change during the year has been computed on the basis of the number of shares at the beginning of the year.

4.13 Other
Particulars Reserves and surpius Total reserves
Seturities Debenture  Capital reserve Share options Share warrants Retalned and surplus
premium redemption nutstanding TESErVe earnings
reserve account
Balance at 1 April 2020 4,457.24 131 7.51 707 263.41 4,746 54
Profit for the ycar 655.49 65549
QOther comprehensive loss (4.28) {4.28)
Balance at 31 March 2021 4.457.24 131 7.51 TO7 . 214,62 §,397.758
Profit for the year 1,157.87 1,157.87
Stock option compensation for the year 7.5y (7.07) (14.58)
Other comprehensive loss {(4.1% 417
Balance at 31 Mareh 2022 445724 1.31° 2,068.32 6.536.87

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium
Securities premium is used 1o record the premium on issue of equity shares. It is utilised in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

Capital reserve

Capital regerves comprises of:

(i) T4.25 towards excess of net assets taken over the consideration paid as part of business combination, This was created in accordance with the compasite scheme of
amalgamation, sanctioned by the High Court for the States of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh vide its Order dated 18 August 2016, for the amalgamation of Quality
Care Hi-tech City Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary, with the Company during the year ended 31 March 2016.

{ii) ¥7.06 represents forfeited moncy received against share warrants in the earlier years.

Share options outstanding acconnt
The fair value of the equity setfled share based payment options is recognised to share options outstanding account over the vesting period of such options, The
Company wansfers the proportionate amounts, outstanding it this account, in relation to options exercised to securities premium on the date of exercise of such

Share warrants reserve
The fFair value of the equity warrants is recognised to share warrants reserve over the vesting period of such wamants. The Company transfers the proportionate
amounts, outstanding in this reserve, in relation to warrants exercised to securities premium on the date of exercise of such warrants.

Chartered
N AAC-Spp, B!
o
B r & I r
012 <
* ahat *



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in & millions, exeept share data and where otherwise stated)

4.14 Loung-term

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Non-correat  Curr¢nt*  Non-current  Current*

Term loans from banks

- HDFC Bank term loan (refer note i) 300.09 118.59 420068 117.65
- HDFC Bank term loan (refer note ii} 1.28 10.67 1195 279
- HDFC Bank term loan {refer note iii) 211 212 219
- Axis Bank term loan (refer note v} 25913 52.17 I3 51.30
- Axis Bank term loan (refer note vi) 492,58 99 18 59176 97.52
- HSBC - Term lean (refer note iv) 85.53
Term Joans from banks (A) 1,138.61 282,72 1,337.82 178.45
Term loans from financial institutions
= NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited 720.49 140.90 861.38 13748
Term loans from financizl institutions (B) 720.49 140.90 §61.38 137.48
Total (A+B) 1.859.10 423.62 2,19%.20 415.93
Notes:
Reconciliation of liabilities ariging from finaneial activities interest accrued**
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance as at beginning of the year 2,615,13 1,772.36
Proceeds from long term borrowings 85.53 1,075.86
Repayments of long term berrowings (424 .83) (1,301.14)
Others 6.89 68.03
Closing balance as at end of the year 2218272 2.615.13

**Borrowings include current and non-current portions of term loans from banks and financial instittions.

Recontiliation of interest acerued on above borrowings

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance as at beginning of the year 3.30 8.03
[nterest expense 207 59 32476
Interest paid (208.58) {262.12}
Others {0.06) {66.837
Closing balance as at end of the year 275 3.80

HDFC Term Loan and Cash Credit Facility - The term loan and cash credit facility is secured by

(1) equitable mortgage of hospital land and building;

(iiy first exclusive charge on the entire assets (fixed assets/ movable assets) created out of bank finance both present and future excluding medical
equipments specifically financed by another financier;

(iii) first and exclusive charge on all present and future current assets of the Company; and

{iv) personal guaramice of the Dr, Sandeep Dave o the extent of hospital building owned by him which was subsequently removed in FY 20

{¥) certain personal properties of the doctors Dr. Sandeep Dave and Mrs. Samidha Dave which were mortgaged in 2019 were reieased by bank
during FY 20. .

The loan is repayable in 41 menths and carries interest at rate of MCLR (I year) plus 0.50% p.a. As a 31, March 2022, the rate of interast is 7.20
p.2. (31 March 2021: 820 p.a.) ’

HDFC bank term loan : The loan is secured by

~first charge on the unencumbered fixed assets of the Company;

-first charge on the current assets of the Company;

-personal guarantee of Dr.Shailesh P.Puntambekar and N Krishna Reddy (Earlier shareholder)

~comfort letter given by Quality Care India Limited to the extent of sanctioned limits;

As at 31 March 2022, the loan is repayable in 14 months with monthly equated instalments of Z 0.94 and ¢arries an interest rate of bank base rate
+ 1.30 % spread. As at 31 March 2022, interest rate is 8.75% p.a. (31 March 2021: 8.75% p.a.).



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated finaneial statements
(Al amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where othervise stated)

4.14 Long term borrowings (continued)

lii

vi

vii

HDFC bank term loan : The loan is secured by first charpe on the medical equipment purchased out of the sanctioned facility. As at 31 March
2022, the loan is repayable in 11 months with monthly equated instalments of T 0 2 lakhs and carries an interest rate of MCLR rate + 150 %
spread. As at 31 March 2022, interest ratc is 8.85% p a. (31 March 2021: 9.35% p.a.}.

HSBC Bank Term Loan- Secured by first pari passu charge on immovable & movable Property, plant and equipment all present and future assets,
second pari passu charge on stocks & receivables all present and future assets towards overdrafi and working capital toan facilities.

The loan is repayable in 8 yeats (Frequency of Repayment: Monthly) carries an interest rate of repo rate + 3% pa (31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.}
(31 March 2021: Nil per annum) payable at monthly intervals and moratorium period of 2 years,

Axis Bank term Joan - Secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable property, plant and equipment, present and future of
the Company and alse hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets both present and future of the Company.

Second pari passu charge over all present and future current asset of the Company. The said loan is repayable in 6 years and 7 months {frequency
of repayment: monthly instalments ranging from %2.17 w0 ¥5.22) and carrics an interesi rate of vepo rale + 3% p.a. (31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.)
(31 March 2021: 7% p.a) payable at monthly intervals

Axis Bank term loan - Secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable property, plant and equipment, present and future of
the Company and also hypothecation of entire movable fixed asscts both present and future of the Company,

Second pari passu charge over all present and future current asset of the Company. The said loan is repayable in 6 vears and 7 months {frequency
of repayment: monthly instalments ranging from ¥4.13 (0 39 92) and carries an interest rate of repo rate + 3% p.a. (31 March 2022: 7.00% pa)
(31 March 2021: 7.00% p.a.) payable at monthly intervals.

NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited - The loan is secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable property, plant and
equipment, present and future of the Company, excluding MRI machine exclusively charged to Siemens Financial Services Private Limited
Second pari passu charge over all present and future current assets of the Company. The loan carries an interest rate of five year NIIF IFL
benchmark rate + 0.4% (frequency: monthly instalments ranging from 6 19 to 714.86) (As on 31 March 2022: 930% per annum, (3! March
2021: 9.30% per annumy}.

N AAC

012754
* Hyderabad *



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidzted finnacial statements
(All amounts in 2 millions, sxcept share data and where atherwise siated)

4.15 Emplovee benefit obligations
Particulars

Nom-corrent

Provislon for employee benefiis
Giratuity (re for note 4.32(a))
Compensated absences

Current

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 4 32{a))
Compensated absences

4.16 Short term borrowings
Particulars

Secured - at amortised cost
Current maturities of term loans from banks (refer note 4 14)
Current maturities of term loens from financial institutions (refer note 4 14)

4,17 Trade payables
Particulars

{a) Trade payable : Micro and small enterprises; (refer note 4 31)
Subtotal (a)
{b) Trade payable : others

() Trade payable 10 related parties; (refer note 4 33)
Subtotal (b+¢)
Total trmde payables

of trade as on March 31 2022
Particulars Unbilled Not due

Undisputed trade pavables

Micro cnterprises and small

enlerprises 2719

Others 282 941 26
Total 28274 968,45

of trade bles a3 on March  2021:

Particulars Unbilled Mot due
Undisputed trade payables

Miero enterprises and small

enterprises 1] 535

Others 15971 977 84
Total 15071 953,19

N AAC-500;
3
012754N

* mbad *

Ag at
1 March 2022

11901
3494
153.95

7101
2556
96.57

As at
31 March 2022

28272
140 90
423.62

As at
M March 2022
an 54
30.54
1,377 20

29.14
1,406.34
1,436.,88

1-2 13
years years
016
2032 695
20.48 6.95

1-2 2.3
years years

1507 546
1507 5.46

As at
31 March 2021

121 57
3242
154,9%

3287
14 92
67.79

Ag at
31 March 2021

278 45
[37 48
415.93

As at
31 March 2021

732
27.32
1,217.64

11.63
1,229.27
1.256.59

Outstanding for following periods from the due date

More
than 3
years

2308
13.08

Dutstanding for following periods from the due date

More
thamn 3
VEars

2845
845

Total

30 54
1.406.34
1.436.88

Total

FrEY]
122027
1.256.59



Quatity Care India Limited
Motes to the consclidated financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.18 Other financial liabilities

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{a) Non-current
Others 11.00
11.00

{b) Current
Capital ereditors 2285 2529
Imnterest accrued bul not due on borrowings 275 380
Employee related payables 110.32 72,66
Retentlion money and deposits 6.38 719
Onher payabies 19.57 39.44

161.87 14838

*Other payables includes 314 09 (31 March 2021: 14.99) payable to the minoity share holders of Care Institute of Medical Sciences Limited, which was
amalgamaied with the Cotnpany with ¢lfect from 1 April 2016 in accordance with the terms of the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the National
Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabed vide its Order dated 5 May 2017 (refer note 4 11,

4.19 Other liabilities
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current

Statutory dues payable 9535 60.20
Unearned revenue (refer note 4.43) 40 54 8638
Dividend payable to mincrity shareholders 0.14 .21
Others 0.04 00s

136.07 146.84
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Quality Care India Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.20 Revenue from operations
Particulars

Revenue from healtheare services
Revenue from outpatient pharmacy
Other operating revenue

Total

Revenue disaggregation geography wise is as follows:

Particulars

India
Qther than India

For the year ended
31 March 2022

12,478.91
665.51
37.19
13,181.61

For the year ended
31 March 2022
13,161.23
2038
13,181.61

Reconciliation of contract price to revenue recognised from healthcare services is as follows:

Particulars

Revenue from healtheare services, gross
Less: Expected disallowances
Revenue from healthcare services

4.21 Other income
Particulars

{a) Interest income
on bank deposits
income tax refund

financial assets carried at amortised cost

nyn-pperating income

et gain arising on mutual funds designated at FVTPL

remecasurement gain/loss
Government grant*
Miscellaneous income

(c) Income/liabilities written back from operating activities**

Total

For the year ended
31 March 2022
12,684.03

(205.12)

12,4781

For the year ended
31 March 2022

36.49
0.20
9.81

27117
2.06

18.70
4.13
98.56

For the year ended
31 March 2021

9,961.97
531.72
38.97
10,532.66

For the year ended
31 March 2021

10,518.95

13.71

10,532.66

For the year ended
31 March 2021
10.098.50
{136.53)
9961.97

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2021

41.93
25.36
1.53

0.32

3.06
29.82
5.52
113.56

*Government grant relates o reimbursement against expense incurred for Covid-19 related response. There are no unfulfilled conditions

ot other contingencies attached to these granis.

**Represents operating liabilities and provisions no longer required written back amounting to 34,13 (31 March 2021; 25.52), These

operating expenses were adjusted in computation of the Group's EBIDTA for such years.

4.22 Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items

Particulars

Inventory at the beginning of the year
inventory at the end of the year
Total

4.23 Employee benefits expense™
Particulars

wages and bonus
based compensation expense

to provident and other funds (refer note (a) below)

and compensated absences
expenses

of amount capitalised (refer nots 4.29)

the year ended 31 March 2022, the amount recogniszd as an expense tewards contribution to provident fund
March 2021; T8§7.48} and towards employee state insurance scheme aggregates to ¥12.24 (31 March 2021: T9.33

For the year ended
31 March 2022
143.12
152.53

(9.41)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1,703.93
68.32
112.81
56.79
40.60

For the year ended
31 March 2021

255.95

143.12

112,83

For the year ended
31 March 2021

1,506.36

96.81
31.48
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4.24 Other expenses®

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Power and fuel 26825 255.60
Rent (refer note 4.38) 2588 4425
Repairs and Maintenance

- Buildings 4562 43.27

- Plant and machinery and others 37342 23772
Hospital maintenancs 103.09 108.91
Housekeeping charges 361.43 316.15
Securily charges 12485 115.3¢
Insurance 836 11.08
Water charges 23.56 2545
Books and periodicals 3.59 639
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 146.20 165,70
Travelling and conveyance 42 47 2205
Communication ¢xpense 33.58 30.57
Markcting and business promotien expense 283.35 16058
Allowance for bad and doubtfu] trade receivables 105,78 136,16
Advances and loans written-off 210
Printing and stationery 42 735 3427
Payments te the auditor {refer note (a) below) 7.00 7.13
Legal and professional charges 86.93 67.72
Catering charges, net 152.88 137.90
Diagnostics expenses 141.25 91 87
Coniribution towards Corporate social responsibility (refer note (b) below) 2.03 2.41
Profssivnal charges to doctors 3,098.91 2,445.08
Property, plant and equipment written-off 5.29 17.75
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equiprent (net) in 1.56
Bank charges 9.61 7.44
Miscellaneous expenditure 11.44 23.36
Total 551593 4,523,7¢6

*WNei of amount capitalised {refer note 4.29)

Note (a): Details of payments to auditors

Particulars For the year ¢ended  For the year cnded
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

For audit 7.00 7.00
For reimbursement of expenses 0.13

7.00 7.13

1IN AAC
L 4
012754N

W bad “*



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note {b):Details of Corporate Social Responsibility expense
Particulars

Contribution to Telengana Sikh Society - Eradicating Hunger by donation of food

Contribution t¢ Annamrita Foundation

Contribution to Friends of Tribals Society
Contribution to Mahan Trust

Contribution to Vidarbha Sewa Samiti

Contribution to South India Education Society
Contribution to PM National Retief Fund
Contribution to National Defense Fund (Indian Army)
T'otat

Details of CSR vnder Section of the Act in

Balance as at lat April, 2021

NIL

4.25 Finance costs
Particalars

Interest on borrowings calculated using effective interest method
Intersst on lease liabilities (refer note 4.38)

Others

Total

4,26 Depreciation and amortisation
Particulars

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment
Amortization on other intangible assets
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets

Total

AAC

&

012754N/)
w*r

of other than
Amount deposited
in Amount
specified fund of required ity be
Schedule VII of spent during

the Act the year
within 6 months
NIL 203

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
0.52
1.00
051
G183
040
0.80
0.52
05l
2.03 2.41
ap:'::'::ng Balance as at 31t
the year March, 2022
2.03 NIL
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
207.59 324.76
173.01 186.50
4042 3694
421.02 84820
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
445.17 449.1%8
68.36 48.82
391.74 371.24
905.27 869.24
=]
o
b _—
= =
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4.27

4,28

Income tax expense

Particulars For the year ended
M Mareh 2022

Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Tax expense comprises of;

Curment tax expense 302.84
Income tax relating to earlier periods 2215
Deferred tax expense/{benefit) (164 44)
160.55
Reconciliation of tax expense/ and the accounting profit multiplicd by India's tax rate:
Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2022
before tax A6
the Indian tax rate 34.944% (31 March 2021; 34.944%) 485.53
Tax effect of amonnts which are not in calculating taxable income:
Effact mot to tax under the [T Act, 1961
i Previously unrecognised tax losses from specified business, as defined under Section 35AD of the (257.45).
Income Tax Act, 1961, now recognised (net of deferred tax liability) B
Effect of taxable profits from specified business, as defined under Section 35AD of the IT Act,
1961, adjusted against brought forward specified business tax losses
for advance written-off not allowed yader the Income Tax Act, 1961
Indexation benefit on land
[ncome tax to earlier 22,15
Effect of difference in tax rates to subsidiary companies
Other 14.53
Tax expense 160.5%
Earnings per equity share (EPES)
Particulars For the year ended
3§ March 2022
Profit for the ysar attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company 1,157 7
Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,496,894
Total number of equity shares cutstanding at the end of the year 41,496,894
Weighted average number of equity shares considered in computation of Basic EPES 41,496,894
Drilutive effect of outstending stock options and warrants
Weighted average number of equity shares considered in computation of Dilutive EPES 41,496,594
Basic Earnings per equity share in ¥ (absolute number) 27.90
Diluted Earnings per equity share in ¥ {absolute number} 27.%0
Note:

Quistanding employee stock options and warrants has been setiled during the year ended 31 March 2022,

For the year ended
31 March 2021

135.43
45.69

36791

(186,79

For the ycar cnded
31 March 2021

493 25
162.09

(2.63)
(371.85)

7430

45.69

(186.79)

For the year ended
31 March 2021
635 49

41,496,894
41,496,894

41,496,894
165,237
41,662,131

15.80
15.73
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4,29

4.30

4.3

)]
(ii) :
(iid)
(iv)

¥)

(@)

(b}

Incidental expenditure during the construction period

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has capitalised the following amounts to the cost of Property, plant and equipment /
Capital work in progress (CWIP). Consequently, amounts disclosed under the respective notes are afier adjusting amounts capitalised
by the Group.

Particulars A3 at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance (A) 187.18 183.36
Employee bencfits expense {refer note 4.23)
Salaries and wages 0.26
Total (B) 0.26
Other expenses (refer note 4.24)
Rates and taxes 258 2.60
Others 1.76 1.22
Total (C) 4.34 382
Total (D=A+B+C) 191.78 187.18
Amount capitalized to Property, plant and equipment (E)
Balance carried forward to Capital work in progress (F=D-E) 191.78 187.18

Segment Information
The management has assessed the identification of reportabie segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 “Operating
Segment” (“Ind AS 1087) and believes that the Group has only one reportable segment namely ‘Medical and Health care services”.

Geographical information g
Revenue disaggregation geography wise information has been disclosed under note 4.20 to the consolidated financial statements,
Further 100% of Group's non-current assels as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were located in India,

Major customers
The Group has no single customer who has contributed more than 10% of the Group's total revenue during the year ended 31 March

2022 and 31 March 2021.

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The creditors covered by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the MSMED Act, 2006") have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Group. Disclosures in respect of the amounts payable to such parties are given
below:

Particulars As at Az at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
The amount a5 at end of the 30.54 27

The amount of interest accrued and

Amount of interest paid by the Group in terms of Section 16, of the MSMED Act, 2006

with the amounts of payments made beyond the appointed date during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period {(where the principal has been paid

interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid)

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding years, until such date:

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpese of’
as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

Notes:

Explanation- The terms “appointed day’, “buyer, ‘enterprise’, ‘micro enterprise’, ‘small enterprise” and ‘supplier’, shall have the same
mearning as assigned to them under clauses (b), (d), (e), {h), (m) and (n) respectively of section 2 of “the MSMED Act, 2006

This information required to be disclosed has been determined to the extent such partics have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Group. The auditors have placed reliance on the information provided by the management.

N AAC-S
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4,32

a)

b)

i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

‘l'l'r
=

Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Group provides its employees wilh benelits under a defined benefit plan, referred to as the "Gratuity Plan”. The Gratuity
Plen entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive 15 days salary for cach year
of completed service at the time of retirement/ exit in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The plan is managed
by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Group accrues gramity as per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date and accordingly the maximum payment is restricted to ¥2 per employee.

Based on the actwarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan

and ithe amounts recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements as at the reporting dates;

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation liability 197.36 180.12
Plan assels {7.3H (5.68)
Net defined benefit liability 190,02 174.44
Men-current 1901 121.57
Current 71.01 52.87

Reconciliation of net defined benefit Liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit liability

and its components:

Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 180.12 166.37
Benefit payments from plan assets (24.23) (253D
Current service cost 24.01 23.12
Interest expense 11.6] 10.47
Actuarial losses/(gains)
- changes in demographic assumptions 0.16
- changes in financial assumptions (0.69 (0.49)
- experience adjustments 6.38 5.96
Defined benefit obligation at the closing of the year 197.36 180.12

ii) Reconciliation of fair value of plan asseis

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 5.68 4.50
Contributions 26.64 27.57
Benefits paid (24.23 (25.31)
Interest income 0.48 0.39
Actuarial losses 23 A
Plan assets at the closing of the year 7.34 5.68
Expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 24.01 23.12
Interest cost, net 11.13 10.08
Total cost, included in 'employee benefits expense’ 35.14 33.20

A
1 AAC 500;
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4.32

d)

¢

2)

h)

Employee benefits (continued)

Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income { OCI )

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Actuarial (loss)/gain on defined benefit liability {5.85) (5.47)
Actuarial (loss)/gain on plan assets (1.23) (1.47)
Total cost recognised in the OCI outside Statement of Profit and loss (7.08) (6.94)

Actuarial assum ptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions:

Particulars As at Ag nl

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Attrition rate 40.00% 23.5% 10 35%
Briscount rate 7.34% 6.91%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 4% 10 5%
Retirement aee 58 years 58 years
Note:

a) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senierity, prometion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Moaturity profile of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 20.21
Within 1 Year 71.00 52.87
2to 5 years 126.82 114.48
6 to 10 years 33.60 43.98
231.42 2M1.33

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, can affect the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 (%) 31 March 2021
(%)
Discount rate  {+ 1% movement) (3.00) (10.70)
Discount rate (- 1% movement) 8.40 11.50
Salary escalation (+ 1% movement) 10.00 13.10
Salary escalation (- 1% movement) (9.60) {12.30)

The Group expects to contribute ¥73.91 (31 March 2021: € 172.81) as its contribution to gratuity within one year from the
vear ended 31 March 2022,

N AAC-S
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4.33 Related party disclosure

(a) Name of related parties and nature of relationship
Nature of relationship
Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Helding Company and Ultimate Holding Company
Relatives of KMP

Joint venture
Entities in which Divector is interested

Names

Madhavi Darbha, Group Financial Officer {upto 31 October 2020)

Dr. Rasjiv Singhal, Group Chief Executive Officer (upto 15 October 2020)
Jasdeep Singh, Chief Executive Officer {w.e.f 19 October 2020)

Sandeep Kumar, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 27 October 2020 and upto 24
Vikas Rastogi, Chief Financial Officer (w.e f. 24 May 2021)

Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran, Company Secretary (w.e.f. 21 January 2021)
Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Maur#tius, Holding Company

Evercare Health Fund, L.P, Cayman Islands, Ultimate Helding Company

B. Kasi Raju (upto 12 April 2019)

Mz. B Swathi Raju

Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited

AKNA Medical Private Limited

Evercare Group Manapetnent Ltd

Sister entity of ultimale holding company

{b} Nature of transactions and vear end balances
Particulars

Transactions during the year
1 AKNA Medical Private Limited
Purchase of drugs and consutnables
2, Indian Medironic Private Limited
Purchase of drugs and consumables
3. Asia Healtheare Holding Advisory LLF
Professional and business services
4. Dr. Raajiv Singhal
Short term and post emplayment benefits*
3. Jasdeep Singh
Shert term and post employment benefits*
6. Sandeep Kumar
Short term and post employment benefiis*
7. Madhavi Darbha
Short term and post employmeni benefits*
8. Vikas Rastogi
Short term and post employment benefits?
9. Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran
Short term and post employment benefits*
10. Evercare Group Management Ltd
Revenue from professional services

{c) Balances outstanding from/ to the related parties
Particulars
Balances outstanding from/ to the related parties as at 31 Mar 2022
1 Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited
Loans teceivable
2. Quality Care Jharsuguda Private Limived
Advance receivable
3. AKNA Medical Private Limited
Trade payable
4. Indian Medtronic Private Limited
Trade payable
5. Evercare Group Management Ltd
Trade receivables

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
4.07 0.78
43.38 257
3.87
2789
42.94 979
6.52 5.04
5.85
7.64
0.97 0.14
17.50 2003

As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021

65.23 6583

0.01

0.14 074

19.57 10.89

3.56

* Shert terin and post employment benefits, disclosed above, does not include those benefits which are computed for the Group as a whole.
** The outstanding arnount as at 31 March 2022 aggregating to T65.83 (31 March 2021; T65.83) is provided for in the books (refer nots 4.12)
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4,34 Categories of financial instruments and their fair values
The carying amount of all financial assets and financial liabilities appearing in the financial statements are reasonable approximation of
their fair values.

Categories of financial instruments

Ag at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
FVTPL* FVTOCI# Amortised cost FVTPL FVTOC] Ameortised cost
Financial assets
Investments 1,029.35 5.47
Trade receivables 1,172.61 1,128.06
Cash and cash equivalents 315.51 686.28
Other bank balances 778.74 700,46
Loans 0.41 1.13
Qther financial assets 413.17 355.06
Total finaneial asseds 1.029.35 2.680.44 5.47 2,870.99
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVTOCl  Amortised eost
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings 2,282.72 2,615.13
Trade payables 1,436.88 1,256.59
Lease liabilities 1,664.86 1,985.96
Other financial liabilities 172.87 148.38
Total fimancial liabilities 5.557.33 6,006,06

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at an amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale,

*FYTPL - Fair value through Profit and Loss
#FVYTOCI - Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

AAC.5
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4.35 Financial instruments risk management

435

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Group's Board of Directors have an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework, The
Board of Directors have established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk
management policies. The Comumittee reporls regularly 1o (he Board of Directors on its activities.

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, comprises of botrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Group’s operations. The Group®s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and bank
balances that the Group derives directly from its operations. The Group also holds FY¥TPL investmenis.

The Group is exposed primarily fo Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market risk (fluctuations in interest rates and foreign curreney rates), which may
adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Group assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and seeks to mitigate
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

Credit

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a firancial loss,
Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of defavit and the risk of deterioration of ¢reditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk
arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, investment, other balances with banks, loans and other receivables.

Credit risk is controfled by analysing credit limits and ereditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after
oblaining necessary approvals for credit. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables,
investments, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets. None of the financial instruments of the Group result in material
concentration of credit risk.

Exposure to credit risk:
The carrying amount of financiel assets represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum exposure to credit risk was 3,709.79 and %2,576.16
asat 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of financial assets.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
None of the Group’s cash equivalents, including fixed deposits, were either past due or impaired as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired : Refer note 4,10 - Trade receivables

Ind AS requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Group assesses al each Balance Sheet date whether a financial
asset or a group of financial assets are impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount ¢qual to 12 months expected credit loss or at an
amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial assets have increased significantly since the initial recognition,
The Group has used & practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The
provision matrix takes into account historfcal credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information, :

Financial instruments risk management (continued)

B, Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations. The cbjective of liquidity risk management is to maintain

sufficient liquidity and to ensure that funds are available for meeting due obligation of the Group. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining

adequate reserves, banking facilities, continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and maiching the maturity profiles of financial assets

and financial liabilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at 31 March 2022 Up to 1 vear Move than 1 year Total

Borrowings 423.62 1,859.10 2,282.72

Trade payables 1,436.88 1,436.88

Lease liabilities 282.38 1,381.98 1,664.86

Other financial liabilities 161.87 11.00 172.87

Total 2,305.25 3,252.08 £,557.33

As at 31 March 2021 Upto1vear More than 1 vear Total

Borrowings 415.93 2,199.20 2,615.13

Trade payables 1,256.59 - 1,256.59

Lease liabilities 390.27 1,595.6% 1,985.96

Other financial liabilities 14838 148.38

Total 2.2111.17 3,794.8% 6.006.06

C. Market risk:

Market of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse and prices.

all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, such as foreign currency and

and long-term borrowings. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate
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4.36

Intercst rate risk:
Interest rate tisk is the risk that the fait value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's borrowings with fleating interest rates.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, every 50 basis point decrease in the floating interest rate component applicable to the Group's
borrowings would have decrease the loss before tax approximately by ¥9.91 and ¥13.08 respectively. A 50 basis point increase in floating interest rate
would have led to an equal but opposite effect.

Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily 1o the Group's operating uctivities (when revenue or expense
including capital expenditure is denominated in a foreign currency). The exposure of entity to foreign cumency risk is very limited on account of
limited transactlions in foreign currencies,

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary items in Z as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 ; NIL
Capital risk mansgement
For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to

the equity holders. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or
issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The Group's policy is to
keep the gearing ratio below 35%. The Group includes within net debt, borrowings (long and short term) , less cash and cash equivalents.

As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Borrowings (note 4.14 and 4.16) 2,282.72 2,615.13
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 4.11(a)) (315.51) {686.28)
Less: Other bank balances (note 4.11(b)) {764.635) (686.37)
Less: Investment in mutual funds (note 4.5(b)) (1,029.35) (5.47)
Net debt (A) 173.21 1,237.01
Total eauity (B) 1.472.72 6.263.28
Net debt and total equity (A) + (B) 1,645.93 7.500.29
Gearing ratio (%) 2.27% 16.49%

In erder to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets the financial covenants
attached to the borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately ¢all back the borrowings. They has
been no breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowings during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

No changes were made in the objectives, pelicies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

MA 1
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4,37 Contingent liabilities amd commitments
{a) Contingent liabilithes
Particulars

Claims agaimsi the Group not acknowledged as debts

- Dispuled disaliowances, deemed dividend under Section 2(22)(e) and desmed income under Section 56(2)(viib) of the Income Tax|
Act, 1961 |

Dispuied levy of sales tax on medical supplies under the Andhra Pradesh General Sales Tax Act, 1957
- Disputed wages of specific employees under the Minimum Wages Act, 1948
Disputed Luxury tax levied on bed charges under the Telangana Tax on Luxuries Act, 1987

- Disputed levy of service tax on clinical research, cosmetic surgeries, health care services rendered to specific categories of patients
and other services and disputed svailment of input eredit on certain items under the Finance Acl, 1994

Diisputed levy of Employee state insurance provisions on certain employees under the Employess' State Insurence Act, 1948
Disputed levy of Providemt fund provisions on centain employees under the Employees’ Provident Funds and

Ast, 1952
Disputed tax levied on specific building of the Group under the Expenditure Tax Act, 1987

- Patient legal ¢laims are pending with various Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission

Other legal claims pending under the various Statutory Acts

(Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

(b) Commitwents
Particulars

Estimated amotni of contracts ta be axecuted on aceount and not
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As af
31 March 2022
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in 2 millions, except share data and where otherwise stated}

4.38 Leases
The Group has taken hospital buildings, plant and machinery and wehicles on operating lease having 2 term ranging from | year to 25 years The lease has an esealation clause in the
range of 5% to 10% per annum The Group obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

The Group alss has eertain lease of building with lease terms of 12 months or less The Gioup applies the 'short term lease’ recognition exemption for these leases

Carrying amount of lease Habilities and movement during the vear

Particulare Asal Ay at

31 March 2022 k) | 2021
Balance at the begimning of the year 2IBT98
additions during the year %3191 151 46
Deletions during the year (67 83)
Fingnes cost accroed during the year 17301 1865
Other adjustments. (27.50) (14 93)
Payment of lease Labilities (492.69) (425.05)
Lease liabilities as ot the end of the year 1.664.86 193595
Current Jease ligbilities 28288 /027
Non-current lease liabilities 138198 1,595 6%

Following amaunts have been recognised in the Conselidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars For the year ended For the yesar ended
2022 3 March
on Righl-ofuse assets 391.74 71 24
Interest on lease 173.01 186 50
Totsl amount in the of and loss £64,75 557,74

Details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 on an ondiscounted basis are as follows:

Particolars For the year ended For the year ended
31 31 March 2021

Less One year 426 55
(e to five years 1.271.40 1,396 03
More than five 75583
Total 73

Group does not face a significant tiquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the curent assets are 1o meet the obligations related to lease Habilities as and they fall
dug

Rental expenses recorded for short-termn leases wags ¥23.88 for the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: 244 25)
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consalidated financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.39 Employee Stock Option Plan

Pursuant to & special resolution passed by the members in their meeting held on 27 July 2013, the Parent Company instituted an Emplayee Stock
Option Plan (the ESOP Scheme 2013), The said scheme has been formulated in consultation with the Board of Directors of the Parent Company,
and accordingly the Parent Company had reserved 1,150,000 equity shares of 210 each. The options granted under the said scheme shall vest
within a span of four years in the ratio of [(%, 20%, 30% and 40 % cach year from the date of grant. These options can be exercised upon
satisfaction of conditions attached to such issue and shall be equity settled.

In addition to above, pursuant to the resolution passed in the Compensation Committee in the meetings held on various dates during the year ended
31 March 2016, the Parent Company had granted 134,000 stock options to medical profassionals.

Further, pursuant to a special resolution passed by the members in their meeting held on 20 February 2016, the Parent Company instituted an
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016, The Parent Company has reserved 1,000,000 cquity shares of ¥10 each, No options were granled under the
scheme.

Further, pursuant to special resolution passed by the members in their meeting held on 25th March, 2022, the Parent Company approved the
payment of an ex-gratia amount as per ESOP (Employze Stock Option) to each of the vested option-holders of 'EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION
SCHEME - 2013' as per the details mentioned below:

No. of Vested ESOPS Exercise Price  Fair Market Ex-gratia
Value amount paid as
per ESOP
303,880 T212/- T 452.30/- T240.304-
The details of under the Plan have been summarised below:
Particulars Asg at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted average
options AVerage exercise options exercise price (¥)
price (T)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 199,200 212 212,080 212
Forfeited during the year 12,880 212
Cancelled during the year
Exercised during the year 199,200 212 212
Outstanding at the end of the year 199,200 212

Vested and exercisable at the end of the year

The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding as at reporting dates:

The share options outstanding as at 31 March 2022 has an exercise price of TNil {31 March 2021: ¥212), and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of Nil years {31 March 2021: Nil years),

The fair value of options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton model with the following assumptions:

Particulars
Exercise price Nil
Expected Volatility Mil
Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period) in years Nil
Average risk-free interest rate Nil
AA(



Quality Care Indig Limited
Notes to the consolidated fHinancial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.40 Share warrants

On 30 April 2013, 20 February 2016, and 30 September 2016, the Parent Company established share warrant plans that entitle the warrant holders
an option to convert the warrants into equity shares of the Parent Company at the relevant exercise price. The key terms and conditions related o
the grants under these plans are as follows; all warrants are to be settled by the delivery of equity shares.

Further, pursuant to special resolution passed by the members in their meeting held on 25th March, 2022, the company approved the payment of
constderation 10 cach of the vesied eligible share warrants further allotted under the 'SHARE WARRANTS 2016 SCHEME' as per the details

mentioned below:

No. of Vested warrants Exercise Price  Fair Market Ex-gratia
Value amount paid as
per Warrant
436,000 T430.40/- T 452.30i- 2 21.90/-
The details of under the Plan have been summarised below:
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted average
wWarramts average exergise warrants exercise price (3)
price (T)
Outstanding at the beginning of the vear 712,330 43040 726,050 430.40
Forfeited during the year 13,720 430.40
Cancelled during the year 276,330 430,40
Exercised during the year 436,000 430 430.40
Ouwtstanding at the end of the year 712,330 430.40
Vested and exercisable at the end of the year 712,330 43040

The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding as at reporting dates:
The warrants outstanding as at 31 March 2021 has an exercise price of INil (31 March 2021: T430.40) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of Nil years (31 March 2021: Nil years).

The fair value of warrants was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton model with the following assumptions:

Particulars

Exercise price Nil

Expected Volatility Nil
of the optiens granted (Vesting and exercise period) in vears

A risk-free interest rate
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in I millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.41 Transfer Pricing
The Parent Company has entered into commercial transactions with its associated enterprises which are subject to assessment and test of being
transactions carried out at an "arm's length price,” in accordance with the provisions of chapter X of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Parent Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance and documents as required by the wansfer pricing legislation under
sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Management is of the opinion that its transactions with asseciated enteIprises are at arm's length.
Therefore, the legislation shall not have any impact on the consalidated financial statements.

4.42 Interest in joint venture
The Group has interest in a joint venture which, in the opinion of the Company's Board of Directors, is immaterial to the Group. The Group's share of
the loss for the year and other comprehensive income is 20.01 (31 March 2021: 10,01 and TNil (31 March 2021; INil) respective of such joint venture.

4.43 Unearned revenue
The following table discloses the movement in the unearned revenue during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 Marceh 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 8638 82.31
Revenue recognised during the year (86.38) (82.31)
Invoiced the vear 40.54 8638
Balance at the end of the year 40.54 86.38

444  In 2009, the Parent Company had entered into an agreement with Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC™) 10 acquire a
Tand parcel and development of a Health City along with allied infrastructure(“Project™) in Visakhapamam, Andhra Pradesh. Pursuant to the terms of
the said agreement, the APIIC has allotted 4.18 acres of land to the Parent Company upon payment of ¥105.55 and included in Property, plant and
equipment [refer note 4.1 (a}] subjected to conditional registration of land in favor of the Company upon completion of the Project by 30 June 2020,
The Parent Company has received extension of timeline from APIIC till December, 2023, Further the group has incurred sum aggregating Rs. 564.17
(31 March 2021: Rs. 476.64} towards land development and civil censtruction there on which are included in capital work-in-progress (refer note
4.2). Based on intemal evaluation, the management of the group is confident of completin g the project within stipulated timelines.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements
(All amounts in ¥ milliens, except share data and where otherwise stated)
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Addjtional regulatory information required by Schedule 11

Details of benami property held
Ne proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the group for holding benami property under the Benami Trangactions (Prohibition) Aet,
1988 (45 of 1998} and Rules made thereunder

Borrowing secured against current assets
The group has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, The quarterly retums or statements of cument
assets filed by the group with banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the baoks of accounts

Wilfol defaulter
The group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or gavernment or any government authority.

Relationship with struck off companies
The group has no transsctions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Complianee with number of layers of companies
The group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

Utilisation of borrowed funds snd share premivm

The group has not advanced of loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

4. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatspever by or ot behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding {whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:

a. direetly or indirectly lend or invest in qther persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed a8 income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Agt, 1961, that has
1ot been recorded in the books of account

Vaiuation of Property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment praperty
The group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-cf-use assets) of intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial staternents
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and whers otherwiss stated)
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147

Other regulatory information

(i) Tithe deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Parent Company

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Parent Company is the lessee and the lease agreemenis are duly executed
in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in nots 4.1 {a) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Parent Company except for land aggregating to
2105.55. {Refer note 4.44 for further details)

(ii} Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institations
The borrowings obtained by the group froin banks and financial instititions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was iaken.

(iii} The group has not given leans/advances in the nature of loans to directors, promoters, KMPs or eny other related partics which are repayable on
demand or without specifying terms & conditions of repayment.

Subsequent evenls

a, Subsequent t0 the year end the Company has acquired 5% sharcholding in Convenicnt Hospitals Limited, Indore w.c.f June 29, 2022 for considcration
of Rs 3790 million and 76% shareholding in United Cligma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, Aurangabad w.e.f July 26, 2022 for a
consideration of Rs. 3,805 million, Further the Company has also acquired one bospital in Hydersbud for 8 consideration of Rs. 200 millivn on slump sale
basis w.e f. April 25, 2022 The consideration for sbove acquisitions will be cash settled. These acquisitions are expected to add remendously 10 the
clinical depth and further strenghten the presence in non metro ¢ities in India.

b. For the above acquisitions, subsequent to the year end the Company has issued 14,572,480 - 0.001% Compulsority Convertible Preference Shares

(CCP3} of fage valug of Rs. 10 cach @ Rs 452 20 per CCPS 1o the Holding Company amountting to Rs. 6,591 millivn which are conventible inte equity
shares on or before the end of 10 years,
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4.48 Additional disclosure as required nnder parageaph 2 of "General Instructions for the preparztion of Coasolidated Finencial Staterents' of the Sehedube [11 (o the Act

For ihe year ended and as at 31 March 2022

For the year ended and as at 31 March 2021

Net myacts Net assets Share in profic or boss
. Amount im % of nt Ana %ol Amountin  Asa %ol

Name of the entiy con‘::;l::;fnet millions cot’szlida:d Am:' consolidated net milli:ns consolida:cd *‘“‘i:“"‘

assets profit milligns aisets loga milliona
Parent company
Quality Care India Limited 918 652707 B 14% 1,05525 04 d4% 5,489 32 9256% 60670
Subsidiaries
Ganga Care Hospital Limited 6.43% 446 88 2.54% 2944 TI19% 41805 B 02% 52 56
Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences Privare Limited 10.11% 702 52 1265% 14645 059% 55T 457% 2994
Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited 2.52% 17530 -0 19% (2.23} 1.06% 177 69 -135%  (883)
Duality Care Thersaguda Private Limited 0.00% om 0 0H0% 000 100 001 000%  (DOI)
Non-conaolling interest TA49%  (510838) 614% (71 04) F15%  (430.56) 3TS% (2455
Total 105,48% 733090 L0 1,157.56 106,53% 619178 107.55% 65581
Consolidation adjustmenis =5.45% (3706} 0400 om -6 5X%  (379.06)
Net amount stiributable to equity holders of Parcnt 100.00%  6,951,84 100.0% 1,157.87 100.00% 581272 20.00% 65501

‘The disel as above Tep

the view that the above discloswre is approprigie under the requirements of the Act
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

For and on behalf of Boeard of Direclors of

Firw's Repistration Wo: 012754N/NS00016 Quality Care Limnized
14728
Sunit Kumar Easu Joadeep
Partner Director
Membership Wo: 55000 DIN; 08729468 DIN:
Place: Dubai, UAE Place:
Vikas
Place:
Gavaihri
Company Secretary
AQSPC218C
hembership No.; 441863
PMuce: Hydersbad, India Place; Hyderabad
Duatc: 25th August, 2022 Date: 25th August, 2022 Dete; 25th Augusi, 2022

s separate information for each of the consclidated entitics before elimination of inttr—company transactions Based oa the group swchwre, the management is of



WWW.CAREHOSPITALS.COM

‘}\.U{_

e

CARE

HOSPITALS



